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INTRODUCTION
General

This report contains references to yea120013, 2012, 2011, 2010, and 2009, which reptdieal years ending or ended January 30,
2015, January 31, 2014, February 1, 2013, Febia2912, January 28, 2011, and January 29, 208pectvely. Our fiscal year ends on the
Friday closest to January 31, and each of the Yistées will be or were 52veek years, with the exception of 2011 which cdesi®f 53 week:
All of the discussion and analysis in this reptidsld be read with, and is qualified in its engrby, the Consolidated Financial Statements an
related notes.

Solely for convenience, our trademarks adenames may appear in this report without ttee ®M symbol which is not intended to
indicate that we will not assert, to the fullestest under applicable law, our rights or the righthese trademarks and tradenames.

Cautionary Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Staements

We include "forward-looking statements"hiit the meaning of the federal securities lawsugtmut this report, particularly under the
headings "Business," "Management's Discussion aradyAis of Financial Condition and Results of Ofierss," and "Note 8—Commitments
and Contingencies," among others. You can idethi#ge statements because they are not limitedtorigial fact or they use words such as
"may," "will," "should," "could," "believe," "antipate," "project," "plan," "expect," "estimate,'otecast,” "goal," "potential,” "opportunity,"
"intend," "will likely result,” or "will continueand similar expressions that concern our stratelgys, intentions or beliefs about future
occurrences or results. For example, all statenretating to our estimated and projected expenelitucash flows, results of operations,
financial condition and liquidity; our plans, obiees and expectations for future operations, ghoovtinitiatives; or the expected outcome or
effect of of legislative or regulatory changesmtiatives, pending or threatened litigation or isidre forward-looking statements.

All forward{ooking statements are subject to risks and unicgiga that may change at any time, so our acksllts may differ material
from those that we expected. We derive many ofetlstastements from our operating budgets and faigaabich are based on many detailed
assumptions that we believe are reasonable. Howgvewrery difficult to predict the effect of kmm factors, and we cannot anticipate all
factors that could affect our actual results.

Important factors that could cause actesllts to differ materially from the expectatiompressed in our forward-looking statements are
disclosed under "Risk Factors" in Part |, Iltem I @lsewhere in this document (including, withduonifation, in conjunction with the forward-
looking statements themselves and under the hed@mitical Accounting Policies and Estimates"). Adrward-looking statements are
qualified in their entirety by these and other @andry statements that we make from time to timeunother SEC filings and public
communications. You should evaluate such statenieriee context of these risks and uncertaintiégese factors may not contain all of the
factors that are important to you. We cannot asgouethat we will realize the results or developitseme anticipate or, even if substantially
realized, that they will result in the consequermeaffect us in the way we expect. Forward-lookstatements are made only as of the date
hereof. We undertake no obligation to publicly upedar revise any forward-looking statement as alte$ new information, future events or
otherwise, except as otherwise required by law.




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

We are the largest discount retailer inlimi¢ed States by number of stores, with 11,21Besttocated in 40 states as of February 28, :
primarily in the southern, southwestern, midwesterd eastern United States. We offer a broad safhect merchandise, including
consumables, seasonal, home products and apparan&chandise includes high quality national bsaindm leading manufacturers, as well
as comparable quality private brand selections pittes at substantial discounts to national brawvds offer our merchandise at everyday low
prices (typically $10 or less) through our convehigmall-box locations, with selling space averggpproximately 7,400 square feet.

Our History

J.L. Turner founded our Company in 1939.as Turner and Son, Wholesale. We were incorpdragea Kentucky corporation under the
name J.L. Turner & Son, Inc. in 1955, when we open# first Dollar General store. We changed oum@ao Dollar General Corporation in
1968 and reincorporated in 1998 as a Tennesseeratiom. Our common stock was publicly traded fro®68 until July 2007, when we
merged with an entity controlled by investment faiadfiliated with Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L,Br KKR. In November 2009 our
common stock again became publicly traded, andeicenber 2013 the entity controlled by investmentfuaffiliated with KKR sold its
remaining shares of our common stock.

Our Business Model

Our long history of profitable growth isuieded on a commitment to a relatively simple bussnmaodel: providing a broad base of
customers with their basic everyday and househeddls, supplemented with a variety of general mexdika items, at everyday low prices in
conveniently located, smatlex stores. We continually evaluate the needs antadds of our customers and modify our mercharsdikeetion:
and pricing accordingly, while remaining focusedimereasing profitability and returns for our shastelers.

Fiscal year 2013 represented oul"2donsecutive year of same-store sales growth. droisth, regardless of economic conditions,
suggests that we have a less cyclical businessirtimiemost retailers and, we believe, is a resfuttur compelling value and convenience
proposition.

Compelling Value and Convenience Propositio Our ability to deliver highly competitive prie®n national brand and quality private
brand products in convenient locations and our &asgnd out" shopping format create a compellihgmping experience that distinguishes us
from other discount, convenience and drugstoreleesaOur slogan of "Save time. Save money. Eday!" summarizes our appeal to
customers. We believe our ability to effectivelyider both value and convenience allows us to sedde small markets with limited shopping
alternatives, as well as to profitably coexist agide larger retailers in more competitive markétst value and convenience proposition is
evidenced by the following attributes of our bussenodel:

. Convenient Locations.Our stores are conveniently located in a vamétyural, suburban and urban communities, currentti
approximately 70% serving communities with popualiasi of fewer than 20,000. In more densely populateds, our small-box
stores typically serve the closely surrounding hkarhoods. The majority of our customers live wittliree to five miles, or a
10-minute drive, of our stores. Our close proximidycustomers drives customer loyalty and trip deecy and makes us an
attractive alternative to large discount and othege-box retail
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and grocery stores which are often located farifexy. Our loweost economic model enables us to serve many aitatewer
than 1,500 households.

. Time-Saving Shopping Experienc®e also provide customers with a highly convengopping experience. Our stores'
smaller size allows us to locate parking near thetfentrance. Our product offering includes mestassities, such as basic
packaged and refrigerated food and dairy prodetéaning supplies, paper products, health and peame items, greeting
cards, basic apparel, housewares, hardware anchatite supplies, among others. Our convenient handsbroad merchandise
offering allow our customers to fulfill their rone shopping requirements and minimize their needhép elsewhere.

. Everyday Low Prices on Quality Merchandis@ur research indicates that we offer a price athge over most food and drug
retailers and that our prices are highly competitiith even the largest discount retailers. Oulitgtio offer everyday low price
on quality merchandise is supported by our low-opstrating structure and our strategy to maintdimied number of stock
keeping units ("SKUs") per category, which we badidelps us maintain strong purchasing power. Mests are priced at $10
or less, with approximately 25% at $1 or less. \Werayuality nationally advertised brands at theseryday low prices in
addition to offering our own comparable qualityvaite brands at value prices.

Substantial Growth Opportunities. We believe we have substantial laegn growth potential in the U.S. We have identifgggnificant
opportunities to add new stores in both existing mew markets. In addition, we have opportuniti@hiw our existing store base to relocate or
remodel to better serve our customers.

Our Operating Priorities

We believe we continue to have signifiocgmportunities to drive profitable growth by contiimg to expand upon our simple business
model, which is largely focused on serving the seafdhe low, low-middle and fixed income consunaesegment of the U.S. population that
has continued to grow over the past several y®desbelieve our four key operating priorities, ially established in 2008, remain critical to
longterm growth and profitability of our company. Thegs@rities are 1) drive productive sales growthirzrease, or enhance, our gross p
rate; 3) leverage process improvements and infeomatchnology to reduce costs; and 4) strengtineneapand Dollar General's culture of
serving others.

Drive Productive Sales Growth. We believe our customer-driven merchandiseanik attractive value proposition, combined with the
impact of our remodeled and relocated stores peo&idtrong basis for increased same-store sales.cOmparable 52-week basis, our same-
store sales increased 3.3% in 2013, 4.7% in 208252490 in 2011. Our average net sales per squatelfased on total stores, increased to
$220 in 2013 from $216 in 2012 and $213 in 2011i¢tvincluded a contribution of approximately $4rfréhe 539 week.)

In 2013, among other initiatives, we furte&panded our perishables offerings and addedtolyaroducts to our stores, both of which
contributed significantly to our sanstere sales growth. We believe that selling tobgeoducts and perishables drives more frequentmhg
trips by our existing customers and attracts nestaruers by making our stores more relevant to adeocustomer base. We believe we have
opportunities to increase our store productivit@14 through continued improvements in store spétieation, pricing and markdown
optimization and additional merchandising initiasv We also plan to continue to remodel storeptiaie our appearance and relocate stores
increase square footage, where needed, improuelifjisand accessibility or to obtain more attraetiease terms.
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Our new store expansion strategy alsccisti@al element of our priority to drive productiwales growth. We have confidence in our real
estate disciplines and in our ability to identifypen and operate successful new stores. In 2018pered 650 new stores and increased our
selling square footage by 6.6%. We recently coreplet study of our remaining new store opportunittdizing new site selection technology.
The results of our initial review affirm our condidce in our ability to continue to expand our stmmee at the current pace for the foreseeable
future. In 2014, we plan to open 700 new storesiagreétase our square footage by over 6% as werzantd expand in our core markets and
newer states.

Increase, or Enhance, Our Gross Profit Rate Another key component of our growth strategiyneseasing, or enhancing, our gross
profit rate.

We remain committed to an everyday low@{tEDLP") strategy that our customers can dependo strengthen our adherence to this
strategy and still protect gross profit, we utilimious pricing and merchandising options, inahgdzone pricing, markdown optimization
strategies and changes to our product selectiah, & alternate national brands and private bravitish generally have higher gross profit
rates. In addition, we maintain an ongoing focusestucing transportation and distribution costsva as minimizing inventory shrinkage and
damages. The addition of tobacco products and antirtied expansion of perishable food items in 2€d&ributed significantly to increases
in sales and gross profit dollars, although, asetqu, at a lower gross profit rate. Importantlg, bvelieve these categories are instrumental to
attaining our goals of driving more frequent shaogpirips and attracting new customers. Furthermmeehelieve our inventory shrinkage rate
increased, in part, due to our addition of varibess with relatively higher retail prices, manyvdfich were in our health and beauty
departments.

Over the long term, we will continue oufoefs to reduce product costs through further egpanof our private brands, shrink reduction,
foreign sourcing, the use of online procurementians and incremental distribution and transpastagfficiencies. We also plan to continue
introduce new products that meet our customersisiego our home, apparel and seasonal categariésh generally have higher gross profit
rates than consumables.

Leverage Process Improvements and InforroatiTechnology to Reduce Costs.As part of our ongoing effort to improve ouisto
structure and enhance efficiencies throughout tarozation, in 2013 we made further progress inefiorts to simplify our store processes.
This progress contributed to a reduction in stalm®t as a percentage of sales. In addition, we&eshtost savings from our centralized
procurement initiative and other expense reduatfforts. In 2014, we expect to achieve further sgsifrom our procurement initiatives and
will remain focused on controlling those expens$ed are within our control. Note that certain fastprimarily related to our cash incentive
compensation plan caused certain expenses in 2dd8less than those expected in 2014 and beysrekpdained in further detail in
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finanataddtion and Results of Operations contained it Patem 7 of this report.

Strengthen and Expand Our Culture of Sergi®thers. The mission of "Serving Others" has been kethéoculture of Dollar General
for many years and we recognize the importanchisfrhission to our long-term success. For custotiéssmneans helping them "Save time.
Save money. Every day!" by providing clean, wetlebted stores with quality products at low prices. @mployees, this means creating an
environment that attracts and retains key emplotl@esighout the organization. For the public, thisans giving back to our store commun
through our charitable and other efforts. For shalaers, this means meeting their expectationsaficiently and profitably run organization
that operates with compassion and integrity.




Our Merchandise

We offer a focused assortment of everydagessities, which drive frequent customer visits, key items in a broad range of general
merchandise categories. Our product assortmenida®the opportunity for our customers to addresgstrof their basic shopping needs with
one trip. We sell high-quality national brands fregading manufacturers such as Procter & GamblesiRe, Coca:=ola, Nestle, General Mill
Unilever, Kimberly Clark, Kellogg's and Nabisco, iatm are typically found at higher retail pricesesidhere. Additionally, our private brand
consumables offer even greater value with optiormurchase value items and national brand equivpleucts at substantial discounts to the
national brand.

Our stores generally offer approximately0DO total SKUs per store; however, the numberkdf§in a given store can vary based upon
the store's size, geographic location, mercharglisitiatives, seasonality, and other factors. Mafstur products are priced at $10 or less, witl
approximately 25% at $1 or less. We separate ouchmeadise into four categories: 1) consumablesgayonal; 3) home products; and
4) apparel.

Consumables is our largest category anddes paper and cleaning products (such as papetsobath tissue, paper dinnerware, trash
and storage bags, laundry and other home cleanjgliss); packaged food (such as cereals, canngibsnd vegetables, condiments, spices
sugar and flour); perishables (such as milk, ebgsad, frozen meals, beer and wine); snacks (inducandy, cookies, crackers, salty snacks
and carbonated beverages); health and beauty dinglwver-the-counter medicines and personal caréuets, such as soap, body wash,
shampoo, dental hygiene and foot care products)imeuding pet supplies and pet food); and tolegmoducts.

Seasonal products include decorations, tmgtteries, small electronics, greeting cardsiostary, prepaid phones and accessories,
gardening supplies, hardware, automotive and hdfre@supplies.

Home products includes kitchen supplieskeare, small appliances, light bulbs, storage @ioets, frames, candles, craft supplies and
kitchen, bed and bath soft goods.

Apparel includes casual everyday appareinfiants, toddlers, girls, boys, women and menyel as socks, underwear, disposable
diapers, shoes and accessories.

The percentage of net sales of each ofaurcategories of merchandise for the fiscal y@adcated below was as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Consumable 75.2% 73.% 73.2%
Seasona 12.¢% 13.6% 13.&%
Home product: 6.4% 6.6% 6.£%
Apparel 55% 5% 6.2%

Our seasonal and home products categgpésatly account for the highest gross profit maggiand the consumables category typically
accounts for the lowest gross profit margin.

The Dollar General Store

The typical Dollar General store has, oerage, approximately 7,400 square feet of sellpags and is typically operated by a store
manager, an assistant store manager and threerersales associates. Approximately 66% of our stare in freestanding buildings and 34%
are in strip shopping centers. Most of our custartige within three to five miles, or a 10 minuteve, of our stores.

Our typical store features a low cost, mitsfbuilding with limited maintenance capitalWooperating costs, and a focused merchandise
offering within a broad range of categories, allogvus to




deliver low retail prices while generating stroragglk flows and investment returns. Our initial cagitvestment in new stores and relocations
varies depending on the lease structure or owneeshivell as the size and location of the storeth@shumber of coolers appropriate for the
location.

We generally have had good success initagatitable store sites in the past, and we belibat there is ample opportunity for new store
growth in existing and new markets. In addition, vedieve we have significant opportunities avagetar our relocation and remodel progra

Our recent store growth is summarized anftilowing table:

Stores at Net

Beginning Stores Stores Store Stores at
Year of Year Opened Closed Increase End of Year
2011 9,372 625 6C 56¢ 9,93
2012 9,937 625 5€ 56¢ 10,50¢
2013 10,50¢ 65C 24 62€ 11,13

Our Customers

Our customers seek value and convenienepeiming on their financial situation and geograimoximity, customers' reliance on Dollar
General varies from using Dollar General for fillshopping, to making periodic trips to stock uphoisehold items, to making weekly or
more frequent trips to meet most essential need@sg#&vierally locate our stores and plan our merdbarsetlections to best serve the needs of
our core customers, the low to lower-middle or dixecome households often underserved by otheiteetaAt the same time, however,
customers from a wide range of income bracketdifmdtages appreciate our quality merchandiseadindctive value and convenience
proposition and are loyal Dollar General shopplerghe last year, we have continued to see incesiasine annual number of shopping trips
that our customers make to our stores as wellearount spent during each trip.

To attract new and retain existing cust@nae continue to focus on product selection, atlstevels, pricing, targeted advertising, store
standards, convenient site locations, and a pléasanall customer experience.

Our Suppliers

We purchase merchandise from a wide vagésuppliers and maintain direct buying relatiapstwith many producers of national brand
merchandise, such as Procter & Gamble, PepsiC@-Cota, Nestle, General Mills, Unilever, KimberlYa€k, Kellogg's, and Nabisco. Despite
our broad offering, we maintain only a limited nuenlof SKUs per category, giving us a pricing adagetin dealing with our suppliers.
Approximately 8% and 7% of our purchases in 2018wom our largest and second largest suppliespactively. Our private brands come
from a diversified supplier base. We directly imorapproximately $725 million or 6% of our purchsist cost (10% of our purchases based
on their retail value) in 2013. Our vendor arrangata generally provide for payment for such merdisnin U.S. dollars.

We have consistently managed to obtairicsefft quantities of core merchandise and beliéeg, if one or more of our current sources of
supply became unavailable, we would generally bbe tabobtain alternative sources without experiega substantial disruption of our
business. However, such alternative sources caalg@ase our merchandise costs or reduce the qoaliyr merchandise, and an inability to
obtain alternative sources could adversely affectsales.




Distribution and Transportation

Our stores are currently supported by tevelistribution centers located strategically thioug our geographic footprint, including our
newest distribution center in Bethel, Pennsylvavtiéch began shipping in January 2014. We leasetiaddi temporary warehouse space as
necessary to support our distribution needs. Gheepast few years we have made significant invassria facilities, technological
improvements and upgrades, and we continue to wmeprmrk processes, all of which increase our edficy and ability to support our
merchandising and operations initiatives as webtiasnew store growth. We continually analyze agtthfance the network to ensure that it
remains efficient and provides the service ourestoequire. See "—Properties" for additional infation pertaining to our distribution centers.

Most of our merchandise flows through oistribution centers and is delivered to our stdmgshird-party trucking firms, utilizing our
trailers. Our agreements with these trucking fiames based on estimated costs of diesel fuel, Wwétdifference in estimated and current marke
fuel costs passed through to us. The costs of Idigsleare significantly influenced by internatidnpolitical and economic circumstances. If
fuel price increases were to arise for any reasmhyding fuel supply shortages or unusual pricktility, the resulting higher fuel prices could
materially increase our transportation costs.

Seasonality

Our business is seasonal to a certain exgamerally, our highest sales volume occurs énftlurth quarter, which includes the Christmas
selling season, and the lowest occurs in thedusirter. In addition, our quarterly results caraffected by the timing of certain holidays, the
timing of new store openings and store closingsatimount of sales contributed by new and existioges, as well as financial transactions
such as debt refinancing and stock repurchasequidhase substantial amounts of inventory in tive tjuarter and incur higher shipping
costs and higher payroll costs in anticipationhaf increased sales activity during the fourth gurath addition, we carry merchandise during
our fourth quarter that we do not carry during bt of the year, such as gift sets, holiday demms, certain baking items, and a broader
assortment of toys and candy.




The following table reflects the seasogalit net sales, gross profit, and net income byrtgudor each of the quarters of our three most
recent fiscal years. The fourth quarter of the yrated February 3, 2012 was comprised of 14 weskiseach of the other quarters reflected
below were comprised of 13 weeks.

(in millions) 15t Quarter 2" Quarter 3™ Quarter 4™ Quarter
Year Ended January 31,

2014
Net sales $ 42337 $ 4394° $ 4,381& $ 4,493
Gross profi 1,295.: 1,377.: 1,328.! 1,434.¢
Net income(a 220.1 245t 237.¢ 322.2
Year Ended February 1,

2013
Net sales $ 3901. $ 3,948.° $ 3,964 $ 4,207.¢
Gross profi 1,228.: 1,263.: 1,226.; 1,367.¢
Net income(b’ 213.¢ 214.1 207.7 317.¢
Year Ended February 3,

2012
Net sales $ 34517 $ 3575. $ 3595. $ 4,185
Gross profi 1,087.: 1,148.: 1,115.¢ 1,346.
Net income(c 157.C 146.( 171.2 292t
€) Includes expenses, net of income taxes, ofsfhillion related to the termination of credit ii&tees in the first

quarter of 2013.

(b) Includes expenses, net of income taxes, of $17libmrelated to the redemption of long-term obtigas in the
second quarter of 2012.

(c) Includes expenses, net of income taxes, of4s3hllion related to the redemption of long-tertligations in the
second quarter of 201

Our Competition

We operate in the basic discount consuredg market, which is highly competitive with resi® price, store location, merchandise
quality, assortment and presentationsioek consistency, and customer service. We convgidtediscount stores and with many other retajl
including mass merchandise, grocery, drug, conveeigvariety and other specialty stores. These o¢hail companies operate stores in many
of the areas where we operate, and many of themgenig extensive advertising and marketing eff@ts. direct competitors include Family
Dollar, Dollar Tree, Fred's, 99 Cents Only and wasilocal, independent operators, as well as Walmarget, Kroger, Aldi, Walgreens, CVS,
and Rite Aid, among others. Certain of our competihave greater financial, distribution, marketamgl other resources than we do.

We differentiate ourselves from other formfisetailing by offering consistently low pricas a convenient, small-store format. We believe
that our prices are competitive due in part tolour cost operating structure and the relativelyitet assortment of products offered.
Purchasing large volumes of merchandise withinfocmsed assortment in each merchandise categomysalls to keep our average costs low,
contributing to our ability to offer competitive enyday low prices to our customers. See "—Our BasgrModel" above for further discussion
of our competitive situation.

Our Employees

As of February 28, 2014, we employed apipnately 100,600 full-time and part-time employeesjuding divisional and regional
managers, district managers, store managers, stitrer personnel and distribution center and adtnatige personnel. We have increasingly
focused on recruiting,




training, motivating and retaining employees, amdbelieve that the quality, performance and masleur employees have increased as a
result. We currently are not a party to any coilecbargaining agreements.

Our Trademarks

We own marks that are registered with théedd States Patent and Trademark Office and ateged under applicable intellectual
property laws, including without limitation the tlamarks Dollar General®, Dollar General Market®owelr Valley®, DG®, Smart &
Simple®, trueliving®, Sweet Smiles®, Open Traildbbie Brooks®, Comfort Bay®, Holiday Style®, andeE Pet™ along with variations
and formatives of these trademarks as well asinesther trademarks. We attempt to obtain registnadf our trademarks whenever practice
and to pursue vigorously any infringement of thoseks. Our trademark registrations have variougratipn dates; however, assuming thai
trademark registrations are properly renewed, ti@ese a perpetual duration.

We also hold licenses to use various tradkmowned by third parties, including a licenséh Fisher Price brand for certain items of
children's clothing through December 31, 2014, améxclusive license to the Rexall brand throughdd®, 2020.

Available Information

Our Internet website address is www.dobaeyal.com. We file with or furnish to the Secestand Exchange Commission (the "SEC")
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports om#+10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendsinthose reports, proxy statements
and annual reports to shareholders, and, from tiintiene, registration statements and other docusndiitese documents are available free of
charge to investors on or through the Investorrinfttion portion of our website as soon as reasgradalcticable after we electronically file
them with or furnish them to the SEC. In addititie public may read and copy any of the materi&dile with the SEC at the SEC's Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington @832 The public may obtain information on the agien of the Public Reference Ror
by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC raaistan internet site that contains reports, pang information statements and other
information regarding issuers, such as Dollar Galnénat file electronically with the SEC. The aglsls of that website is http://www.sec.gov.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risksatidged below and the other information containethia report and other filings that we make
from time to time with the SEC, including our coldated financial statements and accompanying néteg of the following risks could
materially and adversely affect our business, famgrcondition, results of operations or liquidifjhese risks are not the only risks we face.
business, financial condition, results of operagionliquidity could also be adversely affecteddolglitional factors that apply to all companies
generally or by risks not currently known to ughwat we currently view to be immaterial. We canvyide no assurance and make no
representation that our mitigation efforts, althbwge believe they are reasonable, will be succkssfu

Current economic conditions and other eanic factors may adversely affect our financial fermance and other aspects of our
business by negatively impacting our customerspdisable income or discretionary spending, increasiour costs of goods sold and selling,
general and administrative expenses, and adversdigcting our sales or profitability

We believe many of our customers have fixebw incomes and generally have limited discrediry spending dollars. Any factor that
could adversely affect that disposable income walelckrease our customers' spending and could causeistomers to shift their spending to
products other than those sold by us or to ourpesfitable product choices, all of which coulduksn lower net sales, decreases in inventory
turnover, greater markdowns on inventory, a changlee mix of products we sell, and a reductiopiiafitability due to lower margins. Factc
that could reduce our customers' disposable incGomdeover which we exercise no influence includedratnot limited to a further slowdown
the economy, a delayed economic recovery, or @benomic conditions such as increased or sustiigbdunemployment or
underemployment levels, inflation, increases inl &weother energy costs and interest rates, lacwvaflable credit, consumer debt levels, hic
tax rates and other changes in tax laws, concemsgnvernment mandated participation in healthriaisce programs, and decreases in
government subsidies such as unemployment anddesidtance programs.

Many of the factors identified above thifieet disposable income, as well as commodity rdtassportation costs (including the costs of
diesel fuel), costs of labor, insurance and heat#hdoreign exchange rate fluctuations, leasescastasures that create barriers to or increase
the costs associated with international trade, gbsin other laws and regulations and other econéantors, also affect our cost of goods solc
and our selling, general and administrative expgremed may have other adverse consequences whiakewumable to fully anticipate or
control, all of which may adversely affect our sate profitability. We have limited or no abilitp tontrol many of these factors.

Our plans depend significantly on strategiand initiatives designed to increase sales angrove the efficiencies, costs and
effectiveness of our operations, and failure to aehe or sustain these plans could affect our perf@ance adversely.

We have strategies and initiatives (sucthase relating to merchandising, sourcing, shimksate brand, distribution and transportation,
store operations, expense reduction, and reakgstatarious stages of testing, evaluation, anolémentation, upon which we expect to rel
continue to improve our results of operations andrfcial condition and to achieve our financialngaThese initiatives are inherently risky i
uncertain, even when tested successfully, in gggdlication to our business in general. It is gulssthat successful testing can result partially
from resources and attention that cannot be duplica broader implementation, particularly in kgt the diverse geographic locations of our
stores and the fact that our field management gesentralized. General implementation also maydgatively affected by other risk factors
described herein. Successful systemwide implementetlies on consistency of training, stabilityvadrkforce, ease of execution, and the
absence of offsetting factors that can influenseilte adversely. Failure to achieve successfuléempghtation of our
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initiatives or the cost of these initiatives exdegdnanagement's estimates could adversely aftedvusiness, results of operations and
financial condition.

The success of our merchandising initiajymrticularly those with respect to non-consumatérchandise and store-specific products
and allocations, depends in part upon our abititgredict consistently and successfully the prosltitat our customers will demand and to
identify and timely respond to evolving trends entbgraphics and consumer preferences, expectaimhseeds. If we are unable to select
products that are attractive to customers, to nk#ach products at costs that allow us to sell themprofit, or to effectively market such
products, our sales, market share and profitahibityld be adversely affected. If our merchandigfigrts in the non-consumables area or the
higher margin areas within consumables are unssaftdewe could be further adversely affected by ioability to offset the lower margins
associated with our consumables business.

If we cannot open, relocate or remodelrs® profitably and on schedule, our planned futugeowth will be impeded, which would
adversely affect sales.

Our ability to open, relocate and remodefifable stores is a key component of our planfutgre growth. Our ability to timely open
stores and to expand into additional market arepsmids in part on the following factors: the avality of attractive store locations; the
absence of entitlement process or occupancy ddlagsbility to negotiate acceptable lease andldpweent terms; the ability to hire and train
new personnel, especially store managers, in aeffesitive manner; the ability to identify custongemand in different geographic areas;
general economic conditions; and the availabilftgapital funding for expansion. Many of these éastalso affect our ability to successfully
relocate stores, and many of them are beyond auraio

Delays or failures in opening new storesampleting relocations or remodels, or achievingdr than expected sales in new stores, coul
materially adversely affect our growth and/or padfility. We also may not anticipate all of the ibbiages imposed by the expansion of our
operations and, as a result, may not meet ourtsafgeopening new stores, remodeling or relocasiioges or expanding profitably.

Some new stores may be located in areasewire have little or no meaningful experience @mior recognition. Those areas may have
different competitive and market conditions, consutastes and discretionary spending patternsdbaexisting markets, as well as higher
cost of entry, which may cause our new stores timitially less successful than stores in our éngstmarkets. In addition, our alternative
format stores, such as our Dollar General Markdt tma lesser degree our Dollar General Plus sttvave significantly higher capital costs
than our traditional Dollar General stores, anda assult, may increase our financial risk if tligynot perform as expected.

Many new stores will be located in areagmehwe have existing stores. Although we have éapee in these areas, increasing the nur
of locations in these markets may result in inatbreroversaturation and temporarily or permaneththgrt customers and sales from our
existing stores, thereby adversely affecting owaral financial performance.

Our profitability may be negatively affext by inventory shrinkage.

We are subject to the risk of inventoryslasd theft. We experience significant inventomrdéage and cannot be sure that incidences of
inventory loss and theft will decrease in the fatar that the measures we are taking will effetfiveduce the problem of inventory shrinkage.
Although some level of inventory shrinkage is amwwidable cost of doing business, if we were toeeigmce higher rates of inventory
shrinkage or incur increased security costs to ainmyentory theft, our results of operations aindriicial condition could be affected
adversely.
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We face intense competition that couldiimur growth opportunities and adversely impactrdfinancial performance.

The retail business is highly competitivibwespect to price, store location, merchandisaity, assortment and presentation, in-stock
consistency, customer service, aggressive pronmadtamtivity, customers, and employees. We compétenatailers operating discount, mass
merchandise, outlet, warehouse club, grocery, drogyenience, variety and other specialty storbis gompetitive environment subjects us to
the risk of adverse impact to our financial perfarnoe because of the lower prices, and thus ther lmaegins, required to maintain our
competitive position. Also, companies like ourseda customer demographics and other factors, raag limited ability to increase prices in
response to increased costs without losing coniytibsition. This limitation may adversely affectr margins and financial performance.
Certain of our competitors have greater finanalatribution, marketing and other resources thardawand may be able to secure better
arrangements with suppliers than we can. If wetéarbspond effectively to competitive pressures @manges in the retail markets, it could
adversely affect our financial performance.

Competition for customers has intensifisdcampetitors have moved into, or increased thesgnce in, our geographic markets, and we
expect this competition to continue to increaseaddition, some of our large box competitors armay be developing small box formats, and
increasing the pace at which they will open thelbbtx formats, which will produce more competitidife remain vulnerable to the market
power and high level of consumer recognition osthiarger competitors and to the risk that thesepatitors or others could venture into our
industry in a significant way.

Our private brands may not maintain broashrket acceptance and increase the risks we face.

The sale of private brand items is an irtgo@rcomponent of our future sales growth and gposfit rate enhancement plans. We have
invested in our development and procurement ressuand marketing efforts relating to these privagand offerings. We believe that our
success in maintaining broad market acceptancargbrivate brands depends on many factors, incugiicing, our costs, quality and
customer perception. We may not achieve or maimdairexpected sales for our private brands. Thamsipn of our private brand offerings
also subjects us to certain risks, such as: petgodduct liability risks and mandatory or volunt@roduct recalls; our ability to successfully
protect our proprietary rights and successfullyigate and avoid claims related to the proprietayits of third parties; our ability to
successfully administer and comply with applicatatractual obligations and regulatory requiremegusl other risks generally encountered
by entities that source, sell and market exclubrnamded offerings for retail. An increase in safsur private brands may also adversely ai
sales of our vendors' products, which, in turn|d@adversely affect our relationship with certafroar vendors. Any failure to appropriately
address some or all of these risks could haverdfisignt adverse effect on our business, resultspefations and financial condition.

A significant disruption to our distributin network, to the capacity of our distribution cts or to the timely receipt of inventory cot
adversely impact sales or increase our transpodatcosts, which would decrease our profits.

We rely on our distribution and transpadiatnetwork to provide goods to our stores in atymand cost-effective manner. This
distribution occurs through deliveries to our dimition centers from vendors and then from therithistion centers or directhip vendors to ot
stores by various means of transportation, inclydimpments by sea and truck. Any disruption, ungated expense or operational failure
related to this process could affect store opamatitegatively. For example, unexpected delivergydebr increases in transportation costs
(including through increased fuel costs, a decr@atmnsportation capacity for overseas shipmemntsjork stoppages or slowdowns) could
significantly decrease our ability to make saled aarn profits. Labor shortages or work stoppages i
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the transportation industry or long-term disruptida the national and international transportaindrastructure that lead to delays or
interruptions of deliveries or which would neces&tour securing alternative labor or shipping $eppcould also increase our costs or
otherwise negatively affect our business.

We maintain a network of distribution féd#ls and have plans to build new facilities tosog our growth objectives. Delays in opening
distribution centers could adversely affect ouufatfinancial performance by slowing store growthjch may in turn reduce revenue growth,
or by increasing transportation costs. In additatistribution-related construction or expansionj@cts entail risks that could cause delays and
cost overruns, such as: shortages of materialkillgdslabor; work stoppages; unforeseen constonctscheduling, engineering, environmental
or geological problems; weather interference; foesther casualty losses; and unanticipated osstases. The completion date and ultimate
cost of these projects could differ significantfgrh initial expectations due to construction-refabe other reasons. We cannot guarantee that
any project will be completed on time or withinasdtshed budgets.

Risks associated with or faced by our siigys could adversely affect our financial performae.

The products we sell are sourced from awitiety of domestic and international suppliars] we are dependent on our vendors to
supply merchandise in a timely and efficient manieR013, our largest supplier accounted for 8%wfpurchases, and our next largest
supplier accounted for approximately 7% of suctchases. We have not experienced any difficultybitaiming sufficient quantities of core
merchandise and believe that, if one or more ofcourent sources of supply became unavailable, mgdwgenerally be able to obtain
alternative sources without experiencing a substidisruption of our business. However, such aligive sources could increase our
merchandise costs and reduce the quality of ouclmamdise, and an inability to obtain alternativerses could adversely affect our sales.
Additionally, if a supplier fails to deliver on itommitments, whether due to financial difficult@msother reasons, we could experience
merchandise out-of-stocks that could lead to laktssand damage to our reputation.

We directly imported approximately 6% of qurchases (measured at cost) in 2013, but maoyrolomestic vendors directly import
their products or components of their products.r@ea to the prices and flow of these goods forraagon, such as political and economic
instability in the countries in which foreign sujgpk are located, the financial instability of sligs, suppliers' failure to meet our standards,
issues with labor practices of our suppliers ootgiroblems they may experience (such as strikegpages or slowdowns, which could also
increase labor costs during and following the ¢itian), the availability and cost of raw materitdssuppliers, increased import duties,
merchandise quality or safety issues, currency axgé rates, transport availability and cost, trartsgecurity, inflation, and other factors
relating to the suppliers and the countries in Whitey are located or from which they import, aegdnd our control and could adversely af
our operations and profitability. Because a sulistbamount of our imported merchandise comes f@inna, a change in the Chinese curre
or other policies could negatively impact our martiise costs. In addition, the United States' §préiade policies, tariffs and other
impositions on imported goods, trade sanctions sefdmn certain countries, the limitation on thedntgtion of certain types of goods or of
goods containing certain materials from other coestand other factors relating to foreign tradeta@yond our control. These and other fac
affecting our suppliers and our access to produmiitd adversely affect our business and finan@algsgmance. As we increase our imports of
merchandise from foreign vendors, the risks assetiaith foreign imports will increase.
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Product liability and food safety claimsuald adversely affect our business, reputation dimhncial performance.

Despite our best efforts to ensure theityjuahd safety of the products we sell, we mayuddgect to product liability claims from
customers or actions required or penalties assémgsgdvernment agencies relating to products, thioly but not limited to food products that
are recalled, defective or otherwise alleged tbdrenful. Such claims may result from tampering bgiuthorized third parties, product
contamination or spoilage, including the preserfdereign objects, substances, chemicals, othentager residues introduced during the
growing, storage, handling and transportation phaak of our vendors and their products must compith applicable product and food saf
laws, and we are dependent on them to ensuretth@roducts we buy comply with all safety standavde generally seek contractual
indemnification and insurance coverage from oup$aps. However, if we do not have adequate cotteéndemnification or insurance
available, such claims could have a material adveffect on our business, financial condition agglits of operations. Our ability to obtain
indemnification from foreign suppliers may be hiretbby the manufacturers' lack of understanding.&. product liability or other laws,
which may result in our having to respond to claonsomplaints from customers as if we were theufeasturer. Even with adequate insura
and indemnification, such claims could significgrdbmage our reputation and consumer confidenoariproducts. Our litigation expenses
could increase as well, which also could have araly negative impact on our results of operatienen if a product liability claim is
unsuccessful or is not fully pursued.

We are subject to governmental regulatippsocedures and requirements. A significant chanige or noncompliance with, these
regulations could have a material adverse effectaur financial performance.

Our business is subject to numerous an@&sing federal, state and local laws and reguigtid/e routinely incur significant costs in
complying with these regulations. The complexitytted regulatory environment in which we operate tedrelated cost of compliance are
increasing due to expanding and additional legdlragulatory requirements and increased enforceaféarts. New laws or regulations,
particularly those dealing with healthcare refopmduct safety, and labor and employment, amonersttor changes in existing laws and
regulations, particularly those governing the sdilproducts, may result in significant added expsr@a may require extensive system and
operating changes that may be difficult to impletraerd/or could materially increase our cost of ddisiness. Untimely compliance or
noncompliance with applicable regulations or untinge incomplete execution of a required producttkecan result in the imposition of
penalties, including loss of licenses or significtames or monetary penalties, class action litmyabr other litigation, in addition to reputatidna
damage. Additionally, changes in tax laws, therpretation of existing laws, or our failure to @istour reporting positions on examination
could adversely affect our effective tax rate.

Litigation may adversely affect our buss® results of operations and financial condition.

Our business is subject to the risk ofidition by employees, consumers, suppliers, conopgtishareholders, government agencies and
others through private actions, class actions, adtnative proceedings, regulatory actions or otitigation. The number of employment-
related class actions filed each year has contitmattrease, and recent changes and proposedehanBederal and state laws, regulations
and agency guidance may cause claims to rise ewves. Mhe outcome of litigation, particularly clasgion lawsuits, regulatory actions and
intellectual property claims, is difficult to assem quantify. Plaintiffs in these types of lawsutay seek recovery of very large or
indeterminate amounts, and the magnitude of thenpiad loss relating to these lawsuits may remaiknewn for substantial periods of time. In
addition, certain of these lawsuits, if decidedexdely to us or settled by us, may result in ligbihaterial to our financial statements as a
whole or may negatively affect our operating resiflthanges to our business operations are redjuiiee cost to
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defend future litigation may be significant. Thatso may be adverse publicity associated withditan that could negatively affect customer
perception of our business, regardless of whetteeallegations are valid or whether we are ultitydtaund liable. As a result, litigation may
adversely affect our business, results of operatéaomd financial condition. See Note 8 to the cadatgd financial statements for further details
regarding certain of these pending matters.

Natural disasters (whether or not causeddiimate change), unusual weather conditions, pamdic outbreaks, terrorist acts, and
global political events could disrupt business arebult in lower sales and otherwise adversely affear financial performance.

The occurrence of one or more natural thsassuch as hurricanes, fires, floods, tornadoesearthquakes, unusual weather conditions,
pandemic outbreaks, terrorist acts or disruptiabagl political events, such as civil unrest in doi@s in which our suppliers are located, or
similar disruptions could adversely affect our Inesis and financial performance. Uncharacteristggnificant weather conditions can affect
consumer shopping patterns, which could lead tosales or greater than expected markdowns andsalyaffect our short-term results of
operations. To the extent these events resulEmittsure of one or more of our distribution cesitersignificant number of stores, or our
corporate headquarters or impact one or more okeyiisuppliers, our operations and financial penfance could be materially adversely
affected through an inability to make deliveriegpoovide other support functions to our stores #andugh lost sales. In addition, these events
could result in increases in fuel (or other enemyges or a fuel shortage, delays in opening rteves, the temporary lack of an adequate wor
force in a market, the temporary or long-term disian in the supply of products from some domeatid overseas suppliers, the temporary
disruption in the transport of goods from overseasay in the delivery of goods to our distributienters or stores, the inability of customers
to reach or have transportation to our stores thiredfected by such events, the temporary reduadtiche availability of products in our stores
and disruption of our utility services or to oufdrmation systems. These events also can haveettdibpnsequences such as increases in the
costs of insurance if they result in significarddmf property or other insurable damage.

Material damage or interruptions to ourfiarmation systems as a result of external factostaffing shortages or unanticipated
challenges or difficulties in maintaining or updatig our existing technology or developing or implenteng new technology could have a
material adverse effect on our business or resuaifoperations.

We depend on a variety of information tealbgy systems for the efficient functioning of daursiness. Such systems are subject to da
or interruption from power outages, computer atectammunications failures, computer viruses, cybeusty breaches, natural disasters and
human error. Damage or interruption to these systeay require a significant investment to fix goleee them, and we may suffer
interruptions in our operations in the interim andy experience loss or corruption of critical dathich could have a material adverse effect
on our business or results of operations.

We also rely heavily on our informationiieology staff. Failure to meet these staffing nemdy negatively affect our ability to fulfill our
technology initiatives while continuing to provideintenance on existing systems. We rely on ceviirors to maintain and periodically
upgrade many of these systems so that they camuaertb support our business. The software progamporting many of our systems were
licensed to us by independent software develoféws.inability of these developers or us to contitumaintain and upgrade these informatior
systems and software programs would disrupt oraedoe efficiency of our operations if we were uaab convert to alternate systems in an
efficient and timely manner. In addition, costs aadential problems and interruptions associated
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with the implementation of new or upgraded systan technology or with maintenance or adequatestipp existing systems could also
disrupt or reduce the efficiency of our operations.

Failure to attract, train and retain qudied employees, particularly field, store and disttion center managers, while controlling
labor costs, as well as other labor issues, coulidersely affect our financial performance.

Our future growth and performance and pasitustomer experience depends on our abilityttad, train, retain and motivate qualified
employees, many of whom are in positions with histdly high rates of turnover such as field marragad distribution center managers. Our
ability to meet our labor needs, while controlliogr labor costs, is subject to many external fagtimcluding competition for and availability
qualified personnel in a given market, unemploymewtls within those markets, prevailing wage rateimimum wage laws, health and other
insurance costs, and changes in employment andlle (including changes in the process for ouplegees to join a union) or other
workplace regulations (including changes in "eatitent” programs such as health insurance and @aie lprograms). If we are unable to
attract and retain adequate numbers of qualifiepl@yees, our operations, customer service levalssapport functions could suffer. To the
extent a significant portion of our employee bas®nizes, or attempts to unionize, our labor costdd increase. In addition, recently enacted
comprehensive healthcare reform legislation wikly cause our healthcare costs to increase. \iliglsignificant costs of the healthcare
reform legislation will occur after 2013 (as marfittte changes affecting us took effect Januaryd14, if at all, due to provisions of the
legislation being phased in over time, changesutchealthcare costs structure could have a sigmifioegative effect on our business. Our
ability to pass along labor costs to our custonec®nstrained by our low price model.

Our success depends on our executive efcand other key personnel. If we lose key persalror are unable to hire additional
qualified personnel, our business may be harmed.

Our future success depends to a signifidagtee on the skills, experience and efforts ofexecutive officers and other key personnel.
The loss of the services of any of our executifieefs, particularly Richard W. Dreiling, our Chiekecutive Officer, could have a material
adverse effect on our operations. Competition kilesl and experienced management personnel ingeteand our future success will also
depend on our ability to attract and retain quadifpersonnel, and a failure to attract and retaim qualified personnel could have an adverse
effect on our operations. We do not currently maiimkey person life insurance policies with resgieciur executive officers or key personnel.

Our cash flows from operations may be négely affected if we are not successful in managiour inventory balances.

Our inventory balance represented approtaip@8% of our total assets exclusive of goodailtl other intangible assets as of Januar
2014. Efficient inventory management is a key congu of our business success and profitabilityb& successful, we must maintain
sufficient inventory levels and an appropriate prctdnix to meet our customers' demands withouthatlg those levels to increase to such an
extent that the costs to store and hold the gondsly impacts our financial results or that suljact to the risk of increased inventory
shrinkage. If our buying decisions do not accuyapeedict customer trends, we inappropriately ppoeducts or our expectations about
customer spending levels are inaccurate, we mag twatake unanticipated markdowns to dispose oéfoess inventory, which also can
adversely impact our financial results. We contitmécus on ways to reduce these risks, but waaamake assurances that we will be
successful in our inventory management. If we atesnccessful in managing our inventory balancesgcash flows from operations may be
negatively affected.
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Because our business is seasonal to aaterxtent, with the highest volume of net salesidig the fourth quarter, adverse even
during the fourth quarter could materially affectur financial statements as a whole.

We generally recognize our highest volurheet sales during the Christmas selling seasoighwiccurs in the fourth quarter of our fiscal
year. In anticipation of this holiday, we purchas®stantial amounts of seasonal inventory. Adveveats, such as deteriorating econo
conditions, higher unemployment, higher gas pripeblic transportation disruptions, or unanticipbaelverse weather could result in lower-
than-planned sales during the holiday season. Aassxof seasonal merchandise inventory could riésult net sales during the Christmas
selling season fall below seasonal norms or exienta If our fourth quarter sales results weressatially below expectations, our financial
performance and operating results could be adyeesfcted by unanticipated markdowns, especiallygasonal merchandise.

Our current insurance program may exposg to unexpected costs and negatively affect ouafinial performance.

Our insurance coverage reflects deductjlsielé-insured retentions, limits of liability asémilar provisions that we believe are prudent
based on the dispersion of our operations. Howefiere are types of losses we may incur but agaihigth we cannot be insured or which we
believe are not economically reasonable to insureh as losses due to acts of war, employee atalrcether crime, wage and hour and other
employment-related claims, including class actiams] some natural disasters. If we incur thesetoand they are material, our business cou
suffer. Certain material events may result in dizdtisses for the insurance industry and adveisgbact the availability of adequate insurance
coverage or result in excessive premium incredsesffset negative insurance market trends, we ebagt to self-insure, accept higher
deductibles or reduce the amount of coverage porese to these market changes. In addition, wedrsife a significant portion of expected
losses under our workers' compensation, autombaliidity, general liability and group health insunce programs. Unanticipated changes in
any applicable actuarial assumptions and manageaséintates underlying our recorded liabilitiestfgse losses, including expected incre.
in medical and indemnity costs, could result inenatly different expenses than expected undertipesgrams, which could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations arahfifal condition. Although we continue to maintphoperty insurance for catastrophic events
at our store support center and distribution cenige are effectively selfisured for other property losses. If we experiemggeater number
these losses than we anticipate, our financiabperdince could be adversely affected.

Any failure to maintain the security of formation we hold relating to our customers, empé®s and vendors, whether as a result of
cybersecurity attacks or otherwise, could exposedalktigation, government enforcement actions andstly response measures, and could
seriously disrupt our operations and harm our regtion.

In connection with sales, we transmit caefitial credit and debit card information. We diswe access to, collect or maintain private or
confidential information regarding our customerspéoyees and vendors, as well as our business.a¥e ffrocedures and technology in place
to safeguard such data and information. To our kedge, computer hackers have been unable to gegsadto the information stored in our
information systems. However, cyberattacks aredig@volving and becoming increasingly sophistidaidditionally, under certain
circumstances, we may share information with vesdoat assist us in conducting our business, asreztjby law, or with the permission of
the individual. While we have implemented procedumeprotect our information and require appropri@ntrols of our vendors, it is possible
that computer hackers and others might compromissecurity measures or those of our technologyadiner vendors in the future and
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obtain the personal information of our customenspleyees and vendors that we hold or our busimdesmation. A security breach of any
kind could expose us to risks of data loss, litmatgovernment enforcement actions and costlyaesp measures, and could seriously disrup
our operations. Any resulting negative publicitylkbsignificantly harm our reputation which coulause us to lose market share and have ar
adverse effect on our business and financial paidoce.

Deterioration in market conditions or chaes in our credit profile could adversely affect roability to raise additional capital to fund
our operations and limit our ability to pursue ougrowth strategy or other opportunities or to regotchanges in the economy or our
industry.

We obtain and manage liquidity from theifhos cash flow we generate from our operating\diitis and our access to capital markets,
including our credit facility. Changes in the crteaind capital markets, including market disruptjdimsited liquidity and interest rate
fluctuations, may increase the cost of financingkenit more difficult to obtain favorable terms,restrict our access to this source of future
liquidity. There is no assurance that our abilgybtain additional financing through the capitarkets will not be adversely impacted by
economic conditions. Our debt securities currendlye an investment grade rating, and a downgratiésofating likely would make it more
difficult or expensive for us to obtain additiorfimlancing and would increase the cost of borrowinder our credit facility, which could
adversely affect our cash flow and limit our growthategy or other opportunities or our abilityéact to changes in the economy or our
industry.

At January 31, 2014, we had total outstagdiebt (including the current portion of long-teobiligations) of approximately $2.8 billion.
We also had an additional $822.8 million availdbleborrowing under our unsecured revolving créalility. This level of debt could have
important negative consequences to our businedsding:

. requiring a substantial portion of our cash floanfr operations to be dedicated to the payment atjpal and interest on our
indebtedness, therefore reducing our ability toawgecash flow to fund our operations, capital exgpigires and future business
opportunities or repurchase shares of our commumkst

. making it more difficult for us to raise additial capital to fund our operations and pursue oowth strategy, including by
limiting our ability to obtain additional financinfgr working capital, capital expenditures and dsdvice requirements; and

. placing us at a disadvantage compared to our cdtmEetvho are less leveraged and may be bettertahise their cash flow to
fund competitive responses to changing industryketaor economic conditions.

Our debt agreements contain restrictiohgt could limit our flexibility in operating our bsiness.

Our credit facilities and the indenture gming our notes contain various covenants thalddguit our ability to engage in specified typ
of transactions. These covenants limit our andsabsidiaries' ability to, among other things:

. incur indebtedness of subsidiaries;

. create certain liens or encumbrances;

. merge, consolidate, sell or otherwise disposelafraubstantially all of our assets; and
. make any material change in the nature of our legsin

We are also subject to specified finan@sib covenants under our credit facilities. Ouitighto meet these financial ratios can be affe
by events beyond our control, and we cannot agguréhat we will meet these ratios and other comenaA breach of any of these covenants
could resultin a
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default under the agreement governing such indaebtsdand inability to borrow additional amountsearmaur revolving credit facility. Upon
our failure to maintain compliance with these caves, the lenders could elect to declare all ansooutstanding thereunder to be immediatel
due and payable and terminate all commitments teneifurther credit thereunder. If the lenders ursdeh indebtedness accelerate the
repayment of borrowings, we cannot make assurahegsve will have sufficient assets to repay thosgowings, as well as our other
indebtedness, including our outstanding notes.

New accounting guidance or changes in ih&erpretation or application of existing accountgguidance could adversely affect our
financial performance.

The implementation of proposed new accognstandards may require extensive systems, interoeess and other changes that could
increase our operating costs, and may also resahlianges to our financial statements. In partictite implementation of expected future
accounting standards related to leases, as cyritagitig contemplated by the convergence projeetdrst the Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB") and the International Accounting8tards Board ("IASB"), as well as the possible didopof international financial
reporting standards by U.S. registrants, couldireqs to make significant changes to our leaseagement, fixed asset, and other accounting
systems, and, if implemented, are likely to resuftignificant changes to our financial statements.

U.S. generally accepted accounting prirsi@nd related accounting pronouncements, impleentguidelines and interpretations with
regard to a wide range of matters that are releiaotir business involve many subjective assumptiestimates and judgments by our
management. Changes in these rules or their irtiton or changes in underlying assumptions, esésor judgments by our management
could significantly change our reported or expedieancial performance. The outcome of such chaegesd include litigation or regulatory
actions which could have an adverse effect onioantial condition and results of operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of February 28, 2014, we operated 11214l stores located in 40 states as follows:

State
Alabama
Arizona
Arkansas
California
Colorado
Connecticu
Delaware
Florida
Georgia
lllinois
Indiana
lowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maryland
Massachusett
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi

Number of
Stores

State

597
85
32¢
10z
33
15
36
65¢€
632
40t
898
17¢
194
421
461
92
10
33C
33
36¢

Missouri
Nebraske
Nevada

New Hampshire
New Jerse)
New Mexico
New York
North Caroling
Ohio
Oklahomsa
Pennsylvani:
South Carolin:
South Dakot:
Tennesse
Texas

Utah

Vermont
Virginia

West Virginia
Wisconsin

Number of
Stores

39¢
8C
22
9
71
72
28t
611
60¢€
35¢
48¢
42¢
11
57¢
1,19¢
8
2C
307
17¢
11€

Most of our stores are located in leasednges. Individual store leases vary as to thaindgerental provisions and expiration dates. M
stores are subject to build-swit arrangements with landlords, which typicalyry a primary lease term of up to 15 years wittitiple renews
options. We also have stores subject to shorten-keases and many of these leases have renewahspith recent years, an increasing
percentage of our new stores have been subjediltbtb-suit arrangements.

As of February 28, 2014, we operated tweligéribution centers, as described in the follapiable:

Year Approximate Square Approximate Number

Location Opened Footage of Stores Servec

Scottsville, KY 195¢ 720,00( 774
Ardmore, OK 199¢ 1,310,00t 1,38(
South Boston, V£ 1991 1,250,00! 92¢€
Indianola, MS 199¢ 820,00( 80:3
Fulton, MO 199¢ 1,150,001 1,25¢
Alachua, FL 200C 980,00( 947
Zanesville, OF 2001 1,170,00 1,17:
Jonesville, SC 200t 1,120,00t 1,107
Marion, IN 200¢ 1,110,00! 1,17¢
Bessemer, Al 201z 940,00( 1,02¢
Lebec, CA 201z 600,00( 258
Bethel, PA 2014 1,000,00 397
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We lease the distribution centers locate@alifornia, Oklahoma, Mississippi and Missourdaywn the other eight distribution centers in
the table above. Approximately 7.25 acres of the lan which our Kentucky distribution center isdted is subject to a ground lease. As of
January 31, 2014, we leased approximately 621,Q0€re feet of additional temporary warehouse sfmsapport our distribution needs.

Our executive offices are located in appr@ately 302,000 square feet of owned buildings approximately 56,000 square feet of leased
office space in Goodlettsville, Tennessee.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information contained in Note 8 to domsolidated financial statements under the heddiegal proceedings” contained in Part I,
Item 8 of this report is incorporated herein bystréference.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

None.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information regarding our current execuifficers as of March 20, 2014 is set forth bel&ach of our executive officers serves at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and is elecadiually by the Board to serve until a successduly elected. There are no familial
relationships between any of our directors or etieewfficers.

Name Age Position

Richard W. Dreiling 60 Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Todd J. Vaso 52 Chief Operating Office

David M. Tehle 57 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
David D'Arezzc 55 Executive Vice President and Chief Merchandisinfjoef
John W. Flanigal 62 Executive Vice President, Global Supply Ch

Robert D. Ravene 55 Executive Vice President and Chief People Off
Gregory A. Spark 53 Executive Vice President, Store Operati

Anita C. Elliott 49 Senior Vice President and Control

Rhonda M. Taylo 46 Senior Vice President and General Coul

Mr. Dreiling joined Dollar General in January 2008 as Chief ltige Officer and a member of our Board. He wasoamed Chairman
of the Board on December 2, 2008. Prior to joiridlar General, Mr. Dreiling served as Chief ExéeoaitOfficer, President and a director of
Duane Reade Holdings, Inc. and Duane Reade Irclatbest drugstore chain in New York City, fromvgmber 2005 until January 2008 and
as Chairman of the Board of Duane Reade from M2a@gy until January 2008. Prior to that, Mr. Draililbeginning in March 2005, served as
Executive Vice President—Chief Operating Officel.ohgs Drug Stores Corporation, an operator ofarchf retail drug stores on the West
Coast and Hawaii, after having joined Longs in 2093 as Executive Vice President and Chief OpmratOfficer. From 2000 to 2003,
Mr. Dreiling served as Executive Vice President—Rkéding, Manufacturing and Distribution at Safewayg.| a food and drug retailer. Prior to
that, Mr. Dreiling served from 1998 to 2000 as Riest of Vons, a Southern California food and ddiigsion of Safeway. He currently serves
as the Chairman of the Retail Industry Leaders gission (RILA). Mr. Dreiling is a director of Lowg'Companies, Inc.

Mr. Vasosjoined Dollar General in December 2008 as ExecWiiwe President, Division President and Chief Maradising Officer. He
was promoted to Chief Operating Officer in Novem®@t 3. Prior to joining Dollar General, Mr. Vas@s\&ed in executive positions with
Longs Drug Stores Corporation for 7 years, inclgdiixecutive Vice President and Chief Operating ¢effi(February 2008 through November
2008) and Senior Vice President and Chief MercteangiOfficer (2001 - 2008), where he was respoedit all pharmacy and front-end
marketing, merchandising, procurement, supply cledmertising, store development, store layoutspate allocation, and the operation of
three distribution centers. He also previously sdrin leadership positions at Phar-Mor Food andyDng. and Eckerd Corporation.

Mr. Tehle joined Dollar General in June 2004 as Executivee\Recesident and Chief Financial Officer. He serfveth 1997 to June 2004
as Executive Vice President and Chief Financialg@ffof Haggar Corporation, a manufacturing, manigeand retail corporation. From 1996
to 1997, he was Vice President of Finance for &itim of The Stanley Works, one of the world's &stigmanufacturers of tools, and from 1993
to 1996, he was Vice President and Chief Finar@ffiter of Hat Brands, Inc., a hat manufacturenligain his career, Mr. Tehle served in a
variety of financial-related roles at Ryder Systéme, and Texas Instruments Incorporated. Mr. Téhkedirector of Jack in the Box Inc.

Mr. D'Arezzojoined Dollar General in November 2013 as Execuliiee President and Chief Merchandising OfficeioPto Dollar
General, from May 2008 until August 2013, Mr. D'aze served as Executive Vice President and Chief&jng Officer of Grocers
Supply Co., Inc., the largest
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independent wholesaler in the southern United Stagrving over 800 supermarkets with a full-lifi@r@ducts for resale. In this role, he was
responsible for all functions and the running & tholesale business. From 2006 to 2008, he sawv&etnior Vice President and Chief
Marketing Officer of Duane Reade, Inc., the largirsigstore chain in New York City, and as its Imte€hief Executive Officer for four
months in 2008. Prior to Duane Reade, he servé&has Operating Officer of Raley's Family of Stardkorthern California's premier
supermarket operating 120 stores in three westatess from 2003 to 2005. From 2002 to 2003, heeskas Executive Vice President of
Merchandising and Replenishment at Office Depat,, la global supplier of office products and sezgid-rom 1994 to 2002, Mr. D'Arezzo
held various positions at Wegmans Food Market paisunarket operator, including Senior Vice Presiddmflerchandising (1998 - 2002),
Division Manager (1997) and Group Manager (199896). He worked as Vice President of Sales at DiNghtPTechnology, a biotechnology
start-up company, in 1994. He also held varioustipos at PepsiCo, Inc. from 1989 to 1993, inclgdBusiness Development Manager, Area
Marketing Manager, Brand Manager—Diet Pepsi and Revducts Assistant Marketing Manager.

Mr. Flanigan joined Dollar General as Senior Vice Presidentb@l&Gupply Chain in May 2008. He was promoted tedtrive Vice
President in March 2010. He has over 25 years oiag@ment experience in retail logistics. Priowiaing Dollar General, he was Group Vice
President of Logistics and Distribution for Longeud Stores Corporation, an operator of a chairetilrdrug stores on the West Coast and
Hawaii, from October 2005 to April 2008. In thidephe was responsible for overseeing warehougibgund and outbound transportation i
facility maintenance to service over 500 retaill@ist From September 2001 to October 2005, he dexv¢he Vice President of Logistics for
Safeway Inc., a food and drug retailer, where hersaw distribution of food products from Safewastidbution centers to all retail outlets,
inbound traffic and transportation. He also hasl lditribution and logistics leadership positioh¥ans—a Safeway company, Specialized
Distribution Management Inc., and Crum & Crum Ldigis.

Mr. Ravenerjoined Dollar General as Senior Vice President@hif People Officer in August 2008. He was prorddte Executive Vic
President in March 2010. Prior to joining Dollarr@eal, he served in human resources executive withsStarbucks Corporation, a roaster,
marketer and retailer of specialty coffee, fromtBSegber 2005 until August 2008 as the Senior Viasient of U.S. Partner Resources and,
prior to that, as the Vice President, Partner Ressd—Eastern Division. As the Senior Vice Presidéii.S. Partner Resources at Starbucks,
Mr. Ravener oversaw all aspects of human resowrcigty for more than 10,000 stores. Prior to g&gat Starbucks, Mr. Ravener held Vice
President of Human Resources roles for The HomeOep., a home improvement retailer, at its S®upport Center and a domestic field
division from April 2003 to September 2005. Mr. Raer also served in executive roles in both hureaaurces and operations at Footstar,
and roles of increasing leadership at PepsiCo, Inc.

Mr. Sparksjoined Dollar General in March 2012 as Executiveé/President of Store Operations. Prior to joirdudjar General,
Mr. Sparks served as Division President, Seattlésioin, for Safeway Inc., a food and drug retaiterple he had held since 2001. As Division
President of the Seattle Division, Mr. Sparks wesponsible for the supervision of approximately &tles and approximately 23,000
employees in the northwest region and oversawerstake, finance and operations of the Seattle Dividir. Sparks has 37 years of retail
experience including a 34-year career with Safewiagre he held roles of increasing responsibiligiiding merchandising manager (1987),
category manager (1987 - 1990), divisional direofanerchandising, grocery and general merchan(d®@0 - 1997) and divisional vice
president of marketing (1997 - 2001).

Ms. Elliott joined Dollar General as Senior Vice President@adtroller in August 2005. Prior to joining Doll&eneral, she served as
Vice President and Controller of Big Lots, Incglaseout retailer, from May 2001 to August 2005e€eeing a staff of 140 employees at Big
Lots, she was responsible for accounting operatiimeancial reporting and internal audit. Priors&rving at Big
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Lots, she served as Vice President and Contraileditney-Jungle Stores of America, Inc., a grocetgiler, from April 1998 to March 2001.
At Jitney-Jungle, Ms. Elliott was responsible floe taccounting operations and the internal and matéinancial reporting functions. Prior to
serving at Jitney-Jungle, she practiced public asting for 12 years, 6 of which were with Ernst &uhg LLP.

Ms. Taylorjoined Dollar General as an Employment Attorneiarch 2000 and was promoted to Senior EmploymetarAgy in 2001.
She was promoted to Deputy General Counsel in 20@4hen moved into the role of Vice PresidentAssistant General Counsel in March
2010. She has served as Senior Vice President andrél Counsel since June 2013. Prior to joininti@D&eneral, she practiced law with
Ogletree, Deakins, Nash, Smoak & Stewart, P.C.ravhke specialized in labor law and employmemgdiion. She has also held attorney
positions with Ford & Harrison LLP and Stokes & Berlomew.
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the New Y@idck Exchange under the symbol "DG." The highlamdsales prices during each quarter
in fiscal 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
2013 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
High $ 53.0C $ 558 $ 59.87 $ 62.9¢
Low $ 4335 $ 48.61 $ 52.4( $ 55.0¢

First Second Third Fourth
2012 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
High $ 48.7¢ $ 56.0¢ $ 53.3¢ $ 50.8(
Low $ 41.2( $ 4537 $ 4558 $ 39.7¢

On March 13, 2014, our stock price at thse of the market was $57.66 and there were appedgly 1,760 shareholders of record of oul
common stock.

Dividends

We have not declared or paid recurringdéimids subsequent to a merger transaction in 208y décision to declare and pay dividends in
the future will be made at the discretion of oumBbof Directors and will depend on, among othergs, our results of operations, cash
requirements, financial condition, contractual iebns and other factors that our Board of Dioestmay deem relevant.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table contains informatiorgeeding purchases of our common stock made duniagjtarter ended January 31, 2014 by or
on behalf of Dollar General or any "affiliated pbaser,” as defined by Rule 10b-18(a)(3) of the Bttesi Exchange Act of 1934:

Approximate

Total Number Dollar Value
of Shares Purchased of Shares that May
Total Number Average as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
of Shares Price Paid Announced Plans or Under the Plans
Period Purchased per Share Programs(a) or Programs(a)
11/02/13 -
11/30/13 — 3 = — $ 223,591,00
12/01/13 -
12/31/13 3,280,900 $ 60.9¢ 3,280,901 $ 1,023,513,00
01/01/14 -
01/31/14 — 3 = — $ 1,023,513,00
Total 3,280,901 $ 60.9¢ 3,280,901 $ 1,023,513,00

(a) A $500 million share repurchase program wasiply announced on September 5, 2012, and incssiasthe
authorization under such program were announcedanch 25, 2013 ($500 million increase) and Decenabher
2013 ($1.0 billion increase). Under the authoramatipurchases may be made in the open marketpriviately
negotiated transactions from time to time subjechairket and other conditions. This repurchasecaiztition has
no expiration date
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selectedsmlitated financial information of Dollar Generadi@oration as of the dates and for the periods
indicated. The selected historical statement ofatns data and statement of cash flows datahfofiscal years ended January 31, 2014,
February 1, 2013, and February 3, 2012 and balsimeet data as of January 31, 2014 and Februa813, Bave been derived from our
historical audited consolidated financial stateraémtluded elsewhere in this report. The selecisitical statement of operations data and
statement of cash flows data for the fiscal yeaded January 28, 2011 and January 29, 2010 anddeasheet data as of February 3, 2012,
January 28, 2011, and January 29, 2010 presenthisitable have been derived from audited conat#idi financial statements not included in

this report.

The information set forth below should bad in conjunction with, and is qualified by refeze to, the Consolidated Financial Statement:
and related notes included in Part Il, Item 8 @f teport
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(Amounts in millions, excluding per
share data,

number of stores, selling square feet, an
net sales

per square foot)

Statement of Operations Data:

Net sales

Cost of goods sol

Gross profit

Selling, general and
administrative expenst

Operating profi

Interest expens

Other (income) expen:

Income before income tax

Income tax expens

Net income

Earnings per sha—basic
Earnings per sha—diluted
Dividends per shar

Statement of Cash Flows Date

Net cash provided by (used il
Operating activitie:
Investing activities
Financing activitie:

Total capital expenditure

Other Financial and Operating
Data:

Same store sales growth

Same store sales(

Number of stores included
same store sales calculati
Number of stores (at period er
Selling square feet (in thousan

at period end
Net sales per square foot
Consumables sal
Seasonal sale
Home products sale
Apparel sale:
Rent expens

Balance Sheet Data (at period
end):

Cash and cash equivalents an
shor-term investment

Total asset

Long-term debt

Total shareholders' equi

1)

and the Management's Discussion and Analysis d@rigiial Condition and Results of Operations inclusheBart II, Item 7 of this report.

Year Ended
January 31, February 1, February 3, January 28, January 29,
2014 2013 2012(1) 2011 2010
$ 17,504.; $ 16,022.. $ 14,807.. $ 13,035.( $ 11,796..
12,068.: 10,936.° 10,109.. 8,858.¢ 8,106.¢
5,435." 5,085.¢ 4,697.¢ 4,176.¢ 3,689.¢
3,699.¢ 3,430.: 3,207.: 2,902.! 2,736.¢
1,736.: 1,655.! 1,490.¢ 1,274.: 953.:
89.C 127.¢ 204.¢ 274.C 345.¢
18.¢€ 30.C 60.€ 15.1 55.k
1,628.: 1,497.¢ 1,225.: 985.( 552.1
603.2 544 458.¢ 357.1 2125
$ 1,025 % 952.7 $ 766.71 $ 627.¢ $ 339.4
$ 317 $ 287 $ 225 % 1.8/ $ 1.0t
3.17 2.8t 2.2z 1.82 1.04
— — — — 0.752¢
$ 1213. $ 1,131« $ 1,050!f % 824.7 $ 672.¢
(250.0) (569.9 (513.9) (418.9 (248.0)
(598.9) (546.9) (908.0) (130.9) (580.7)
(538.9) (571.6) (514.9) (420.2) (250.7)
3.3% 4.7% 6.C% 4.€% 9.5%
$ 16,365.! $ 14,992 $ 13,626." $ 12,227.. $ 11,356.!
10,38 9,78: 9,25¢ 8,71 8,32«
11,13 10,50¢ 9,931 9,372 8,82¢
82,01: 76,90¢ 71,77¢ 67,09/ 62,49
$ 22C $ 21€ $ 212 $ 201 $ 19t
75.2% 73.% 73.2% 71.6% 70.8%
12.9% 13.6% 13.8% 14.5% 14.5%
6.4% 6.€% 6.8% 7.C% 7.4%
5.5% 5.9% 6.2% 6.€% 7.2%
$ 686.¢ $ 614.. $ 542.7 % 489.: $ 428.€
$ 505.¢ $ 140.6 $ 126.1 % 497.¢ $ 222.1
10,867.! 10,367. 9,688.t 9,546.: 8,863.!
2,818.¢ 2,772.. 2,618t 3,288.. 3,403.¢
5,402.; 4,985.! 4,674.¢ 4,063.¢ 3,408.¢
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(2) Same-store sales are calculated based upon statesdre open at least 13 full fiscal months amdaie open at the end
of the reporting period. We include stores thatenlagen remodeled, expanded or relocated in our-store sales
calculation. When applicable, we exclude the sialése non-comparable week of a 53-week year fioensame-store
sales calculation.

3) Net sales per square foot was calculated baseatalrstles for the preceding 12 months as of thiengrdate of the
reporting period divided by the average sellingasgufootage during the period, including the entheffiscal year, the
beginning of the fiscal year, and the end of edabuo three interim fiscal quartel

Year Ended
January 31, February 1, February 3, January 28, January 29,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Ratio of earnings to fixed
charges(1) 4.7x 4.7x 3.8x 3.1x 2.1x

Q) For purposes of computing the ratio of earningéxted charges, (a) earnings consist of income Ylbsfore income taxe
plus fixed charges less capitalized expenses tetatidebtedness (amortization expense for cageinterest is not
significant) and (b) fixed charges consist of ietrexpense (whether expensed or capitalizedytizetization of debt
issuance costs and discounts related to indebtedaied the interest portion of rent expel
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis should be read witld, ia qualified in its entirety by, the Consolidhteénancial Statements and the notes
thereto. It also should be read in conjunction wiik Cautionary Disclosure Regarding Forward-LoakBtatements and the Risk Factors
disclosures set forth in the Introduction and ienit 1A of this report, respectively.

Executive Overview

We are the largest discount retailer inlimi¢ed States by number of stores, with 11,21Eesttocated in 40 states as of February 28, :
primarily in the southern, southwestern, midwesterd eastern United States. We offer a broad $eteot merchandise, including consume
products such as food, paper and cleaning produetdth and beauty products and pet supplies, anecansumable products such as season:
merchandise, home decor and domestics, and bgsacedpln 2013, we began selling tobacco productaur stores, with very favorable
response from our customers. Our merchandise iaslbgjh quality national brands from leading maouufigers, as well as comparable quality
private brand selections with prices at substadi@dounts to national brands. We offer our custsrtigese national brand and private brand
products at everyday low prices (typically $10e8d) in our convenient small-box (small store) tioce.

The customers we serve are value-conscmasy with low or fixed incomes, and Dollar Gendras always been intensely focused on
helping them make the most of their spending delldfe believe our convenient store format and beselction of high quality products at
compelling values have driven our substantial ghoawtd financial success over the years. Like atberpanies, we have been operating for
several years in an environment with ongoing mamyoemic challenges and uncertainties. Our custoarerfacing sustained high rates of
unemployment or underemployment, fluctuating fagasoline and energy costs, rising and uncertairigalecbsts, including concerns over
government mandated participation in health instggrograms, reductions in government benefitsrarog, continued challenges with
affordable housing and consumer credit, and thettible and strength of economic recovery for oue costomers remains uncertain. The
longer our customers have to manage under sudbutif€onditions, the more difficult it is for theto stretch their spending dollars,
particularly for discretionary purchases.

At the beginning of 2008, we defined fopemting priorities, which we remain keenly focusedexecuting. These priorities are: 1) drive
productive sales growth, 2) increase, or enhangegiss profit margins 3) leverage process impre@s and information technology to
reduce costs, and 4) strengthen and expand Dodlaeq@l's culture of serving others.

Ouir first priority is driving productive &g growth, including by increasing shopper fregyefitem unit sales and transaction amount. In
2013, sales in same-stores increased by 3.3% & |RBvels due to increases in both traffic andaye transaction. Successful sales growth
initiatives in 2013 included the addition of tobagqroducts; the expansion of the number of codtarsefrigerated and frozen foods and
beverages in over 1,600 existing stores; the opétiun of shelf space, including the reduction afiing apparel in many of our smaller st
and the impact of 582 remodeled and relocatedsthuwgng the year. Inflation had a very modest iobma our sales in 2013 and 2012. In
addition to same-store sales growth, we openec&®0stores.

Our second priority is to increase, or erdea our gross profit rate. However, in early 2048 made a strategic decision to add tobacco
products in our stores with the primary goal ofr@asing customer traffic. The addition of tobacoadpicts and the increased proportion of
sales of perishables, largely resulting from ounticmed expansion of coolers in the stores, bathidea decrease in our overall gross profit rat
in 2013. We believe that both of these merchantlassses are significant drivers of customer trdffat should lead to increases to average
purchase amount. We expect the
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improvement in our net sales from these initiatmdsoutweigh the corresponding reduction in ouwogs profit rate. In addition, we have
ongoing efforts to reduce product costs includifigative category management, utilization of prezatands, shrink reduction, distribution anc
transportation efficiencies and additional improeens to our pricing and markdown business modebranothers, while remaining commit

to our everyday low price strategy. In our consul@slbategory, we strive to offer the optimal batan€the most popular nationally advertisec
brands and our own private brands, which genehallye higher gross profit rates than national bravs believe that our core customer is
continuing to seek out and purchase goods at éntey price points and are doing so with greategfiency. Commodities cost inflation was
minimal in 2013 and, in some instances, we expeedra decrease in such costs. Accordingly, ovpriaé increases passed through to our
customers were minimal. We remain committed tosaasonal, home, and apparel categories, and alttomngumables sales trends are
weaker than we would like, we expect the growtl@fsumables to continue to outpace the non-condesiaategories again in 2014 due to
the anticipated continued economic pressures discugbove.

Our third priority is leveraging processpmavements and information technology to reducéscdé¥e are committed as an organization to
reduce costs, particularly selling, general andiathtnative expenses ("SG&A") that do not affea tustomer experience. In 2013, the most
significant decrease in SG&A as a percentage eksad compared to 2012 resulted from our failureach our 2013 threshold financial
performance level required under our annual casénitive compensation program, which would have cedwcash incentive compensation for
eligible employees to zero. However, the Companlpsly a nominal discretionary amount to memberthisf group who are not Company
officers. In addition, we again successfully lowkoair store labor costs as a percentage of salesri, by simplifying various tasks performed
in the stores. Going forward, we will continue bmplify or eliminate unnecessary work in our stoaesl elsewhere in the company and believ
we have additional opportunities to reduce costsutph our focused procurement efforts. Certains;astch as new legislation and regulations
related to health care insurance requirementsepte@sunique challenge to our ability to leverageedses. Because of the significance of the
reduction in incentive compensation in 2013, coarpie with certain provisions of the Affordable CArt in 2014, and an increase in 2014
store occupancy costs resulting from the recenfpbeton of a saldeaseback transaction, we expect overall SG&A ta begher percentage
sales in 2014 than in 2013.

Our fourth priority is to strengthen angard Dollar General's culture of serving others.dtstomers this means helping them "Save
time. Save money. Every day!" by providing cleae]lvstocked stores with quality products at lowcpd. For employees, this means creating
an environment that attracts and retains key enggl®yhroughout the organization. For the publis, feans giving back to our store
communities through our charitable and other effdfor shareholders, this means meeting their éxfi@es of an efficiently and profitably n
organization that operates with compassion andjiitye

Although we did not meet all of our finaalafjoals in 2013, our continued focus on these fwiarities, coupled with strong cash flow
management and share repurchases, resulted iroselidll operating and financial performance in2@% compared to 2012 as follows. Basis
points, as referred to below, are equal to 0.0tewrof total sales.

. Total sales in 2013 increased 9.2% over 2012. Salesme-stores increased 3.3%, with increasestmdustomer traffic and
average transaction amount. Consumables represeb¥df sales in 2013 and drove 89% of the totakiase. Departments
with the most significant increases were tobaceoispables and candy and snacks. Average salegpare foot in 2013 were
$220, up from $216 in 2012.

. Operating profit increased 4.9% to $1.74 billion9®% of sales, compared to $1.66 billion, or W& sales in 2012. The

decrease in our operating profit rate was attribletéo a 69 basis-point decrease in our grosstpwai@, partially offset by a 27
basis-point reduction of SG&A.
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. Our gross profit rate declined by 69 basis poistsaes of lower margin items increased at a ptmmaily higher rate than sal
of higher margin items. Specifically, we added tmmaproducts and expanded our perishables offerbah of which have
lower gross profit rates. In addition, our invegtshrinkage rate increased.

. The reduction in SG&A, as a percentage of sales, due primarily to a significant decrease ireiritve compensation expense
and efficiencies relating to store labor costs. dtber factors, see the detailed discussion thiate.

. Interest expense decreased by $38.9 million in 20 E89.0 million, reflecting lower average borragirates which primarily
resulted from the completion of our refinancinghe first quarter of 2013. Total long-term obligets as of January 31, 2014
were $2.82 billion.

. We reported net income of $1.03 billion, or $3ger diluted share, for fiscal 2013, compareddbimcome of $952.7 million, or
$2.85 per diluted share, for fiscal 2012.

. We generated approximately $1.21 billion of caslwfl from operating activities in 2013, an increas@.2% compared to 201
We primarily utilized our cash flows from operatiagtivities to invest in the growth of our businassl repurchase our comm
stock.

. During 2013 we opened 650 new stores, remodmleelocated 582 stores, and closed 24 stores.

Also in 2013, we repurchased approximatdlyp million shares of our outstanding common sfocks620.1 million, and we sold and
leased back 233 of our stores, generating castepdsoof $281.6 million and resulting in a defegadh of $67.2 million that will be
recognized over a period of 15 years.

In 2014, we plan to continue to focus onfour key operating priorities. We expect our sajeowth in 2014 to again be driven by
consumables as our customer continues to facecohatinuing and new economic challenges. We pldndos our efforts on effectively
serving our core customers' needs by providing tivimthe selections they want at the right prionps in 2014.

We made progress in 2013 on implementingrgmoved supply chain solution to assist in praoml and core inventory forecasting and
ordering. We expect to make further progress ird2@hd eventually all of our SKUs will be managlebtigh this solution. The supply chain
solution is helping us improve our ordering proesss the stores and has contributed to our wonlication efforts and improvements in
maintaining efficient inventory levels. We beliewe have additional opportunities for work simplifimon and elimination in 2014.

We are pleased with the performance of20113 new stores, remodels and relocations, an@id %ve plan to open 700 new stores and t
continue our ongoing remodel and relocation efforts

Finally, we plan to continue to repurchabkares of our common stock in 2014.

Key Financial Metrics. We have identified the following as our mostical financial metrics:

. Same-store sales growth;

. Sales per square foot;

. Gross profit, as a percentage of sales;

. Selling, general and administrative expenses, @ercentage of sales;

. Operating profit;
. Cash flow;

. Net income;
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. Earnings per share;

. Earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciaia amortization;
. Return on invested capital; and
. Adjusted debt to Earnings before interest, incoaxes, depreciation and amortization and rent expens

Readers should refer to the detailed dsonsof our operating results below for additiocamments on financial performance in the
current year periods as compared with the prior pesaods.

Results of Operations

Accounting Periods. The following text contains references to yei$3, 2012, and 2011, which represent fiscal yeaded
January 31, 2014, February 1, 2013, and Februat912, respectively. Our fiscal year ends on thédyrclosest to January 31. Fiscal years
2013 and 2012 were 52-week accounting periodsiandlfyear 2011 was a 53-week accounting period.

Seasonality. The nature of our business is seasonal totaierxtent. Primarily because of sales of holidaigted merchandise, sales in
our fourth quarter (November, December and Janueayg historically been higher than sales achi@vedch of the first three quarters of the
fiscal year. Expenses, and to a greater extenatipgrprofit, vary by quarter. Results of a perstarter than a full year may not be indicative
of results expected for the entire year. Furtheemthre seasonal nature of our business may affecparisons between periods.
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The following table contains results of @i®ns data for fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2@l the dollar and percentage variances amot

those years.

(amounts in
millions, except
per share
amounts)

Net sales b
category:
Consumable
% of net sale

Seasona

% of net sale

Home
products

% of net sale

Apparel

% of net sale

Net sales

Cost of good
sold

% of net sale

Gross profit

% of net sale

Selling,
general an
administras
expense:

% of net sale

Operating
profit

% of net sale

Interest
expense

% of net sale

Other
(income)
expense

% of net sale

Income
before
income
taxes

% of net sale

Income taxe:

% of net sale

Net income

% of net sale

Diluted
earnings
per share

2013 vs. 201! 2012 vs. 201:
Amount Amount
2013 2012 2011 Change % Change Change % Change
$ 13,161.{ $ 11,844.% $ 10,833." $1,317.0 11.1%%$1,011.1 9.3%
75.19% 73.93% 73.17%
2,259t 2,172.. 2,051.: 87.1 4.0 121.3 5.9
12.91% 13.56% 13.85%
1,115.¢ 1,061.¢ 1,005.: 54.1 51 56.4 5.6
6.37% 6.63% 6.79%
967.2 943.% 917.1 23.9 2.5 26.2 2.9
5.53% 5.89% 6.19%
$ 17,504.; $ 16,022.. $ 14,807.. $1,482.0 9.2%% 1,214.9 8.2%
12,068.- 10,936. 10,109.. 1,131.7 10.3 827.4 8.2
68.95% 68.26% 68.27%
5,435." 5,085.- 4,697.¢ 350.3 6.9 387.5 8.2
31.05% 31.74% 31.73%
3,699.¢ 3,430.: 3,207.: 269.4 7.9 223.0 7.0
21.14% 21.41% 21.66%
1,736.: 1,655. 1,490.¢ 80.9 4.9 164.5 11.0
9.92% 10.33% 10.07%
89.C 127.¢ 204.¢ (38.9) (30.4) (77.0)  (37.6)
0.51% 0.80% 1.38%
18.¢ 30.C 60.€ (11.1)  (37.0) (30.7)  (50.6)
0.11% 0.19% 0.41%
1,628.1 1,497 .. 1,225.1 130.9 8.7 272.1 22.2
9.30% 9.35% 8.27%
603.2 544.; 458.¢ 58.5 10.7 86.1 18.8
3.45% 3.40% 3.10%
$ 1,025. $ 9527 $ 766.7 $ 725 7.6%%$ 186.0 24.3%
5.86% 5.95% 5.18%
$ 317 $ 28t $ 22z $ 032 11.2%$ 0.63 28.4%

Net Sales. The net sales increase in 2013 reflects a sdare-sales increase of 3.3% compared to 2012048, there were 10,387
same-stores which accounted for sales of $16.8@rbilSame-stores include stores that have beem fapet least 13 months and remain open
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in sstore sales are calculated based on the comparaleledar weeks in the prior year, and
include stores that have been remodeled, expandetboated.. The remainder of the increase irsgal2013 was attributable to new stores,
partially offset by sales from closed stores. Tiwreéase in sales reflects increased customerctiifi average transaction amounts. Increas
sales of consumables outpaced our non-consumabtassales of tobacco products, perishables, andyca
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and snacks contributing the majority of the inceed®bacco was added in the stores primarily dutiedirst and second quarters. The
expansion of coolers for perishables in over 1 &Xi6ting stores was completed in the first halfhef year while other initiatives, including
space optimization in many of our smaller storem;enmplemented throughout the year.

The net sales increase in 2012 reflectargesstore sales increase of 4.7% compared to Fot 2012, there were 9,783 sasteres whicl
accounted for sales of $14.99 billion. The remairalehe increase in sales in 2012 was attributbleew stores, partially offset by sales from
closed stores. The increase in sales reflectsaserecustomer traffic and average transaction atsoas a result of the refinement of our
merchandise offerings, improvements in our categuapagement processes and store standards, aedsedrutilization of square footage in
our stores. Increases in sales of consumablesardpaur norconsumables, with sales of snacks, candy, bevemgkperishables contributii
the majority of the increase throughout the year.

Of our four major merchandise categories,donsumables category, which generally has arlgmass profit rate than the other three
categories, has grown most significantly over thstgeveral years. Because of the impact of saleemrgross profit, we continually review
our merchandise mix and strive to adjust it wheprapriate.

Gross Profit.  The gross profit rate as a percentage of sess31.1% in 2013 compared to 31.7% in 2012. Quosf# increased by
6.9% in 2013, and as a percentage of sales, decrbgt9 basis points. The majority of the grosdiprate decrease in 2013 as compared to
2012 was due to consumables comprising a largéiopasf our net sales, primarily as the resultrafreased sales of lower margin consume
including tobacco products and expanded perishalffesngs, all of which contributed to lower irtiinventory markups. In addition, we
experienced a higher inventory shrinkage ratejglgrattributable to the addition of certain congble products with relatively higher retail
prices. These factors were partially offset byduntion in net purchase costs on certain prodiitts.Company recorded a LIFO benefit of
$11.0 million in 2013 compared to a LIFO provisiafi$1.4 million in 2012.

The gross profit rate as a percentagele§saas 31.7% in both 2012 and 2011. Factors fépimpacting our gross profit rate include a
significantly lower LIFO provision, higher inventomarkups, and improved transportation efficiendes in part to a decrease in average
miles per delivery enabled by our new distributi@mters and other logistics initiatives. These tpasfactors were offset by higher
markdowns, a reduction in price increases and aestadcrease in our inventory shrinkage rate cosgpsr 2011. In addition, consumables,
which generally have lower markups than rmamsumables, represented a greater percentagkesfis2012 than in 2011. We recorded a L
provision of $1.4 million in 2012 compared to a $#million provision in 2011, primarily as a resaftlower inflation on commodities.

SG&A Expense. SG&A expense was 21.1% as a percentage of isaP#4 3 compared to 21.4% in 2012, an improvernél basis
points. We had a significant decrease in incentiv@pensation expense, as 2013 financial performdidceot satisfy certain performance
requirements under our cash incentive compensptimgram. Retail labor expense increased at aoaterlthan our increase in sales. Declines
in workers' compensation and general liability enxges also contributed to the overall decrease &/S€xpense as a percentage of sales. The
above items were partially offset by certain ctlsés increased from 2012 to 2013 at a rate hidhear bur increase in sales, including
depreciation and amortization and fees associatithe increased volume of customer purchasesai@ad with debit cards.

SG&A expense was 21.4% as a percentagaled ;1 2012 compared to 21.7% in 2011, an impr@reraf 25 basis points. Retail labor
expense increased at a lower rate than our incieasdes, partially due to ongoing benefits of warkforce management system coupled witt
savings due to various store work simplificatioitiftives. Also positively impacting SG&A expensasvower legal
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settlement costs in 2012 due to two legal mattetttesl in 2011 for a combined expense of $13.lioniland the impact of decreased expense:s
($2.9 million in 2012 compared to $11.1 million2011) relating to secondary offerings of our comratatk. Costs that increased at a rate
higher than our sales increase include rent expéese associated with the increased use of defiisand depreciation expense, primarily
related to additions of certain store equipmentfadres.

Interest Expense. The decrease in interest expense in 2013 cadpar2012 is due to lower all-in interest ratémgrily resulting from
the completion of our refinancing in April 2013.eSthe detailed discussion under "Liquidity and @dpgResources" regarding refinancing of
various long-term obligations and the related dftecinterest expense in the periods presented.

The decrease in interest expense in 204faced to 2011 is due to lower average outstaridimgrterm obligations, resulting from the
redemption, repurchase and refinancing of indetgtssim 2012 and 2011 and lower all-in interestrateour long-term obligations.

We had outstanding variable-rate debt 014®illion and $1.39 billion as of January 31, 2@hd February 1, 2013, respectively, after
taking into consideration the impact of interesé rawvaps. The remainder of our outstanding indelgeslat January 31, 2014 and February 1,
2013 was fixed rate debt.

See the detailed discussion under "Ligyiditd Capital Resources" regarding refinancingasious long-term obligations and the related
effect on interest expense in the periods presented

Other (Income) Expense.Iln 2013, we recorded pretax losses of $18.89anitesulting from the termination of our seniecared credit
facilities. In 2012, we recorded pretax losses28.8 million resulting from the redemption of $4Bnillion aggregate principal amount of our
senior subordinated notes due 2017 plus accruedrgaid interest. In 2011, we recorded pretax bs§&60.3 million resulting from
repurchases and the redemption of $864.3 milligregate principal amount of our senior notes duks52flus accrued and unpaid interest.

Income Taxes. The effective income tax rates for 2013, 2GR} 2011 were expenses of 37.0%, 36.4%, and 3Tetectively.

The effective income tax rate for 2013 B8@9D% compared to a rate of 36.4% for 2012 whighe®ents a net increase of 0.6 percentage
points. The 2012 amounts were favorably impactethbyresolution of income tax examinations thatraitireoccur, to the same extent, in
2013. This effective tax rate increase was paytiafiset by the recording of an income tax berief2013 associated with the expiration of the
assessment period during which the taxing autlesritbuld have assessed additional income tax assdaiith our 2009 tax year. In addition,
2013 reflects larger income tax benefits associaigufederal jobs credits. We receive a significaicome tax benefit related to wages paid tc
certain newly hired employees that qualify for fiedg¢obs credits (principally the Work Opportunifax Credit or "WOTC"). The federal law
authorizing the WOTC credit has expired for empksy/bired after December 31, 2013. In the past, vihese credit provisions have expired,
Congress has reenacted the law on a retroactiv® Itais uncertain as to whether (or when) WOTE€dits will be retroactively renewed in this
instance. The Company will receive credits in fatperiods for employees hired on or before DecerBbeR013; however, in future periods
the credit received will be significantly lower thavhat has been recognized in 2013 and prior yeineut WOTC reenactment.

The 2012 effective tax rate of 36.4% wasatgr than the statutory tax rate of 35% due pilyngr the inclusion of state income taxes in
the total effective tax rate. The 2012 effective tate of 36.4% was lower than the 2011 rate oA%rdue primarily to the favorable resolution
of a federal income tax examination during 2012.
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The 2011 effective tax rate of 37.4% wasager than the statutory tax rate of 35% due pilyntar the inclusion of state income taxes in
the total effective tax rate.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The entities involved in the ownership stawe underlying the leases for three of our distibn centers meet the accounting definition of
a Variable Interest Entity ("VIE"). One of thesestdibution centers has been recorded as a finamtiligation whereby its property and
equipment are reflected in our consolidated balaheets. The land and buildings of the other twtrithution centers have been recorded as
operating leases. We are not the primary beneficfthese VIEs and, accordingly, have not incluthesbe entities in our consolidated
financial statements. Other than the foregoingaveenot party to any material off balance sheetreyements.

Effects of Inflation

We experienced little or no overall prodoast inflation in 2013 and 2012. In 2011, we eigrared increased commodity cost pressures
mainly related to food, housewares and apparelymtsdvhich were driven by increases in cotton, suggffee, groundnut, resin, petroleum
and other commaodity costs.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Current Financial Condition and Recent Developments

During the past three years, we have géee@n aggregate of approximately $3.39 billiosash flows from operating activities and
incurred approximately $1.62 billion in capital exylitures. During that period, we expanded the rarmbstores we operate by 1,760,
representing growth of approximately 19%, and waageled or relocated 1,749 stores, or approximdi@¥p of the stores we operated as of
January 31, 2014. We intend to continue our cuisiategy of pursuing store growth, remodels atatations in 2014.

In April 2013, we consummated a refinangigsuant to which we terminated our existing sesézured credit agreements, entered il
five-year $1.85 billion unsecured credit agreenfére "Facilities"), and issued senior notes wifa@e value of $1.3 billion, net of discount
totaling $2.8 million. At January 31, 2014, we hathl outstanding debt (including the current gortof longterm obligations) of $2.82 hillio
which includes balances under the Facilities, amilos notes, all of which are described in gredtgail below. We had $822.8 million
available for borrowing under the Facilities atuany 31, 2014.

We believe our cash flow from operationd aristing cash balances, combined with availghilitder the Facilities, and access to the
markets will provide sufficient liquidity to funduo current obligations, projected working capieduirements and capital spending for a pe
that includes the next twelve months as well anthé several years. However, our ability to mamsafficient liquidity may be affected by
numerous factors, many of which are outside ofoamtrol. Depending on our liquidity levels, condits in the capital markets and other
factors, we may from time to time consider the ése of debt, equity or other securities, the prdsef which could provide additional
liquidity for our operations.

Facilities

The Facilities consist of a $1.0 billioms® unsecured term loan facility (the "Term Fagilj and an $850.0 million senior unsecured
revolving credit facility (the "Revolving Facility'which provides for the issuance of letters ofidrap to $250.0 million. We may request,
subject to agreement by one or more lenders, isetkeevolving commitments and/or incremental tavamlfacilities in an aggregate amoun
up to $150.0 million. The Facilities mature on Adrl, 2018.
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Borrowings under the Facilities bear ing¢i@ a rate equal to an applicable margin plusuabption, either (a) LIBOR or (b) a base rate
(which is usually equal to the prime rate). Thelgple margin for borrowings as of January 31,20/ks 1.275% for LIBOR borrowings and
0.275% for base-rate borrowings. We must also pfagility fee, payable on any used and unused atsafrthe Facilities, and letter of credit
fees. The applicable margins for borrowings, thodlifg fees and the letter of credit fees underHagilities are subject to adjustment each
guarter based on our long-term senior unsecuredrdgbgs.

The Term Facility will amortize in quartgihstallments of $25.0 million, with the first dupayment due on August 1, 2014, and the
balance due at maturity. The Facilities can be gicem whole or in part at any time. The Facilitemtain certain covenants that place
limitations on the incurrence of liens; change o$ibess; mergers or sales of all or substantidilgsaets; and subsidiary indebtedness, amonc
other limitations. The Facilities also contain ficéal covenants that require the maintenance oihémmm fixed charge coverage ratio and a
maximum leverage ratio. As of January 31, 2014yweee in compliance with all such covenants. Thédlfias also contain customary
affirmative covenants and events of default.

As of January 31, 2014, we had total ontiiteg letters of credit of $49.9 million, $27.2 hwh of which were under the Revolving
Facility.

For the remainder of fiscal 2014, we aptté potential borrowings under the Revolving Fgailp to a maximum of approximately
$300 million outstanding at any one time, includany anticipated borrowings to fund repurchasesaimon stock.

Senior Notes

On July 12, 2012, we issued $500.0 milboigregate principal amount of 4.125% senior notes2D17 (the "2017 Senior Notes") which
mature on July 15, 2017. Interest on the 2017 3&hites is payable in cash on January 15 and Jubf #ach year, and commenced on
January 15, 2013. On July 15, 2012, we used thetsgraceeds to redeem the remaining $450.7 mitligistanding aggregate principal amoun
of 11.875%/12.625% senior subordinated toggle nites2017.

On April 11, 2013, as part of our refinargiwe issued $400.0 million aggregate principabam of 1.875% senior notes due 2018 (the
"2018 Senior Notes"), net of discount of $0.5 raiilj which mature on April 15, 2018; and issued $908illion aggregate principal amount of
3.25% senior notes due 2023 (the "2023 Senior Notest of discount of $2.4 million, which matura épril 15, 2023. Collectively, the 2017
Senior Notes, the 2018 Senior Notes and the 208RSKotes comprise the "Senior Notes", each ofthwere issued pursuant to an inder
as modified by supplemental indentures relatingaich series of Senior Notes (as so supplementetStenior Indenture™). Interest on the 2
Senior Notes and the 2023 Senior Notes is payaltash on April 15 and October 15 of each year,camimenced on October 15, 2013.

We may redeem some or all of the Senioeblat any time at redemption prices set forthénShnior Indenture. Upon the occurrence
change of control triggering event, which is define the Senior Indenture, each holder of our Sedites has the right to require us to
repurchase some or all of such holder's SeniordNatt@ purchase price in cash equal to 101% gdriheipal amount thereof, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, to the repurchase date.

The Senior Indenture contains covenantgifigy among other things, our ability (subjecicrtain exceptions) to consolidate, merge, or
sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantiallpfour assets; and our ability and the abilifyoar subsidiaries to incur or guarantee
indebtedness secured by liens on any shares aofgvstdck of significant subsidiaries.
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The Senior Indenture also provides for éveh default which, if any of them occurs, woulebmit or require the principal of and accrued
interest on our Senior Notes to become or to béadst due and payable.

Sale-Leaseback Transaction

In January 2014 we consummated a transaptiosuant to which we sold and subsequently lebaeki the land, buildings and related
improvements for 233 of our stores. This transactesulted in cash proceeds of approximately $28illéon. These proceeds may be utilized
for customary business purposes including repueshaour common stock.

Rating Agencie

In March 2013, Moody's upgraded our senimecured debt rating to Baa3 from Ba2 with a etahtlook. In April 2013, Standard &
Poor's upgraded our senior unsecured debt ratiBgB» from BB+ and reaffirmed our corporate dehitrmg of BBB-, both with a stable
outlook. Our current credit ratings, as well asifatrating agency actions, could (i) impact outighiio finance our operations on satisfactory
terms; (ii) affect our financing costs; and (iiffexct our insurance premiums and collateral requéets necessary for our selbured program:
There can be no assurance that we will be ableafatain or improve our current credit ratings.

Interest Rate Sway

We use interest rate swaps to minimizeaigieof adverse changes in interest rates. Theapsare intended to reduce risk by hedging ar
underlying economic exposure. Because of high tadios between the derivative financial instrumant the underlying exposure being
hedged, fluctuations in the value of the finanaiatruments are generally offset by reciprocal ¢gegnin the value of the underlying economic
exposure. Our principal interest rate exposurdeslt outstanding amounts under our Facilitieslaiuary 31, 2014, we had interest rate
swaps with a total notional amount of $875.0 milli@or more information see Item 7A, "Quantitatarel Qualitative Disclosures about
Market Risk" below.

Fair Value Accounting

We have classified our interest rate swapgurther discussed in Item 7A. below, in Levelf 2he fair value hierarchy, as the significant
inputs to the overall valuations are based on ntavkeervable data or information derived from araborated by market-observable data,
including market-based inputs to models, modebcation to market-clearing transactions, brokedesler quotations, or alternative pricing
sources with reasonable levels of price transpgraibere models are used, the selection of a péatiecnodel to value a derivative depends
upon the contractual terms of, and specific riskerent in, the instrument as well as the avaitghoff pricing information in the market. We
use similar models to value similar instrumentslugtion models require a variety of inputs, inchglcontractual terms, market prices, yield
curves, credit curves, measures of volatility, aodelations of such inputs. For our derivativdlspfiwhich trade in liquid markets, model
inputs can generally be verified.

We incorporate credit valuation adjustmeatappropriately reflect both our own nonperforeanisk and the respective counterparty's
nonperformance risk in the fair value measuremehtair derivatives. The credit valuation adjustnsesnte calculated by determining the total
expected exposure of the derivatives (which incafes both the current and potential future expgsamd then applying each counterparty's
credit spread to the applicable exposure. For dévies with two-way exposure, such as interestsai@ps, the counterparty's credit spread is
applied to our exposure to the counterparty, anmdboun credit spread is applied to the counterpagyposure to us, and the net
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credit valuation adjustment is reflected in ourigiive valuations. The total expected exposura dérivative is derived using market-
observable inputs, such as yield curves and vitiasil The inputs utilized for our own credit spilesre based on implied spreads from our
publicly-traded debt. For counterparties with palgliavailable credit information, the credit spreader LIBOR used in the calculations
represent implied credit default swap spreads netafrom a third party credit data provider. Inuetiing the fair value of our derivative
contracts for the effect of nonperformance risk,hage considered the impact of netting and anyiegige credit enhancements, such as
collateral postings, thresholds, mutual puts, amatgntees. Additionally, we actively monitor couptety credit ratings for any significant

changes.

As of January 31, 2014, the net credit adun adjustments had an insignificant impact angéttlement values of our derivative liabilit
Various factors impact changes in the credit vadmsadjustments over time, including changes incieglit spreads of the parties to the
contracts, as well as changes in market rates aladilities, which affect the total expected expsaf the derivative instruments. When
appropriate, valuations are also adjusted for warfactors such as liquidity and bid/offer spreadsich factors we deemed to be immaterial a:

of January 31, 2014.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our sigrafit contractual obligations and commercial committe@s of January 31, 2014 (in

thousands):

Payments Due by Perioc

Contractual obligations Total 1 year 1- 3 years 3-5years 5+ years
Long-term debt obligation  $ 2,814,49' $ 75,00 $ 200,30 $ 1,625,771 $ 913,42(
Capital lease obligatior 6,841 96¢€ 2,23 1,412 2,231
Interest(a 437,65! 75,53¢ 146,24 92,05( 123,82(
Selfinsurance liabilities(b 232,48: 86,05¢ 90,68¢ 32,61« 23,12t
Operating leases( 5,738,83: 712,56: 1,275,83I 1,050,67! 2,699,75!

Subtotal $ 9,230,300 $ 950,12. $ 1,71531 $ 2,802,52: $ 3,762,35.

Commitments Expiring by Period

Commercial commitments(d) Total 1 year 1- 3years 3-5years 5+ years
Letters of credi $ 22,67: $ 22,67 $ — $ — 3 —
Purchase obligations( 783,40 725,98: 40,74¢ 16,67« —

Subtotal $ 806,07¢ $ 748,65! $ 40,74¢ $ 16,67 $ =
Total contractual

obligations and

commercial

commitments (f) $ 10,036,38 $ 1,698,770 $ 1,756,05 $ 2,819,19: $ 3,762,35

(@)

Represents obligations for interest payment®ng-term debt and capital lease obligations,iaoldides projected

interest on variable rate long-term debt, using3@dar end rates. Variable rate long-term debuhes the balance of the
senior revolving credit facility (which had a batenof zero as of January 31, 2014), the balanceiofax increment
financing of $14.5 million, and the unhedged partad the senior term loan facility of $125 million.

(b)

We retain a significant portion of the risk for amorkers' compensation, employee health insuragegral liability,

property loss and automobile insurance. As thesgaitons do not have scheduled maturities, theseuats represent
undiscounted estimates based upon actuarial asEunspReserves for workers' compensation and geligsdity which

existed as of the da
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of a merger transaction in 2007 were discountestdier to arrive at estimated fair value. All otl@nounts are reflected
on an undiscounted basis in our consolidated balaheets.

(c) Operating lease obligations are inclusive of am@imtluded in deferred rent in our consolidatechbe¢ sheets.

(d) Commercial commitments include information techigglticense and support agreements, supplies, éstuetters of
credit for import merchandise, and other invenfamuychase obligations.

(e) Purchase obligations include legally bindiggements for software licenses and support, sggdiktures, and
merchandise purchases (excluding such purchasgstiletters of credit).

U] We have potential payment obligations associatéid wicertain tax positions that are not reflectethese totals. We
anticipate that approximately $3.6 million of swahounts will be paid in the coming year. We areentty unable to
make reasonably reliable estimates of the periazhsh settlement with the taxing authorities far rmaining
$18.8 million of reserves for uncertain tax positic

Share Repurchase Program

On December 4, 2013, the Company's Boafireictors authorized a $1.0 billion increase to existing common stock repurchase
program. The total remaining authorization is agpmately $824 million at March 13, 2014. Under thehorization, purchases may be made
in the open market or in privately negotiated teanions from time to time subject to market andeottonditions, and the authorization has no
expiration date. For more detail about our shagpeinehase program, see Note 13 to the consolidataddial statements.

Other Considerations

We have not declared or paid recurringdéimids subsequent to a merger transaction in 208y décision to declare and pay dividends in
the future will be made at the discretion of ouaBbof Directors, and will depend on, among othergs, our results of operations, cash
requirements, financial condition, contractualriesbns and other factors that our Board of Dicgstmay deem relevant.

Our inventory balance represented approtaip@8% of our total assets exclusive of goodailtl other intangible assets as of Januar
2014. Our ability to effectively manage our invegtbalances can have a significant impact on osih ¢laws from operations during a given
fiscal year. Inventory purchases are often somews#@sonal in nature, such as the purchase of waather or Christmaselated merchandis
Efficient management of our inventory has been@ntdinues to be an area of focus for us.

As described in Note 8 to the consoliddieancial statements, we are involved in a numtbéegal actions and claims, some of which
could potentially result in material cash paymeAtverse developments in those actions could naednd adversely affect our liquidity. \
also have certain income tax-related contingerasedisclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated findrstédements. Future negative development
could have a material adverse effect on our liquidi
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Cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities.Significant components of the increase in dlsks from operating activities in 2013 compared to
2012 include increased net income due primariintoeased sales and lower SG&A expenses, as antageeof sales, in 2013 as described in
more detail above under "Results of Operationgghificant components of the increase in cash fliras operating activities were related to
changes in working capital, including Merchandiseentories, Accounts payable and Accrued expenststher. The impact of the change
inventory balances, which increased in both yeat$i a lesser amount in 2013 compared to 201 pfained in more detail below. Items
positively affecting Accrued expenses and otheluthe the timing of accruals and payments for legéflements and non-income taxes
(primarily sales taxes), and the adjustment ofwalsrduring 2012 resulting from the favorable resoh of income tax examinations which did
not recur in 2013. Partially offsetting the positimpact of the items discussed above were reduacedtive compensation accruals, increasec
cash payments for income taxes, and changes inuate@ayable, which are affected by the timing @uixd of merchandise purchases, the n
significant category of which were domestic pur@sas

On an ongoing basis, we closely monitor @xahage our inventory balances, and they may fiuetirom period to period based on new
store openings, the timing of purchases, and d#otors. Merchandise inventories increased by 7%i6hd®2013, compared to a 19% increas
2012. The percentage increase in inventories ir3 2¢ds less than the prior year due to our emplassisore effective inventory management
and our related efforts to control shrink. Invegtiavels in the consumables category increasedlbg.® million, or 12%, in 2013 compared to
an increase of $245.7 million, or 22%, in 2012. Fhasonal category decreased by $4.7 million, qrint#013 compared to an increase of
$70.2 million, or 18%, in 2012. The home produategory increased $22.0 million, or 9%, in 2013 pamad to an increase of $56.2 million,
or 29%, in 2012. The apparel category decreasek®Byb million, or 9%, in 2013 compared to an inseeaf $16.0 million, or 5%, in 2012.

Significant components of the increaseasicflows from operating activities in 2012 compiat@ 2011 include increased net income due
primarily to increased sales and lower SG&A expsenas a percentage of sales, in 2012 as describradre detail above under "Results of
Operations." A portion of the changes in Prepaid @thher current assets as well as Accrued expemsksther reflect the activity associated
with a legal settlement accrued in 2011 for whialympents were made in 2012. Changes in Accrued sggaand other were also affected by
higher sales tax accruals at the end of 2011 amddjustment of accruals during 2012 due to therte resolution of income tax
examinations. The reclassification of the tax b#méfstock options to cash flows from financingiaities was higher in 2012 due to an
increase in stock options exercised. Changes inéus payable were due to increased merchandisbgmes as discussed in more detail
below, the most significant category of which wdoenestic purchases.

In addition, our inventories increased B¥4dlduring 2012, compared to a 14% increase in ZDAd.increase in inventories in 2012 was
due to several factors including new items intraalin 2012, the receipt during 2012 of certain gealated to our 2013 merchandising
initiatives, and the emphasis on improved presimtd¢vels of select merchandise categories. Irrgrievels in the consumables category
increased by $245.7 million, or 22%, in 2012 corepao an increase of $132.3 million, or 13%, in20lhe seasonal category increased by
$70.2 million, or 18%, in 2012 compared to an iaseof $27.5 million, or 7%, in 2011. The home piaid category increased $56.2 million,
or 29%, in 2012 compared to an increase of $24lGmior 14%, in 2011. The apparel category inseghby $16.0 million, or 5%, in 2012
compared to an increase of $59.4 million, or 2492011.

Cash flows from investing activities.Cash expenditures for purchases of propertyegiipment decreased by 5.8% from 2012 to 2013
Significant components of property and equipmemtipases in
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2013 included the following approximate amount8&ihnillion for improvements, upgrades, remodels @aldcations of existing stores;
$124 million for new leased stores; $112 million distribution centers, which included a signifitaortion of the construction cost of a
distribution center in Pennsylvania; $76 milliom &ores purchased or built by us; and $28 milfaminformation systems upgrades and
technology-related projects. The timing of new, oeleled and relocated store openings along withr détméors may affect the relationship
between such openings and the related propertgamgment purchases in any given period. DuringB2@k opened 650 new stores and
remodeled or relocated 582 stores. Our sale-leakeétansaction which we consummated in January 21233 of our stores resulted in
proceeds from the sale of these properties of appedely $281.6 million. See "—Liquidity and CapiResources"”

Significant components of property and pmeént purchases in 2012 included the following agipnate amounts: $155 million for new
leased stores; $151 million for improvements, uggsaremodels and relocations of existing storg32$nillion for stores purchased or built
by us; $83 million for distribution centers; $27llion for systems-related capital projects; and $iilfion for transportation-related projects.
During 2012, we opened 625 new stores and remodelezglocated 592 stores.

Significant components of property and pgqent purchases in 2011 included the following apipnate amounts: $153 million for
improvements, upgrades, remodels and relocatiopsisfing stores; $120 million for distribution d¢ers, including costs associated with the
construction of a distribution center in Alabama18 million for new leased stores; $80 million ftores purchased or built by us; $28 million
for systems-related capital projects; and $15 arilfior transportation-related projects. During 204& opened 625 new stores and remodelec
or relocated 575 stores.

Capital expenditures during 2014 are ptejgto be in the range of $450-$500 million. Wea@pate funding 2014 capital requirements
with existing cash balances, cash flows from op@nat and if necessary, as of January 31, 2014lseehave significant availability under our
Revolving Facility. We plan to continue to investstore growth and development of approximately @@ stores and approximately 500
stores to be remodeled or relocated. Capital experd in 2014 are anticipated to support our stposvth as well as our remodel and
relocation initiatives, including capital outlaya fleasehold improvements, fixtures and equipntetconstruction of new stores; costs to
support and enhance our supply chain and technahiiggtives; and also routine and ongoing capiégjuirements.

Cash flows from financing activities. The 2013 cash flows from financing activitie§iect our refinancing in April 2013, including the
issuance of long-term obligations which includes $1.0 billion unsecured Term Facility and the é&sse of Senior Notes totaling
approximately $1.3 billion. Proceeds from thesegeations were used to extinguish our previousredderm loan and revolving credit
facilities which had balances of $1.96 billion é1b5.6 million at termination. Net repayments urither Revolving Facility were
$130.9 million during 2013. We paid debt issuanagt€ and hedging fees totaling $29.2 million in 20@dlated to the refinancing. Also in 20
we repurchased 11.0 million outstanding sharesiotommon stock at a total cost of $620.1 million.

In 2012 we repurchased 14.4 million outdiag shares of our common stock at a total co$6GfL.4 million. In July 2012, we issued
$500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.12&8hior notes due 2017. Also in July 2012, we resgkthe remaining aggregate principal
amount of senior subordinated notes due 2017 edenmption price of 105.938% of the principal amadbeteof, resulting in a cash outflow of
$477.5 million. Net borrowings under our seniorwed revolving credit facility were $101.8 milli@uring 2012.

In July 2011, we redeemed $839.3 milliogragate principal amount of our outstanding senates due 2015 at total cost of
$883.9 million including associated premiums, amdpril 2011, we repurchased in the open market@®#%llion aggregate principal amount
of senior notes due 2015 at a
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total cost of $26.8 million including associateémiums. A portion of the July 2011 redemption afisenotes due 2015 was financed by
borrowings under our senior secured revolving ¢riadility. Net borrowings under such facility we$&84.7 million during 2011. In Decemk
2011, we repurchased 4.9 million outstanding shafesir common stock at a total cost of $185.0ionill

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statementadnordance with U.S. GAAP requires management tereatimates and assumptions that affec
reported amounts and related disclosures. In additi the estimates presented below, there are ibtines within our financial statements that
require estimation, but are not deemed criticalefshed below. We believe these estimates are medd® and appropriate. However, if actual
experience differs from the assumptions and otbesiderations used, the resulting changes could aawaterial effect on the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Management believes the following policsl estimates are critical because they involveifsdgnt judgments, assumptions, and
estimates. Management has discussed the developmeselection of the critical accounting estimatih the Audit Committee of our Board
of Directors, and the Audit Committee has reviewreadisclosures presented below relating to thotieips and estimates. See Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements for a detaileguision of our principal accounting policies.

Merchandise Inventories. Merchandise inventories are stated at the l@feost or market ("LCM") with cost determinednigithe reta
last in, first out ("LIFO") method. We use the tietaventory method ("RIM") to calculate gross pitaind the resulting valuation of inventories
at cost, which are computed by applying a calcdlatest-toretail inventory ratio to the retail value of saldsa department level. The RIM is
averaging method that has been widely used indtad industry due to its practicality. Also, theeuof the RIM will result in valuing
inventories at LCM if markdowns are currently takena reduction of the retail value of inventorlekerent in the retail inventory method
calculation are certain significant management j€lgts and estimates including, among others, imtaakups, markdowns, and shrinkage,
which significantly impact the gross profit calciide as well as the ending inventory valuationadtcThese significant estimates, coupled
the fact that the RIM is an averaging process, gader certain circumstances, produce distortetifpges. Factors that can lead to distortion
in the calculation of the inventory balance include

. applying the RIM to a group of products thand fairly uniform in terms of its cost and sellipgice relationship and turnover;

. applying the RIM to transactions over a periodiwiet that include different rates of gross profitcls as those relating to
seasonal merchandise;

. inaccurate estimates of inventory shrinkage betvieemlate of the last physical inventory at a storé the financial statement
date; and
. inaccurate estimates of LCM and/or LIFO reserves

Factors that reduce potential distortioziide the use of historical experience in estinggtire shrink provision (see discussion below)
an annual LIFO analysis whereby all SKUs are carsid for inclusion in the index formulation. An @aak valuation of inventory under the
LIFO method is made at the end of each year baseldeoinventory levels and costs at that time. Adicgly, interim LIFO calculations are
based on management's estimates of expectedepdanventory levels, sales for the year and thpeeted rate of inflation/deflation for the y
and are thus subject to adjustment in the finat-gea LIFO inventory valuation. We also performeiritn inventory analysis for determining
obsolete inventory. Our policy is to write down é@mtory to an LCM value based on various manageassumptions including estimated
markdowns and sales required to liquidate such
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inventory in future periods. Inventory is reviewad a quarterly basis and adjusted to reflect wddens as appropriate.

Factors such as slower inventory turnower  changes in competitors' practices, consuneéengnces, consumer spending and
unseasonable weather patterns, among other factargl cause excess inventory requiring greater #stimated markdowns to entice
consumer purchases, resulting in an unfavorabladmngn our consolidated financial statements. Sdiestfalls due to the above factors could
cause reduced purchases from vendors and assoegtddr allowances that would also result in aravofable impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

We calculate our shrink provision basedotual physical inventory results during the figeatiod and an accrual for estimated shrink
occurring subsequent to a physical inventory thhotlng end of the fiscal reporting period. This aetis calculated as a percentage of sales a
each retall store, at a department level, andteroiened by dividing the book-to-physical inventagjustments recorded during the previous
twelve months by the related sales for the samieghéor each store. To the extent that subsequeygipal inventories yield different results
than this estimated accrual, our effective shratk for a given reporting period will include tmegact of adjusting the estimated results to the
actual results. Although we perform physical ineeigs in virtually all of our stores on an annuasis, the same stores do not necessarily get
counted in the same reporting periods from yegetr, which could impact comparability in a givepporting period.

We believe our estimates and assumptidateceto merchandise inventories have generally lbeeurate in recent years and we do not
currently anticipate material changes in theseredtis and assumptions.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.The qualitative and quantitative assessmefdtertto the valuation and any potential impairmer
of goodwill and other intangible assets are eatljestito judgments and/or assumptions. Signifipaggments required in the analysis of
qualitative factors may include determining therappiate factors to consider and the relative ingrure of those factors along with other
assumptions. Significant judgments required inghantitative testing process may include projectirigre cash flows, determining
appropriate discount rates, correctly applying &abn techniques, correctly computing the impliait ¥alue of goodwill if necessary, and of
assumptions. Future cash flow projections are basedanagement's projections and represent bésiadss taking into account recent
financial performance, market trends, strategiopl@nd other available information, which in recggdrs have been materially accurate.
Although not currently anticipated, changes in ¢hestimates and assumptions could materially afffeectietermination of fair value or
impairment. Future indicators of impairment cowdult in an asset impairment charge. If these jidmor assumptions are incorrect or
flawed, the analysis could be negatively impacted.

Our most recent testing of our goodwill amdiefinite lived trade name intangible assets eampleted during the third quarter of 2013.
No indicators of impairment were evident and neassient of or adjustment to these assets was edqbfife are not currently projecting
decline in cash flows that could be expected teetamvadverse effect such as a violation of debemrants or future impairment charges.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at costgidigp our assets into relatively homogeneous etasad
generally provide for depreciation on a straightlbasis over the estimated average useful liBaoh asset class, except for leasehold
improvements, which are amortized over the lesktrepapplicable lease term or the estimated udiédubf the asset. Certain store and
warehouse fixtures, when fully depreciated, areoved from the cost and related accumulated degi@eiand amortization accounts. The
valuation and classification of these assets aad#isignment of depreciable lives involves sigaiftgudgments and the use of estimates, v
we believe have been materially accurate in regeats.
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Impairment of Long-lived AssetsImpairment of long-lived assets results whendarrying value of the assets exceeds the estimate
undiscounted future cash flows generated by theteisQur estimate of undiscounted future store flagls is based upon historical operations
of the stores and estimates of future profitabiltyich encompasses many factors that are subjeetriability and are difficult to predict. If o
estimates of future cash flows are not materiatlyuaate, our impairment analysis could be impaatambrdingly. If a long-lived asset is found
to be impaired, the amount recognized for impaimierqual to the difference between the carryialgi® and the asset's estimated fair value.
The fair value is estimated based primarily uparjgmted future cash flows (discounted at our cradjtisted risk-free rate) or other reasonable
estimates of fair market value in accordance witB..GAAP. Although not currently anticipated, chasgn these estimates, assumptions or
projections could materially affect the determioatof fair value or impairment.

Insurance Liabilities. We retain a significant portion of the risk fmur workers' compensation, employee health, ptgpess,
automobile and general liability. These represgticant costs primarily due to our large empleymase and number of stores. Provisions al
made for these liabilities on an undiscounted biaas®ed on actual claim data and estimates of iedumut not reported claims developed using
actuarial methodologies based on historical claends, which have been and are anticipated torasmtio be materially accurate. If future
claim trends deviate from recent historical patieor other unanticipated events affect the nurabdrsignificance of future claims, we may be
required to record additional expenses or expegrhactions, which could be material to our futureficial results.

Contingent Liabilities—Income Taxeslncome tax reserves are determined using thikadelogy established by accounting standards
relating to uncertainty in income taxes. Theseddaas require companies to assess each incomesiiop taken using a two-step process. A
determination is first made as to whether it is enlikely than not that the position will be sustdnbased upon the technical merits, upon
examination by the taxing authorities. If the tasition is expected to meet the more likely thahaniberia, the benefit recorded for the tax
position equals the largest amount that is grahter 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate sett@t of the respective tax position. Uncer
tax positions require determinations and liab#itie be estimated based on provisions of the taxaich may be subject to change or varying
interpretation. If our determinations and estimaes/e to be inaccurate, the resulting adjustmeotdd be material to our future financial
results.

Contingent Liabilities—Legal Matters. We are subject to legal, regulatory and otmec@edings and claims. We establish liabilities as
appropriate for these claims and proceedings baged the probability and estimability of losses &méhirly present, in conjunction with the
disclosures of these matters in our financial stet@s and SEC filings, management's view of oupsupe. We review outstanding claims and
proceedings with external counsel to assess priityadoid estimates of loss, which includes an asialgf whether such loss estimates are
probable, reasonably possible, or remote. We résatathese assessments on a quarterly basisnemaand significant information becomes
available to determine whether a liability shouddstablished or if any existing liability shoulel &djusted. The actual cost of resolving a ¢
or proceeding ultimately may be substantially déf& than the amount of the recorded liabilityatidition, because it is not permissible under
U.S. GAAP to establish a litigation liability untthe loss is both probable and estimable, in sasesthere may be insufficient time to
establish a liability prior to the actual incurrenaf the loss (upon verdict and judgment at tf@l example, or in the case of a quickly
negotiated settlement).

Lease Accounting and Excess Facilitiesviany of our stores are subject to build-to-suiangements with landlords, which typically
carry a primary lease term of up to 15 years witlitiple renewal options. We also have stores sulbgeshorter-term leases and many of these
leases have renewal options. Certain of our stomgs provisions for contingent rentals based uppeareentage of defined sales volume. We
recognize contingent rental expense when the aehient of specified
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sales targets is considered probable. We recortgmain rental expense on a straight-line basis dweibase, non-cancelable lease term
commencing on the date that we take physical ps&sesf the property from the landlord, which nolijmancludes a period prior to store
opening to make necessary leasehold improvemedtmatall store fixtures. When a lease containsealgtermined fixed escalation of the
minimum rent, we recognize the related rent expensa straightine basis and record the difference between tbegmzed rental expense ¢
the amounts payable under the lease as deferredisrant allowances, to the extent received, ererded as deferred incentive rent and
amortized as a reduction to rent expense overetine of the lease. We reflect as a liability anyeaténce between the calculated expense and
the amounts actually paid. Improvements of leasegggties are amortized over the shorter of tieedifthe applicable lease term or the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Share-Based PaymentsOur share-based stock option awards are valneth individual grant basis using the Black-Schdlerton
closed form option pricing model. We believe thas tmodel fairly estimates the value of our shaaedd awards. The application of this
valuation model involves assumptions that are juelgiad and highly sensitive in the valuation of &toptions, which affects compensation
expense related to these options. These assumpiidude the term that the options are expectdzbtoutstanding, the historical volatility of
our stock price, applicable interest rates andlthielend yield of our stock. Other factors involgijudgments that affect the expensing of shar
based payments include estimated forfeiture retshare-based awards. Historically, these estintees not been materially inaccurate;
however, if our estimates differ materially frontwad experience, we may be required to record mohdit expense or reductions of expense,
which could be material to our future financialuks.

Fair Value Measurements. Accounting standards for the measurement ofvfdue of assets and liabilities establish aalue hierarch
that distinguishes between market participant apsioms based on market data obtained from sounckspendent of the reporting entity
(observable inputs that are classified within Levieland 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting ¥atdwn assumptions about market participan
assumptions (unobservable inputs classified witleivel 3 of the hierarchy). Therefore, Level 3 irpate typically based on an entity's own
assumptions, as there is little, if any, relatedkaibactivity, and thus require the use of sigaifitjudgment and estimates. Currently, we have
no assets or liabilities that are valued basedysoleLevel 3 inputs.

Our fair value measurements are primasisogiated with our derivative financial instrumemsangible assets, debt instruments, and to
lesser degree our investments. We use variousti@uaodels in determining the values of thesetassed liabilities. The application of these
models involves assumptions such as discountedfltaglanalysis and interest rate curves that adgfoental and highly sensitive in the fair
value computations. In recent years, these metbgdes have produced materially accurate valuations.

Derivative Financial Instruments. In addition to estimating the fair value of idatives as discussed above, we also bear th¢hagk
certain derivative instruments that have been deségl as hedges and currently meet the strict hacigmunting requirements may not qualify
in the future as "highly effective," as definedvadl as the risk that hedged transactions in dashhedging relationships may no longer be
considered probable to occur. If hedge accountiagewlisallowed it could cause greater volatilityur results of operations. Further, new
regulations, accounting standards, and relatedpirgtations pertaining to these instruments maigsged in the future, and we cannot predict
the possible impact that such requirements may bavaur use of derivative instruments.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK
Financial Risk Management

We are exposed to market risk primarilyriradverse changes in interest rates, and to & lésgeee commodity prices. To minimize this
risk, we may periodically use financial instrumemteluding derivatives. All derivative financiaistrument transactions must be authorized
and executed pursuant to approval by the Boardreicirs. As a matter of policy, we do not buy elt §nancial instruments for speculative
trading purposes, and any such derivative finanegtuments are intended to be used to reducéyisledging an underlying economic
exposure. Because of high correlation between ¢higative financial instrument and the underlyingpesure being hedged, fluctuations in the
value of the financial instruments are generalfgetfby reciprocal changes in the value of the dygithg economic exposure.

Interest Rate Risk

We manage our interest rate risk throughsthategic use of fixed and variable interest datet and, from time to time, derivative finant
instruments. Our principal interest rate exposeatates to outstanding amounts under our unsecwleidFacilities. As of January 31, 2014, we
had variable rate borrowings of $1.0 billion undar Term Facility and no borrowings outstandingemaur Revolving Facility. In order to
mitigate a portion of the variable rate intereqi@sure under the Facilities, we have entered iatmus interest rate swaps in recent years.
detailed discussion of our Facilities, see Note the consolidated financial statements.

Currently, we are counterparty to certaieiest rate swaps with a total notional amour$835.0 million entered into in May 2012 in
order to mitigate a portion of the variable rateeiast exposure under the Facilities. These swapscaeduled to mature in May 2015. Under
the terms of these agreements we swapped one hBER rates for fixed interest rates, resultinghie payment of an all-in fixed rate of
1.86% on a notional amount of $875.0 million. Sa#kin rate was reduced in 2013 due to a redudtidhe underlying applicable margin on
our Term Facility as a result of the refinancingpatstanding indebtedness as discussed in Notéhe toonsolidated financial statements.

A change in interest rates on variable dafet impacts our pre-tax earnings and cash flahgreas a change in interest rates on fixed rat
debt impacts the economic fair value of debt butaww pre-tax earnings and cash flows. Our intenagst swaps qualify for hedge accounting a
cash flow hedges. Therefore, changes in marketfftions related to the effective portion of theash flow hedges do not impact our pre-tax
earnings until the accrued interest is recognizethe derivatives and the associated hedged dabedBon our variable rate borrowing levels
and interest rate swaps outstanding as of Jandar8034 and February 1, 2013, respectively, thealired effect of a one percentage point
increase in variable interest rates would haveltegbin a pretax reduction of our earnings and dksts of approximately $1.4 million in 2013
and $13.9 million in 2012.

To mitigate our interest rate risk on olammed issuance of 10-year senior notes, we enteti@dix treasury locks that were designated a
cash flow hedges during the period from March 20,2to March 27, 2013. Such instruments had a aoechinotional amount of
$700.0 million and a weighted-average 10-year Wr8asury rate of 1.94%. The issuance of the 202888lotes occurred on April 11, 2013,
and the related settlement of the treasury lockslted in a loss of $13.2 million that was deferr@@ther comprehensive income. For more
information, see Note 5 to the consolidated finahsiatements.

Market conditions and periodic uncertaisiie the global credit markets may increase thditrisk of counterparties to our swap
agreements. In the event such counterpartiesof@étform under our swap agreements and we ardaittabnter into new swap agreements o
terms favorable to us, our ability to effectivelamage our interest rate risk may be materially inepla We attempt to
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manage counterparty credit risk by periodicallylesting the financial position and creditworthine$such counterparties, monitoring the
amount for which we are at risk with each countegpand where possible, dispersing the risk ammngiple counterparties. There can be no
assurance that we will manage or mitigate our capiatrty credit risk effectively.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Dollar General Corporation

We have audited the accompanying conselitialance sheets of Dollar General Corporationsabdidiaries as of January 31, 2014 anc
February 1, 2013, and the related consolidatedrattts of income, comprehensive income, sharetleguity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended January 31, 2te&sdfinancial statements are the responsibilith@Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of D
General Corporation and subsidiaries at Januar2@i4 and February 1, 2013, and the consolidatdtseof their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodeghdanuary 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. getigiccepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatd8oard (United States), Dollar Gen
Corporation and subsidiaries' internal control direncial reporting as of January 31, 2014, basedriteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissi@®2lframework) and our report
dated March 20, 2014 expressed an unqualified opitiereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
March 20, 201«
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

January 31, February 1,
2014 2013
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 505,56¢ $ 140,80¢
Merchandise inventorie 2,552,99: 2,397,117
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 147,04 139,12¢
Total current asse 3,205,60 2,677,11
Net property and equipme 2,080,30! 2,088,66!
Goodwill 4,338,58! 4,338,58!
Other intangible assets, r 1,207,64! 1,219,54.
Other assets, n 35,37¢ 43,77:
Total asset $ 10,867,52 $ 10,367,68
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term obligations $ 75,96t $ 89z
Accounts payabl 1,286,48. 1,261,60
Accrued expenses and ott 368,57¢ 357,43t
Income taxes payab 59,14¢ 95,38
Deferred income taxe 21,79¢ 23,220
Total current liabilities 1,811,97. 1,738,54
Long-term obligations 2,742,78! 2,771,33i
Deferred income taxe 614,02t 647,07(
Other liabilities 296,54¢ 225,39¢
Commitments and contingenci
Shareholders' equit
Preferred stock, 1,000 shares author — —
Common stock; $0.875 par value, 1,000,000 sharb®azed,
317,058 and 327,069 shares issued and outstanding a
January 31, 2014 and February 1, 2013, respec! 277,42: 286,18!
Additional paic-in capital 3,009,221 2,991,35!
Retained earning 2,125,45: 1,710,73.
Accumulated other comprehensive | (9,910 (2,939
Total shareholders' equi 5,402,19: 4,985,33!

Total liabilities and shareholders' equ $ 10,867,52 $ 10,367,68

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

For the Year Ended

January 31, February 1, February 3,
2014 2013 2012

Net sales $ 17,504,16 $ 16,022,12 $ 14,807,18
Cost of goods sol 12,068,42 10,936,72 10,109,27.
Gross profit 5,435,74. 5,085,40: 4,697,911
Selling, general and administrative exper 3,699,55 3,430,12! 3,207,101
Operating profi 1,736,18 1,655,27! 1,490,80-
Interest expens 88,98¢ 127,92t 204,90(
Other (income) expen: 18,87 29,95¢ 60,61¢
Income before income tax 1,628,33 1,497,39. 1,225,28!
Income tax expens 603,21- 544,73. 458,60
Net income $ 102511 $ 95266: $§  766,68!
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 317 $ 287 $ 2.2¢

Diluted $ 317 $ 28t ¢ 2.22
Weighted average shar¢

Basic 322,88t 332,25: 341,23:

Diluted 323,85: 334,46 345,11

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands)

For the Year Ended

January 31, February 1, February 3,
2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 1,025,111 $ 952,66: $ 766,68
Unrealized net gain (loss) on hedged transactioetsof
related income tax expense (benefit) of $(4,461)448
and $9,692, respective (6,977) 2,25% 15,10¢
Comprehensive incorr $ 1,018,14 $ 954,91! $ 781,79

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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Balances,
January 28, 201
Net income
Unrealized net gai
(loss) on hedget
transaction:
Share-based
compensation
expense
Repurchases of
common stocl
Tax benefit from
stock option
exercises
Exercise of share-
based award
Other equity
transaction:
Balances,
February 3, 201
Net income
Unrealized net gai
(loss) on hedget
transaction:
Share-based
compensation
expenst
Repurchases of
common stocl
Tax benefit from
stock option
exercises
Exercise of share-
based award
Other equity
transaction:
Balances,
February 1, 201
Net income
Unrealized net gai
(loss) on hedget
transaction:
Share-based
compensation
expense
Repurchases of
common stocl
Tax benefit from
stock option
exercises
Exercise of share-
based award
Balances,
January 31, 201

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands except per share amounts)

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Common
Stock
Shares

Retained
Earnings

Common

Stock Total

341,507 $298,81¢ $2,954,17 $ 830,93 $ (20,29¢) $4,063,63

— — — 766,68 — 766,68
— — — — 15,10¢ 15,10¢

— — 15,25( — — 15,25(
(4,960 (4,340 (1,55¢ (180,699 —  (186,59)
— — 27,72 — — 27,72
1,53¢ 1,34; (28,739 — — (27,39
8 7 165 — — 172
338,08¢ $29582¢ $2,967,02° $1,41691 $ (5,191) $4,674,58:
— — — 952,66 —  952,66:

— — — — 2,25: 2,25¢

— — 21,66+ — — 21,66+
(14,39)  (12,59%) (16) (658,849 — (671,459
— — 77,02( — — 77,02
3,04¢ 2,661 (75,78 — — (73120
32€ 28E 1,445 — — 1,72¢
327,06¢ $286,18! $2,991,35 $1,710,73 $ (2,93¢) $4,985,33
— — —  1,025,11 —  1,025,11L

— — — — (6,977) (6,972)

— — 20,96 — — 20,961
(11,03) (9,657 — (610,39 —  (620,05)
— — 24,15: — — 24,15
1,02¢ 89€  (27.23) — —  (26,34)
317,05¢ $277,42: $3,009,221 $2,12545. $ (9,910 $5,402,19:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statemer



53




DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

For the Year Ended

January 31, February 1, February 3,
2014 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 1,025,111 $ 952,66: $ 766,68!
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casimfro

operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic 332,83 302,91: 275,40¢
Deferred income taxe (36,85) (2,605 10,23:
Tax benefit of sha-based award (30,990 (87,757) (33,109
Loss on debt retirement, r 18,87: 30,62( 60,30:
Noncash sha-based compensatic 20,96 21,66« 15,25(
Other noncash (gains) and los (12,747 6,77¢ 54,19(
Change in operating assets and liabilit
Merchandise inventorie (144,949 (391,409 (291,49)
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (4,949 5,55: (34,559
Accounts payabl 36,94 194,03! 104,44.
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 16,26" (36,74) 71,76
Income taxe: (5,249 138,71: 51,55(
Other (2,200 (3,079 (19%5)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 1,213,06! 1,131,35. 1,050,48!
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm (538,44 (571,599 (514,86)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipr 288,46t 1,76( 1,02¢
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (249,979 (569,83 (513,83)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Issuance of lor-term obligations 2,297,17 500,00t —
Repayments of lor-term obligations (2,119,99) (478,255  (911,95)
Borrowings under revolving credit facilitie 1,172,900 2,286,700 1,157,801
Repayments of borrowings under revolving creditliffes  (1,303,800) (2,184,90) (973,100
Debt issuance cos (15,996 (15,279 —
Payments for cash flow hedge related to debt iss (13,217 — —
Repurchases of common stc (620,05:) (671,459 (186,59)
Other equity transactions, net of employee taxés (26,347 (71,399 (27,219
Tax benefit of sha-based award 30,99( 87,75: 33,10:
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (598,33() (546,83) (907,96
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 364,75 14,68: (371,32()
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 140,80¢ 126,12¢ 497 ,44¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of $ 505,56f $ 140,80¢ $ 126,12¢

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid for

Interest $ 73,46:¢ $ 121,710 $ 209,35:
Income taxe: $ 646,81 $ 422,330 $ 382,29:
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing andding

activities:

Purchases of property and equipment awaiting psitgs

for payment, included in Accounts paya $ 27,08. $ 39,147 $ 35,66:
Purchases of property and equipment under cap#akl

obligations $ — 3,44C $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies
Basis of presentation

These notes contain references to the yHr3, 2012, and 2011, which represent fiscal yeaded January 31, 2014, February 1, 2013,
and February 3, 2012, respectively. The Compaiscalfyear ends on the Friday closest to January13d 2013 and 2012 years were 52-weel
accounting periods, while 2011 was ave8ek accounting period. The consolidated finamstialements include all subsidiaries of the Comg
except for its not-for-profit subsidiary which t@®mpany does not control. Intercompany transactiave been eliminated.

The Company sells general merchandiseretad basis through 11,132 stores (as of Janubrg@14) in 40 states covering most of the
southern, southwestern, midwestern and easteredl8itates. The Company owns distribution cent®&€¢") in Scottsville, Kentucky; South
Boston, Virginia; Alachua, Florida; Zanesville, ®hdonesville, South Carolina; Marion, Indiana; 8&ser, Alabama; and Bethel,
Pennsylvania, and leases DCs in Ardmore, Oklah&mlon, Missouri; Indianola, Mississippi; and Leb&alifornia.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highlyidi investments with insignificant interest rakrand original maturities of three months or
less when purchased. Such investments primarilgisbaf money market funds, bank deposits, cedtiéis of deposit (which may include
foreign time deposits), and commercial paper. Tdreying amounts of these items are a reasonabiaadstof their fair value due to the short
maturity of these investments.

Payments due from processors for electrtmmder transactions classified as cash and castadents totaled approximately $44.0 million
and $45.2 million at January 31, 2014 and FebrtiaB013, respectively.

At January 31, 2014, the Company maintagegh balances to meet a $20 million minimum tholeksket by insurance regulators, as
further described below under "Insurance liab#itie

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Company accounts for investments int datd marketable equity securities as held-to-nitgtuavailable-for-sale, or trading,
depending on their classification. Debt securitiagegorized as held-to-maturity are stated at ansakicost. Debt and equity securities
categorized as available-for-sale are stated mav#&#iie, with any unrealized gains and lossesphdeferred income taxes, reported as a
component of Accumulated other comprehensive Ibsaling securities (primarily mutual funds held guant to deferred compensation and
supplemental retirement plans, as further discubsémv in Notes 6 and 9) are stated at fair valuith changes in fair value recorded as a
component of Selling, general and administratif®3&A") expense.

For the years ended January 31, 2014, Bepfy 2013, and February 3, 2012, gross realiz@tsgand losses on the sales of available-fo
sale securities were not material. The cost of eI sold is based upon the specific identificatmethod.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)
Merchandise inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cogharket with cost determined using the retail-la, first-out ("LIFO") method as this method
results in a better matching of costs and reverideder the Company's retail inventory method ("RIMhe calculation of gross profit and the
resulting valuation of inventories at cost are cated by applying a calculated cost-to-retail inegptratio to the retail value of sales at a
department level. The use of the RIM will resulvaduing inventories at the lower of cost or marReCM") if markdowns are currently taken
as a reduction of the retail value of inventoriéssts directly associated with warehousing andiligton are capitalized into inventory.

The excess of current cost over LIFO cass approximately $90.9 million and $101.9 millianJanuary 31, 2014 and February 1, 2013,
respectively. Current cost is determined usingRh on a first-in, first-out basis. Under the LIR@ventory method, the impacts of rising or
falling market price changes increase or decreaseat sales (the LIFO provision or benefit). Then@pany recorded a LIFO provision
(benefit) of $(11.0) million in 2013, $1.4 millian 2012, and $47.7 million in 2011, which is inchtlin cost of goods sold in the consolidated
statements of income.

The Company purchases its merchandise &avite variety of suppliers. Approximately 8% ar®d @f the Company's purchases in 2013
were made from the Company's largest and secogesasuppliers, respectively.

Vendor rebates

The Company accounts for all cash consiaeraeceived from vendors in accordance with aggfiie accounting standards pertaining to
such arrangements. Cash consideration receiveddreamdor is generally presumed to be a rebata al@wvance and is accounted for as a
reduction of merchandise purchase costs as edfwsever, certain specific, incremental and otheevgealifying SG&A expenses related to
the promotion or sale of vendor products may bsetfiby cash consideration received from vendora¢c@ordance with arrangements such as
cooperative advertising, when earned for dollar am® up to but not exceeding actual incrementakcos

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assdtgle prepaid amounts for rent, maintenance, basilicenses, advertising, and insurance, an
amounts receivable for certain vendor rebates gmilyjnthose expected to be collected in cash) angbons.

Property and equipment

As the result of a merger transaction i722@Ghe Company's property and equipment was redaaitiestimated fair values. Property and
equipment acquired subsequent to the merger hasrbeerded at cost. The Company records depregiatid amortization on a straight-line
basis over the
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)

assets' estimated useful lives. The Company's ggoped equipment balances and depreciable livees@anmarized as follows:

Depreciable January 31, February 1,

(In thousands) Life 2014 2013

Land Indefinite $ 163,44( $ 176,86:
Land improvement 20 48,56¢ 80,83«
Buildings 39- 40 765,55! 773,83!
Leasehold improvemen (@) 326,12: 279,35.
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 3-10 2,078,89 1,828,57.
Construction in progres 70,33: 87,44«

3,452,911 3,226,89:

Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization 1,372,61 1,138,23.
Net property and equipme $ 2,080,30! $ 2,088,66!

(@) amortized over the lesser of the life of the agtlle lease term or the estimated useful life ofabese

Depreciation expense related to propertyequipment was approximately $315.3 million, $2illion and $243.7 million for 2013,
2012 and 2011. Amortization of capital lease assdtscluded in depreciation expense. Interestamdwed funds during the construction of
property and equipment is capitalized where apblednterest costs of $1.2 million, $0.6 millionca$1.5 million were capitalized in 2013,
2012 and 2011.

Impairment of long-lived assets

When indicators of impairment are prestivd,Company evaluates the carrying value of longeiassets, other than goodwill, in relation
to the operating performance and future cash flomtbe appraised values of the underlying asseteefally, the Company's policy is to revi
for impairment stores open more than three yearsliiich current cash flows from operations are tiggalmpairment results when the
carrying value of the assets exceeds the undiseddature cash flows expected to be generateddgdbets. The Company's estimate of
undiscounted future cash flows is based upon histiooperations of the stores and estimates oféuttore profitability which encompasses
many factors that are subject to variability anffialilt to predict. If a long-lived asset is fouta be impaired, the amount recognized for
impairment is equal to the difference between #reying value and the asset's estimated fair valbe.fair value is estimated based primarily
upon estimated future cash flows over the assatigining useful life (discounted at the Companseslit adjusted risk-free rate) or other
reasonable estimates of fair market value. Assdbe tdisposed of are adjusted to the fair valuetles cost to sell if less than the book value.

The Company recorded impairment chargdsdied in SG&A expense of approximately $0.5 milliar2013, $2.7 million in 2012 and
$1.0 million in 2011, to reduce the carrying vabieertain of its stores' assets. Such action weasngéd necessary based on the Company's
evaluation that such amounts would not be recoleaiimarily due to insufficient sales or excessiests resulting in negative current and
projected future cash flows at these locations.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)
Goodwill and other intangible assets

The Company amortizes intangible assets thegr estimated useful lives unless such livesdgemed indefinite. Goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives are tested for impa&niannually or more frequently if indicators ofgairment are present. Other intangible asset
are tested for impairment if indicators of impaimhare present. Impaired assets are written doviaitealue as required. No impairment of
intangible assets has been identified during artheperiods presented.

In accordance with accounting standardgémdwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets,entity has the option first to assess
qualitative factors to determine whether events@rmaimstances indicate that it is more likely thmax that goodwill or an indefinite-lived
intangible asset is impaired. If after such assessmn entity concludes that the asset is not ilagathen the entity is not required to take
further action. However, if an entity concludesesthise, then it is required to determine the failue of the asset using a quantitative
impairment test, and if impaired, the associatesg@smust be written down to fair value as desdribdurther detail below.

The quantitative goodwill impairment testi two-step process that requires managementke juggments in determining what
assumptions to use in the calculation. The firgp sif the process consists of estimating the finerof the Company's reporting unit based on
valuation techniques (including a discounted césh model using revenue and profit forecasts) amdparing that estimated fair value with
the recorded carrying value, which includes gooldWfithe estimated fair value is less than theydag value, a second step is performed to
compute the amount of the impairment by determimingimplied fair value" of goodwill. The determtien of the implied fair value of
goodwill would require the Company to allocate éstimated fair value of its reporting unit to itsats and liabilities. Any unallocated fair
value would represent the implied fair value of gwdl, which would be compared to its correspondaagrying value.

The quantitative impairment test for intdnhg assets compares the fair value of the intdegibset with its carrying amount. If the carr
amount of an intangible asset exceeds its faireyadn impairment loss is recognized in an amoundlen that excess.

Other assets

Noncurrent Other assets consist primaffilgualifying prepaid expenses, debt issuance aelsish are amortized over the life of the
related obligations, and utility, security and ateposits.

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Accrued expenses and other consist ofdhewing:

January 31, February 1,

(In thousands) 2014 2013

Compensation and benef $ 47,90¢ $ 76,98
Insurance 84,69 86,18¢
Taxes (other than taxes on incor 104,99( 89,32¢
Other 130,98: 104,93¢

$ 368,57 $ 357,431
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)

Other accrued expenses primarily inclugedirrent portion of liabilities for interest exsen legal settlements, freight expense, utilities,
and common area and other maintenance charges.

Insurance liabilities

The Company retains a significant portibmisk for its workers' compensation, employee treajeneral liability, property and automot
claim exposures. Accordingly, provisions are mawalie Company's estimates of such risks. The oaditted future claim costs for the
workers' compensation, general liability, and Healtim risks are derived using actuarial methodsare recorded as self-insurance reserves
pursuant to Company policy. To the extent that sgbent claim costs vary from those estimates, éutesults of operations will be affected as
the reserves are adjusted.

Ashley River Insurance Company ("ARIC"Sauth Carolina-based wholly owned captive insurautssidiary of the Company, charges
the operating subsidiary companies premiums tar@nhe retained workers' compensation and non-piyppgeneral liability exposures.
Pursuant to South Carolina insurance regulatioR8CAs required to maintain certain levels of casld cash equivalents related to its self-
insured exposures. ARIC currently insures no utedl¢hird-party risk.

Operating leases and related liabilities

Rent expense is recognized over the tertheofease. The Company records minimum rentalresgpen a straight-line basis over the bas
non-cancelable lease term commencing on the dateith Company takes physical possession of thgepsofrom the landlord, which
normally includes a period prior to the store opgrtb make necessary leasehold improvements atall istore fixtures. When a lease contain:
a predetermined fixed escalation of the minimunt,rigre Company recognizes the related rent expemsestraight-line basis and records the
difference between the recognized rental expenddhemamounts payable under the lease as defemédlienant allowances, to the extent
received, are recorded as deferred incentive rethiee amortized as a reduction to rent expensetibggerm of the lease. Any difference
between the calculated expense and the amountslgqiaid are reflected as a liability, with ther@nt portion in Accrued expenses and othel
and the long-term portion in Other liabilities letconsolidated balance sheets, and totaled appatedy $49.5 million and $43.6 million at
January 31, 2014 and February 1, 2013, respectively

The Company recognizes contingent rentaérge when the achievement of specified salestsaage considered probable. The amount
expensed but not paid as of January 31, 2014 amdi&g 1, 2013 was approximately $6.0 million a@drdmillion, respectively, and is
included in Accrued expenses and other in the dimlaed balance sheets.

59




DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)
Other liabilities
Noncurrent Other liabilities consist of fledowing:

January 31, February 1,

(In thousands) 2014 2013

Compensation and benef $ 17,60¢ $ 18,40
Insurance 145,16 137,45:
Income tax related reserv 18,80: 23,38:
Deferred gain on sale leasebi 62,69: —
Other 52,28¢ 46,16:

$ 296,54t $§ 225,39

Amounts categorized as "Other" in the tatideve consist primarily of deferred rent and daiixe liabilities.

Fair value accounting

The Company utilizes accounting standandédir value, which include the definition of faialue, the framework for measuring fair
value, and disclosures about fair value measuresmEatr value is a market-based measurement, nentitig-specific measurement. Therefore,
a fair value measurement should be determined b@as#ue assumptions that market participants wasélin pricing the asset or liability. As a
basis for considering market participant assumgtiarfair value measurements, fair value accourgtagdards establish a fair value hierarchy
that distinguishes between market participant apsioms based on market data obtained from sounckependent of the reporting entity
(observable inputs that are classified within Levelnd 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting gatiwn assumptions about market participan
assumptions (unobservable inputs classified witleivel 3 of the hierarchy).

Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unestigd) in active markets for identical assetsabilities that the Company has the ability to
access. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than qumieds included in Level 1 that are directly adinectly observable for the asset or liability.
Level 2 inputs may include quoted prices for simédasets and liabilities in active markets, as @aglinputs that are observable for the asset ol
liability (other than quoted prices), such as iestrates, foreign exchange rates, and yield cuhatsare observable at commonly quoted
intervals. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inpatgtie asset or liability, which are based on aityém own assumptions, as there is little, if
any, observable market activity. In instances whieecfair value measurement is based on inputs fifferent levels of the fair value
hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchyhin which the entire fair value measurement fallsased on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in itdrety. The Company's assessment of the signifieafi@ particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgment amsiders factors specific to the asset or liability

The valuation of the Company's derivativaficial instruments is determined using widelyegded valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flow analysis on the expected ftasis of each derivative. This analysis reflects tontractual terms of the derivatives,
including the period to maturity, and uses obsdevaimarket-based inputs, including interest rateesir The fair values of interest rate swaps
are determined using the market standard methogalbgetting the discounted
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)

future fixed cash payments (or receipts) and tbeadinted expected variable cash receipts (or pagndine variable cash receipts (or
payments) are based on an expectation of futueedst rates (forward curves) derived from observatdrket interest rate curves.

The Company incorporates credit valuatidjustments (CVAS) to appropriately reflect bothatsn nonperformance risk and the
respective counterparty's nonperformance riskérfdlir value measurements. In adjusting the fdinevaf its derivative contracts for the effect
of nonperformance risk, the Company has considitreimpact of netting and any applicable creditaadements, such as collateral postings,
thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees.

In connection with accounting standardsféarvalue measurement, the Company has madecauating policy election to measure the
credit risk of its derivative financial instrumertbe&t are subject to master netting agreementsnan basis by counterparty portfolio. The
Company has determined that the majority of theimpised to value its derivatives fall within LeRebf the fair value hierarchy. However, the
CVAs associated with its derivatives utilize Le@ahputs, such as estimates of current credit sisremevaluate the likelihood of default by
itself and its counterparties. As of January 31,&2@he Company has assessed the significance ahttact of the CVAs on the overall
valuation of its derivative positions and has daiaed that the CVAs are not significant to the alleraluation of its derivatives. Based on the
Company's review of the CVAs by counterparty pdigfidche Company has determined that the CVAs atesignificant to the overall portfoli
valuations, as the CVAs are deemed to be immatertakrms of basis points and are a very smallgrgege of the aggregate notional value of
the derivative instruments. Although some of theAS\As a percentage of termination value appeae todre significant, primary emphasis
was placed on a review of the CVA in basis poimid tne percentage of the notional value. As a tethid Company has determined that its
derivative valuations in their entirety are claigsifin Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company accounts for derivative finahitistruments in accordance with applicable actingrstandards for such instruments and
hedging activities, which require that all derivat are recorded on the balance sheet at fair veheeaccounting for changes in the fair value
of derivatives depends on the intended use of ¢heative, whether the Company has elected to daséga derivative in a hedging relations
and apply hedge accounting and whether the hedglationship has satisfied the criteria necessagpply hedge accounting.

Derivatives designated and qualifying &®dge of the exposure to changes in the fair vailaa asset, liability, or firm commitment
attributable to a particular risk, such as interast risk, are considered fair value hedges. Bévigs designated and qualifying as a hedge of
the exposure to variability in expected future ctaivs, or other types of forecasted transactians,considered cash flow hedges. Derivatives
may also be designated as hedges of the foreigarmy exposure of a net investment in a foreignatpm. Hedge accounting generally
provides for the matching of the timing of gainl@ss recognition on the hedging instrument withré@ognition of the changes in the fair ve
of the hedged asset or liability that are attribleao the hedged risk in a fair value hedge oretlimings effect of the hedged forecasted
transactions in a cash flow hedge. The Companyenéggr into derivative contracts that are intenaeedonomically hedge a certain portion of
its risk, even
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)
though hedge accounting does not apply or the Coynelects not to apply the hedge accounting staisdar

The Company's derivative financial instrumse in the form of interest rate swaps at Jan@an2014, are related to variable interest rate
risk exposures associated with the Company's leng-tlebt and were entered into in an effort to rganhat risk. The counterparties to the
Company's derivative agreements are all majornaténal financial institutions. The Company contity monitors its position and the credit
ratings of its counterparties and does not antieipanperformance by the counterparties.

Revenue and gain recognition

The Company recognizes retail sales intidses at the time the customer takes possessimerhandise. All sales are net of discounts
and estimated returns and are presented net of éssessed by governmental authorities that aresiedpconcurrent with those sales. The
liability for retail merchandise returns is basedtibe Company's prior experience. The Company dsogain contingencies when realized.

The Company recognizes gift card salesmeeet the time of redemption. The liability foetift cards is established for the cash valt
the time of purchase. The liability for outstandugifi cards was approximately $4.3 million and $&#lion at January 31, 2014 and
February 1, 2013, respectively, and is recordeicitcrued expenses and other liabilities. Throughudan31, 2014, the Company has not
recorded any breakage income related to its gift pepogram.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed upon perdoeg, "first showing" or distribution, and are eetied in SG&A expenses net of earned
cooperative advertising amounts provided by venddrish are specific, incremental and otherwise ifiia expenses related to the promo
or sale of vendor products for dollar amounts upubnot exceeding actual incremental costs. Adsiag costs were $70.5 million,
$61.7 million and $50.4 million in 2013, 2012 ar@il2, respectively. These costs primarily includenpotional circulars, targeted circulars
supporting new stores, television and radio adsiedi in-store signage, and costs associated hatlsponsorships of certain automobile racing
activities. Vendor funding for cooperative advertsoffset reported expenses by $31.9 million, 628illion and $20.8 million in 2013, 2012
and 2011, respectively.

Share-based payments

The Company recognizes compensation exgenshare-based compensation based on the faie \wdlthe awards on the grant date.
Forfeitures are estimated at the time of valuasiod reduce expense ratably over the vesting pefiud.estimate may be adjusted periodically
based on the extent to which actual forfeiturefedifor are expected to differ, from the prior estte. The forfeiture rate is the estimated
percentage of options granted that are expectbd forfeited or canceled before becoming fully gdsiThe Company bases this estimate on
historical experience or estimates of future tremgsapplicable. An increase in the forfeiture wiledecrease compensation expense.

The fair value of each option grant is sefely estimated and amortized into compensati@eese on a straight-line basis between the
applicable grant date and each vesting date. Thep@oy
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has estimated the fair value of all stock optioraais as of the grant date by applying the Blackef&sHMerton option pricing valuation mod:
The application of this valuation model involves@asiptions that are judgmental and highly sensitivbe determination of compensation
expense.

The Company calculates compensation expgensestricted stock, share units and similar alsas the difference between the market
price of the underlying stock on the grant date #wedourchase price, if any. Such expense is rézedron a straight-line basis for graded
awards or an accelerated basis for performancedaveser the period in which the recipient earnsathards.

Store pre-opening costs
Pre-opening costs related to new store iagerand the related construction periods are esquéas incurred.
Income taxes

Under the accounting standards for incasmes, the asset and liability method is used farmating the future income tax consequences
of events that have been recognized in the Company'solidated financial statements or incomeeaxns. Deferred income tax expense or
benefit is the net change during the year in then@any's deferred income tax assets and liabilities.

The Company includes income tax relateer@dt and penalties as a component of the provistancome tax expense.

Income tax reserves are determined usmgthodology which requires companies to assessipagime tax position taken using a two-
step process. A determination is first made ashether it is more likely than not that the positieii be sustained, based upon the technical
merits, upon examination by the taxing authoritiEthe tax position is expected to meet the mikely than not criteria, the benefit recorded
for the tax position equals the largest amountithgteater than 50% likely to be realized upoimdte settlement of the respective tax posi
Uncertain tax positions require determinations @stiinated liabilities to be made based on proviswmirthe tax law which may be subject to
change or varying interpretation. If the Compagterminations and estimates prove to be inaccuteaesulting adjustments could be
material to the Company's future financial results.

Management estimates

The preparation of financial statements rhated disclosures in conformity with accountprinciples generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates sunehptsons that affect the reported amounts of ass®l liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the datthefconsolidated financial statements and the teg@mounts of revenues and expenses durir
reporting periods. Actual results could differ fréhose estimates.

Accounting standards

In February 2013, the Financial Account8tgndards Board issued an accounting standardsewgtich requires additional disclosures
with regard to an entity's balances of and amorgdiassified out of accumulated other comprehensiseme in its financial statements. The
Company adopted this guidance in the first quat@013. All of the Company's related balancescash flow
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1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)

hedges, and the required disclosures are refl@etddte 7 below. The adoption of this guidance it have a material effect on the Compe
consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of the 2012 a@@2amounts have been made to conform to the 2@&k&ptation.
2. Goodwill and other intangible assets

As of January 31, 2014 and February 1, 28%8balances of the Company's intangible assets as follows:

As of January 31, 201¢

Remaining Accumulated
(In thousands) Life Amount Amortization Net
Goodwill Indefinite  $ 4,338,58! $ — $ 4,338,58!
Other intangible asset
Leasehold interes lto9years $ 64,64« $ 56,69¢ $ 7,94¢
Trade names and tradema Indefinite 1,199,70! — 1,199,70!
$ 1,264,34. $ 56,69¢ $ 1,207,64!
As of February 1, 2012
Remaining Accumulated
(In thousands) Life Amount Amortization Net
Goodwill Indefinite $ 4,338,568 $ — $ 4,338,58
Other intangible asset
Leasehold interes ltolOyearr $ 10691 $ 87,07« $ 19,84
Trade names and tradema Indefinite 1,199,70! — 1,199,70!
$ 1,306,61 $ 87,07« $ 1,219,54.

The Company recorded amortization expeelsead to amortizable intangible assets for 200322and 2011 of $11.9 million,
$16.9 million and $21.0 million, respectively, aflwhich is included in rent expense. Expectedriizash flows associated with the Compe
intangible assets are not expected to be mateaigted by the Company's intent or ability toeeror extend the arrangements. The
Company's goodwill balance is not expected to lnridigble for tax purposes.

For intangible assets subject to amortiratihe estimated aggregate amortization expemseafth of the five succeeding fiscal years is a:
follows: 2014—$5.8 million, 2015—%$0.9 million, 20£650.3 million, 2017—3$0.2 million and 2018—$0.2 riah.
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3. Earnings per share

Earnings per share is computed as follomwghpusands except per share data):

2013
Weighted
Average Per Share
Net Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per she $ 1,025,111 322,88 $ 3.17
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 96¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 1,025,111 323,85: $ 3.17
2012
Weighted
Average Per Share
Net Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per she $ 952,66: 332,25: § 2.87
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 2,21°F
Diluted earnings per sha $ 952,66. 334,46¢ $§ 2.8F
2011
Weighted
Average Per Share
Net Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per she $ 766,688 341,23 $§ 2.2t
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 3,88:
Diluted earnings per sha $ 766,68!

34511 $§  2.27

Basic earnings per share was computedviglidg net income by the weighted average numbehafes of common stock outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share wasrdehed based on the dilutive effect of share-baseards using the treasury stock method.

zero in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Options to purchase shares of common statkwere outstanding at the end of the respeptivids, but were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share becaweseffect of exercising such options would be adlotise, were 1.1 million, 0.8 million, and
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4. Income taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxessists of the following:

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Current:
Federal $ 530,72¢ $ 457,37( $ 385,27
Foreign 1,32¢ 1,20¢ 1,44¢
State 101,17 78,02t 56,27:
633,22¢ 536,60 442 ,99¢
Deferred:
Federal (16,137 9,73¢ 8,31:
State (13,880) (1,606 7,292

(30,017 8,12¢ 15,60¢
$ 603,21+ $ 544,73. $ 458,60:

A reconciliation between actual income taaad amounts computed by applying the federaltsigtrate to income before income taxe
summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
U.S. federal statutory rate on

earnings before income tax $ 569,91t 35.(% $ 524,08¢ 35.(% $ 428,85 35.(%
State income taxes, net of fede

income tax benef 56,82: 3.5 52,71 3.5 42,77¢ 3.5
Jobs credits, net of federal

income taxe! (19,34 (1.2 (16,065 (1.7 (15,159 (1.9
Reduction in valuation

allowances (437) — (3,060 (0.2 (2,202 (0.2
Reduction in income tax resen (6,397) (0.9 (13,67¢ (0.9 — —
Other, ne 2,652 0.1 71¢ 0.1 4,33¢ 0.2

$ 603,21 37.(% $ 544,73 36.% $ 458,60: 37.%

The 2013 effective tax rate was an expensd.0%. The 2013 effective income tax rate inseesfrom 2012 due to the favorable
resolution of income tax examinations during 201z did not reoccur, to the same extent, in 20h8 Tate increase was partially offset by
recording of an income tax benefit in 2013 assediatith the expiration of the assessment periothduwhich the taxing authorities could hi
assessed additional income tax associated witGdnepany's 2009 tax year. In addition, the 2013 artreflect larger income tax benefits
associated with federal jobs credits. The Compangives a significant income tax benefit relatedaiaries paid to certain newly hired
employees that qualify for federal jobs creditsr@pally the Work Opportunity Tax Credit or "WOTYLThe federal law authorizing the
WOTC credit expired for employees hired after DebbenB81, 2013. Whether these credits will be avilétr employees hired after

December 31, 2013 depends upon a change in thavtakhat extends the expiration date of these tmdvisions, the certainty and timing of
which are currently unclear.

The 2012 effective tax rate was an expefis$®.4%. This expense was greater than the fedtxtltory tax rate of 35% due primarily to
the inclusion of state income taxes in the totative tax
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rate. The 2012 effective tax rate of 36.4% was lailvan the 2011 rate of 37.4% due to the favoreddelution of a federal income tax
examination during 2012.

The 2011 effective tax rate was an expefs$d.4%. This expense was greater than the fedtatltory tax rate of 35% due primarily to
the inclusion of state income taxes in the totldcative tax rate.

Deferred taxes reflect the effects of terappdifferences between carrying amounts of asseddiabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for income tax pesp8ggnificant components of the Company's dedelar assets and liabilities are as
follows:

January 31, February 1,

(In thousands) 2014 2013
Deferred tax asset
Deferred compensation exper $ 8,66¢ $ 9,27¢
Accrued expenses and ott 9,061 5,72
Accrued ren 17,37¢ 15,45(
Accrued insuranc 78,55 72,44;
Accrued incentive compensati 3,38¢ 15,39¢
Interest rate hedge 4,921 1,88:
Tax benefit of income tax and interest reservestedlto uncertain ta:
positions 3,43¢ 2,69¢
Deferred gain on se-leasebacl 26,18¢ —
Other 15,09/ 13,91«
State tax net operating loss carry forwards, néedéral tax 282 64t
State tax credit carry forwards, net of federal 8,28 8,92¢
175,25: 146,35’
Less valuation allowanc (1,399 (1,830
Total deferred tax asse 173,86: 144,52
Deferred tax liabilities
Property and equipme (307,649 (294,209
Inventories (64,48)) (67,24¢)
Trademark: (433,13() (435,529
Amortizable assel (2,349 (6,809
Bonus related tax method char — (6,539
Other (2,089 (4,49¢)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (809,68, (814,820
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (635,82) $ (670,29)
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Net deferred tax liabilities are reflectparately on the consolidated balance sheetst@ntand noncurrent deferred income taxes. The
following table summarizes net deferred tax lidigi as recorded in the consolidated balance sheets

January 31, February 1,

(In thousands) 2014 2013

Current deferred income tax liabilities, 1 $ (21,79H $ (23,22)
Noncurrent deferred income tax liabilities, (614,026 (647,070
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (635,82) $ (670,29)

The Company has state net operating lasg fmwards as of January 31, 2014 that total apipnately $4.3 million which will expire in
2028. The Company also has state tax credit caroydrds of approximately $12.7 million that willgxe beginning in 2021 through 2024.

A valuation allowance has been providedstate tax credit carry forwards and federal chfptses. The 2013, 2012, and 2011 decrease
of $0.4 million, $3.1 million and $2.2 million, nesctively, were recorded as a reduction in incomxeeikpense. Based upon expected future
income, management believes that it is more likieéyn not that the results of operations will geteesafficient taxable income to realize the
deferred tax assets after giving consideratiom¢ovaluation allowance.

The Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") has/fmusly examined the Company's 2008 and earlarfd income tax returns. As a result, the
2008 and earlier tax years are not open for furtik@mination by the IRS. The Company has filedraeraded federal income tax return
requesting a refund of approximately $5.1 million its 2009 tax year. This amended return is exquetti be examined by the IRS. As the
statute of limitations has otherwise closed for2089 tax year, the IRS' ability to assess additiomcome tax for 2009 is limited to the refund
requested on the amended income tax return. ThedRS discretion, may also choose to examineXtvapany's 2010 through 2013 fiscal
year income tax filings. The Company has varioatesncome tax examinations that are currentlyagpess. Generally, the Company's 2
and later tax years remain open for examinatiothbyarious state taxing authorities.

As of January 31, 2014, accruals for uraderiax benefits, interest expense related to irctares and potential income tax penalties wel
$19.6 million, $2.4 million and $0.4 million, respively, for a total of $22.4 million. Of this tdtamount, $3.6 million and $18.8 million are
reflected in current liabilities as Accrued expenaad other and in noncurrent Other liabilitiespestively, in the consolidated balance sheet.

As of February 1, 2013, accruals for uraiartax benefits, interest expense related to irctares and potential income tax penalties wel
$22.2 million, $2.3 million and $0.4 million, resg#ely, for a total of $24.9 million. Of this tdtamount, $1.5 million and $23.4 million are
reflected in current liabilities as Accrued expenaad other and in noncurrent Other liabilitiespetively, in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Company believes that it is reasonpbBsible that the reserve for uncertain tax passtimay be reduced by approximately
$11.2 million in the coming twelve months princigads a result of the effective settlement of salveutstanding issues. Also, as of Januar
2014, approximately
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$19.6 million of the uncertain tax positions wouttpact the Company's effective income tax rateéf Company were to recognize the tax
benefit for these positions.

The amounts associated with uncertain &itions included in income tax expense consista®following:

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011

Income tax expense (bene $ (3,915 $ (16,119 $ 97
Income tax related interest expense (ben 59C 344 96¢
Income tax related penalty expense (ben 30 (200 63

A reconciliation of the uncertain income fmsitions from January 28, 2011 through Janu&n2814 is as follows:

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Beginning balanc $ 22,237 $ 42,01t $ 26,42¢
Increases—tax positions taken in the curre

year 3,48¢ 2,11¢ 12¢
Increase—tax positions taken in prior yee 3,00( 1,14¢ 15,84(
Decrease—tax positions taken in prior yee (60¢) (22,669 —
Statute expiration (7,622) (16€) (37¢)
Settlement: (90¢) (204) —
Ending balanc: $ 19,58: § 22,237 $ 42,01¢

5. Current and long-term obligations

Current and long-term obligations consfghe following:

January 31, February 1,

(In thousands) 2014 2013
Senior unsecured credit facilities, maturity Adrdl, 2018:

Term Facility $ 1,000,000 $ —

Revolving Facility — —
Senior secured term loan facilit

Maturity July 6, 201« — 1,083,80!

Maturity July 6, 201" — 879,70(
ABL Facility, maturity July 6, 201. — 286,50(
41/8% Senior Notes due July 15, 2017 500,00 500,00
17/8% Senior Notes due April 15, 2018 (net of discanfr383) 399,61 —
31/4% Senior Notes due April 15, 2023 (net of disconfr$2,199) 897,80: —
Capital lease obligatior 6,841 7,73
Tax increment financing due February 1, 2 14,49t 14,49t

2,818,75. 2,772,22i

Less: current portio (75,96¢6) (892)
Long-term portion $ 2,742,78 $ 2,771,331
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On April 11, 2013, the Company consummateeffinancing pursuant to which it terminated kstng senior secured credit agreements,
entered into a new five-year unsecured credit ageee, and issued senior notes due in 2018 and @9#8scribed in more detail below. The
Company's new senior unsecured credit facilities {Facilities") consist of a $1.0 billion seniarsecured term loan facility (the "Term
Facility") and an $850.0 million senior unsecuredalving credit facility (the "Revolving Facility; which provides for the issuance of letters
of credit up to $250.0 million. The Company mayuest, subject to agreement by one or more lenoergased revolving commitments
and/or incremental term loan facilities in an aggte amount of up to $150.0 million. The Term Rgcivill amortize in quarterly installments
of $25.0 million, with the first such payment due August 1, 2014, and final payment at maturityAqmil 11, 2018. The Company capitalized
$5.9 million of debt issuance costs associated thighFacilities which is included in long-term Otlaessets, net in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Borrowings under the Facilities bear ins¢i@ a rate equal to an applicable margin plugiea€Company's option, either (a) LIBOR or (t
base rate (which is usually equal to the prime)rdtiee applicable margin for borrowings as of Jay#., 2014 was 1.275% for LIBOR
borrowings and 0.275% for basate borrowings. The Company must also pay a fadéie on any used and unused amounts of the fresila:
well as letter of credit fees. The applicable masgor borrowings, the facility fees and the letiécredit fees under the Facilities are subject t
adjustment each quarter based on the Company'ddéomgsenior unsecured debt ratings. The weightedage interest rate for borrowings
under the Facilities was 1.46% (without giving effto the interest rate swaps discussed in Noés Of January 31, 2014.

The Facilities can be prepaid in wholeropart at any time. The Facilities contain certamenants which place limitations on the
incurrence of liens; change of business; mergessies of all or substantially all assets; and islidny indebtedness, among other limitations.
The Facilities also contain financial covenantschlhiequire the maintenance of a minimum fixed chamgyverage ratio and a maximum
leverage ratio. As of January 31, 2014, the Compeayin compliance with all such covenants. Thelfias also contain customary
affirmative covenants and events of default.

As of January 31, 2014, the Company haal tattstanding letters of credit of $49.9 milli&27.2 million of which were under the
Revolving Facility, and borrowing availability undéae Revolving Facility was $822.8 million.

In connection with the refinancing discusabove, the Company terminated its senior sederedloan facility and senior secured
revolving credit facility ("ABL Facility"). The Comany recorded a pretax loss of $18.9 million fa #rite off of debt issuance costs
associated with those facilities, which is reflecte Other (income) expense in the consolidateigstant of income for the year ended
January 31, 2014.

On July 12, 2012, the Company issued $500llibn aggregate principal amount of 4.125% semiotes due 2017 (the "2017 Senior
Notes") which mature on July 15, 2017. Interestren2017 Senior Notes is payable in cash on Jarillaand July 15 of each year, ¢
commenced on January 15, 2013.

On April 11, 2013, the Company issued $@00illion aggregate principal amount of 1.875% semiotes due 2018 (the "2018 Senior
Notes"), net of discount of $0.5 million, which raeg on April 15, 2018; and issued $900.0 millioggate principal amount of 3.25% ser
notes due 2023 (the "2023 Senior Notes"), netsxfalint of $2.4 million, which mature on April 1523.
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Collectively, the 2017 Senior Notes, the 2018 SeNiates and the 2023 Senior Notes comprise theiégalotes”, each of which were issued
pursuant to an indenture as modified by supplenhérdantures relating to each series of Senior dl¢ds so supplemented, the "Senior
Indenture"). The Company capitalized $10.1 millafrdebt issuance costs associated with the 201®1Sentes and the 2023 Senior Notes.
Interest on the 2018 Senior Notes and 2023 Serotes\is payable in cash on April 15 and Octobeofléach year and commenced on
October 15, 2013.

The Company may redeem some or all ofétsi@ Notes at any time at redemption prices s fio the Senior Indenture. Upon the
occurrence of a change of control triggering evetich is defined in the Senior Indenture, eacliléobf the Senior Notes has the right to
require the Company to repurchase some or allaf bolder's Senior Notes at a purchase price in egaal to 101% of the principal amount
thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if &amyhe repurchase date.

The Senior Indenture contains covenantgifigy among other things, the ability of the Compdsubject to certain exceptions) to
consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise disposelafraubstantially all of the Company's assets; taedability of the Company and its
subsidiaries to incur or guarantee indebtednessagdy liens on any shares of voting stock ofificant subsidiaries.

The Senior Indenture also provides for éveh default which, if any of them occurs, wouletmit or require the principal of and accrued
interest on the Senior Notes to become or to bladEtdue and payable.

On July 15, 2012, the Company redeemed .$450lion aggregate principal amount of outstaigdéenior subordinated notes due 2017 a
a premium, resulting in a pretax loss of $29.0iomllwhich is reflected in Other (income) expens¢him consolidated statement of income for
the year ended February 1, 2013. The Company futiseecedemption price for the senior subordina@sndue 2017 with proceeds from the
issuance of the 2017 Senior Notes.

In 2011, the Company repurchased or redde$864.3 million aggregate principal amount of tatging senior notes due 2015 at a
premium, resulting in pretax losses totaling $60Qilion which are reflected in Other (income) expenn the consolidated statement of incom
for the year ended February 3, 2012. The Companged the redemption price for the senior notes2ié with cash on hand and borrowii
under the ABL Facility.

Scheduled debt maturities, including cdpéase obligations, for the Company's fiscal ydiated below are as follows (in thousands):
2014—$75,966; 2015—%$101,158; 2016—%$101,379; 20170+$890; 2018—$1,025,892; thereafter—$915,651.
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The following table presents the Compaagsets and liabilities measured at fair value mtarring basis as of January 31, 2014,
aggregated by the level in the fair value hierangfithin which those measurements are classified.

Quoted Prices

in Active
Markets Significant
for Identical Other Significant
Assets and Observable Unobservable Balance at
Liabilities Inputs Inputs January 31,
(In thousands) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2014
Assets:
Trading securities(e $ 621 $ — 9 — 9 621
Liabilities:
Long-term obligations(b 2,772,73! 21,33¢ — 2,794,07!
Derivative financial instruments( — 4,10¢ — 4,10¢
Deferred compensation( 21,69¢ — — 21,69¢

(a) Reflected at fair value in the consolidated balastoeet as Prepaid expenses and other current.assets

(b) Reflected at book value in the consolidateldmze sheet as Current portion of long-term obiiget of $75,966 and Long-
term obligations of $2,742,788.

(c) Reflected at fair value in the consolidatethbhee sheet as noncurrent Other liabilities.

(d) Reflected at fair value in the consolidated balastwet as Accrued expenses and other currenitiebibf $4,092 and
noncurrent Other liabilities of $17,6C

The carrying amounts reflected in the ctidated balance sheets for cash, cash equivakmst-term investments, receivables and
payables approximate their respective fair valliae. Company does not have any recurring fair valteasurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) as of January 314201

7. Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into certain finanagiatriument positions, all of which are intended¢aused to reduce risk by hedging an
underlying economic exposure.

Risk management objective of using derivatives

The Company is exposed to certain risksiragifrom both its business operations and econeomditions. The Company principally
manages its exposures to a wide variety of busimed®perational risks through management of its basiness activities. The Company
manages economic risks, including interest rag@jdity, and credit risk, primarily by managing theount, sources, and duration of its debt
funding and the use of derivative financial instents. Specifically, the Company enters into deieatinancial instruments to manage
exposures that arise from business activitiesrétlt in the receipt or payment of future knowd ancertain cash amounts, the value of w
are determined primarily by interest rates. The Gany's derivative financial instruments are used to
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manage differences in the amount, timing, and damradf the Company's known or expected cash rexaipd its known or expected cash
payments principally related to the Company's beimgs.

In addition, the Company is exposed toaientisks arising from uncertainties of future netrkalues caused by the fluctuation in the
prices of commaodities. From time to time the Conmyparay enter into derivative financial instrumerdgtotect against future price changes
related to these commaodity prices.

Cash flow hedges of interest rate risk

The Company's objectives in using interatd derivatives are to add stability to intereqtesse and to manage its exposure to interes
changes. To accomplish this objective, the Compmimgarily uses interest rate swaps as part ohteréest rate risk management strategy.
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedgase the receipt of variablete amounts from a counterparty in exchange ®iGbmpan
making fixed-rate payments over the life of theesgnents without exchange of the underlying notianabunt.

The effective portion of changes in the failue of derivatives designated and that quagycash flow hedges is recorded in Accumulate
other comprehensive income (loss) (also referreastdOCI") and is subsequently reclassified intmiggs in the period that the hedged
forecasted transaction affects earnings. Thesedddions represent the only amounts reflected suAwilated other comprehensive income
(loss) in the consolidated statements of shareh®ldquity. During the years ended January 31, 2B&druary 1, 2013, and February 3, 2012,
such derivatives were used to hedge the varialsle ffaws associated with existing variable-ratetd&be ineffective portion of the change in
fair value of the derivatives is recognized dirgdtl earnings.

As of January 31, 2014, the Company hastést rate swaps with a combined notional valus8@E million that were designated as cash
flow hedges of interest rate risk. Amounts reportedccumulated other comprehensive income (losisited to derivatives will be reclassified
to interest expense as interest payments are nmathedCompany's variable-rate debt.

During the year ended January 31, 2014Ctmpany entered into treasury locks with a combimational amount of $700 million that
were designated as cash flow hedges of interestiskt on the Company's forecasted issuance oftiemg debt. The issuance of the hedged
long-term debt occurred on April 11, 2013 in thenfcof senior notes due April 15, 2023, as furthiscdssed in Note 5, and the related
settlement of the treasury locks on that date teduh a loss of $13.2 million which was deferredXCl. The loss is being amortized as an
increase to interest expense over the period qunelng to the debt's maturity as the Company ascou pays interest on the hedged long-
term debt. There was no ineffectiveness recogrizetthese designated treasury locks.

During the next 52-week period, the Compasiymates that approximately $4.7 million will teelassified as an increase to interest
expense for its interest rate swaps and treasukglo

Non-designated hedges of commodity risk

Derivatives not designated as hedges drspazulative and are used to manage the Compaxpésure to commodity price risk but do
not meet strict hedge accounting requirements. @&gm the fair value of derivatives not designateldedging relationships are recorded
directly in earnings. As of January 31, 2014, tleenPany had no such non-designated hedges.
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The table below presents the fair valuthefCompany's derivative financial instruments a#i as their classification on the consolidated
balance sheets as of January 31, 2014 and Feliruaéji 3:

January 31, February 1,

(in thousands) 2014 2013
Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instrumi

Interest rate swaps classified as noncurrent Othe
liabilities $ 410¢ $ 4,827

The tables below present the pre-tax efféthe Company's derivative financial instrumesgtgeflected in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income and shareholders' equityp@ligable:

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationst

Loss related to effective portion of derivativeagnized in

OcCl $ 16,03¢ $ 9,62¢ $ 3,83¢
Loss related to effective portion of derivativelessified from

Accumulated OCI to Interest exper $ 4,60 $ 13,327 $ 28,63
(Gain) loss related to ineffective portion of dative

recognized in Other (income) expel $ — $ (239) $ 31z

Credit-risk-related contingent features

The Company has agreements with all dhterest rate swap counterparties that contairogigion providing that the Company could be
declared in default on its derivative obligatioheepayment of the underlying indebtedness is acatdd by the lender due to the Company's
default on such indebtedness.

As of January 31, 2014, the fair valuendérest rate swaps in a net liability position, ethincludes accrued interest but excludes any
adjustment for nonperformance risk related to ttegeements, was $4.2 million. If the Company ha@dthed any of these provisions at
January 31, 2014, it could have been required $b fodl collateral or settle its obligations undke agreements at an estimated termination
value of $4.2 million. As of January 31, 2014, @@mpany had not breached any of these provisiopssted any collateral related to these
agreements.

8. Commitments and contingencies
Leases

As of January 31, 2014, the Company wasnaitied under operating lease agreements for mass oétail stores. Many of the Compar
stores are subject to build-to-suit arrangementis kandlords which typically carry a primary leasem of up to 15 years with multiple renewal
options. The Company also has stores subject tdeskterm leases and many of these leases haveakoptions. Certain of the Company's
leased stores have provisions for contingent refi@ased upon a specified percentage of defined galeme.

The land and buildings of the Company's IJsulton, Missouri and Indianola, Mississippi ateéhject to operating lease agreements an
the leased Ardmore, Oklahoma DC is subject to anfiing arrangement. The entities involved in th@enship structure underlying these
leases meet the
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accounting definition of a Variable Interest EnfityIE"). The Company is not the primary benefigiaf these VIEs and, accordingly, has not
included these entities in its consolidated finahstatements. Certain leases contain restrictiverants that, individually, are not material to
the Company. As of January 31, 2014, the Compangtiaware of any material violations of such cargs.

In January 2014, the Company sold 233 dtmations for cash and concurrent with the saadaction, the Company leased the prope
back for a period of 15 years. The transactionltedun cash proceeds of approximately $281.6 anlind a deferred gain of $67.2 million
which will be recognized as a reduction of rentange over the 15-year initial lease term of th@ertes.

In January 1999, the Company sold its D&ated in Ardmore, Oklahoma for cash and concumatht the sale transaction, the Company
leased the property back for a period of 23 yegs. transaction is accounted for as a financin@atibn rather than a sale as a result of,
among other things, the lessor's ability to putgteperty back to the Company under certain cir¢antes. The property and equipment, alon
with the related lease obligation associated with transaction are recorded in the consolidatéghioa sheets. In August 2007, the Company
purchased a secured promissory note (the "Ardmote"\Nfrom an unrelated third party with a faceueabf $34.3 million at the date of
purchase which approximated the remaining finanoislggation. The Ardmore Note represents debt iddayethe third party entity from which
the Company leases the Ardmore DC and therefor€dimepany holds the debt instrument pertainingstdeidse financing obligation. Becau:
legal right of offset exists, the Company is acdmgnfor the Ardmore Note as a reduction of itsstamding financing obligation in its
consolidated balance sheets.

Future minimum payments as of January 814Zor operating leases are as follows:

(In thousands)

2014 $ 712,56
2015 665,19:
2016 610,64.
2017 554,41:
2018 496,26!
Thereafte 2,699,75!
Total minimum payment $ 5,738,83;

Total minimum payments for capital leasesfJanuary 31, 2014 were $8.7 million, with aspré value of $6.8 million at January 31,
2014. The gross amount of property and equipmeotded under capital leases and financing obligatat both January 31, 2014 and
February 1, 2013, was $29.8 million. Accumulatefrdeiation on property and equipment under cafgtees and financing obligations at
January 31, 2014 and February 1, 2013, was $8liomiénd $6.9 million, respectively.
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Rent expense under all operating leasas fsllows:

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Minimum rentals(a $ 674,84¢ $ 599,13¢ $ 525,48t
Contingent rental 12,05¢ 15,15( 16,85¢

$ 686,900 $ 614,28{ $ 542,34.

(&)  Excludes amortization of leasehold interests of $Hillion, $16.9 million and $21.0 million includen rent
expense for the years ended January 31, 2014, &gtitu2013, and February 3, 2012, respectiy

Legal proceedings

On August 7, 2006, a lawsuit entitlégnthia Richter, et al. v. Dolgencorp, Inc., etwaas filed in the United States District Court fhet
Northern District of Alabama (Case No. 7-cv-01537-LSC) ("Richter") in which the plaintifflages that she and other current and former
Dollar General store managers were improperly fladsas exempt executive employees under thelldior Standards Act ("FLSA") and
seeks to recover overtime pay, liquidated damagebsattorneys' fees and costs. On August 15, 2B8Richterplaintiff filed a motion in
which she asked the court to certify a nationwilds< of current and former store managers. The @agnppposed the plaintiff's motion. On
March 23, 2007, the court conditionally certifiedationwide class. On December 2, 2009, noticemaited to over 28,000 current or former
Dollar General store managers. Approximately 3,@8id/iduals opted into the lawsuit, approximate|@d0 of whom have been dismissed for
various reasons, including failure to cooperatdifcovery.

On April 2, 2012, the Company moved to difgethe class. The plaintiff's response to thattion was filed on May 9, 2012.

On October 22, 2012, the court entered embtandum Opinion granting the Company's decertiicamotion. On December 19, 2012,
the court entered an Order decertifying the mater stating that a separate Order would be entegedding the opt-in plaintiffs' rights and
Cynthia Richter's individual claims. To date, tloeid has not entered such an Order.

The parties agreed to mediate the matber tlze court informally stayed the action pendimg iesults of the mediation. Mediations were
conducted in January, April and August 2013. Onuatd 0, 2013, the parties reached a preliminargeagent, which has been formalized anc
submitted to the court for approval, to resolventwdter for up to $8.5 million. The Company hasmdee the settlement probable and recordec
such amount as the estimated expense in the sgoancbr of 2013.

The Company believes that its store marsager and have been properly classified as exempibgees under the FLSA and that the
Richteraction is not appropriate for collective actioratraent. The Company has obtained summary judgmestme, although not all, of its
pending individual or single-plaintiff store managgemption cases in which it has filed such a amoti

At this time, although probabile, it is mettain that the court will approve the settleméfrit.does not, and the case proceeds, it is not
possible to predict wheth&ichterultimately will be permitted to proceed collectiyebnd no assurances can be given that the Convpidirpe
successful
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in its defense of the action on the merits or atfise. Similarly, at this time the Company canndineste either the size of any potential clas
the value of the claims asserted if this actionenterproceed. For these reasons, the Company deuttaestimate any potential loss or rang
loss in such a scenario; however, if the Compampisuccessful in its defense efforts, the regmiutf Richtercould have a material adverse
effect on the Company's consolidated financiakst@nts as a whole.

On April 9, 2012, the Company was servetthwilawsuit filed in the United States Districtuofor the Eastern District of Virginia
entitledJonathan Marcum v. Dolgencorp. I€ivil Action No. 3:12-cv-00108-JRS) in which th&amtiffs, one of whose conditional offer of
employment was rescinded, allege that certainefXbmpany's background check procedures violatedheCredit Reporting Act ("FCRA").
Plaintiff Marcum also alleges defamation. Accordinghe complaint and subsequently filed first aadond amended complaints, the plaintiff
seek to represent a putative class of applicantermection with their FCRA claims. The Companyegled to the complaint and each of the
amended complaints. The plaintiffs' certificationtion was due to be filed on or before April 5, 3phowever, plaintiffs asked the court to
stay all deadlines in light of the parties' ongogegtlement discussions (as more fully describéolge On November 12, 2013, the court
entered an order lifting the stay. The court hasssued a new scheduling order but has set ariptesdnference for March 27, 2014.

The parties have engaged in formal settférdiscussions on three occasions, once in Jar@dry with a private mediator, and again in
March 2013 and July 2013 with a federal magistr@re February 18, 2014, the parties reached a preliypagreement to resolve the mattel
up to $4.08 million, which must be submitted to apgroved by the court. Based on this preliminatylement agreement, the Company
believes, but cannot guarantee, that the courtnatilproceed with the March 27, 2014, pre-trialfecence.

The Company's Employment Practices Ligbilisurance ("EPLI") carrier has been placed oficeatf this matter and participated in both
the formal and informal settlement discussions. ER&| Policy covering this matter has a $2 millgeif-insured retention. Because the
Company believes that it was likely to expend thkibce of its self-insured retention in settlenwrthis litigation or otherwise, it accrued
$1.8 million in the fourth quarter of 2012, an ambthat is immaterial to the Company's consoliddirghcial statements as a whole.

At this time, although probabile, it is mettain that the court will approve the settleméithe court does not approve the settlement and
the case proceeds, it is not possible to predietidrMarcumultimately will be permitted to proceed as a clasgon under the FCRA, and no
assurances can be given that the Company will beessful in the defense on the merits or othervwfis¢his stage in the proceedings, the
Company cannot estimate either the size of anynpiateclass or the value of the claims assertethbyplaintiffs.

In September 2011, the Chicago Regionak®fif the United States Equal Employment Oppotyu@ommission ("EEOC" or
"Commission") notified the Company of a cause fimdielated to the Company's criminal backgroundklpelicy. The cause finding alleges
that Dollar General's criminal background checkgyplwhich excludes from employment individuals lwitertain criminal convictions for
specified periods, has a disparate impact on Afriéeerican candidates and employees in violatiomité VIl of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, as amended ("Title VII").
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The Company and the EEOC engaged in theatstdy required conciliation process, and desfite Company's good faith efforts to
resolve the matter, the Commission notified the Gany on July 26, 2012 of its view that conciliatived failed.

On June 11, 2013, the EEOC filed a lawisuihe United States District Court for the North&istrict of Illinois entitledEqual
Opportunity Commission v. Dolgencorp, LLC d/b/alBoGeneral(Case No. 1:13-cv-04307) in which the Commissidegas that the
Company's criminal background check policy hasspatiate impact on "Black Applicants" in violatiohTatle VIl and seeks to recover
monetary damages and injunctive relief on behalf offass of "Black Applicants.” The Company filésl Answer to the Complaint on Augus
2013.

On January 29, 2014, the court entered@erpwhich, among other things, bifurcates thadssof liability and damages during discovery
and at trial. Under this order, fact discovery tialg to liability is to be completed by Septemb&r 2014. A status conference is scheduled for
June 17, 2014.

The Company believes that its criminal lgaokind check process is both lawful and necessamystafe environment for its employees an
customers and the protection of its assets an@ékblers' investments. The Company also does fievbehat this matter is amenable to clas:
or similar treatment. However, at this time, ih possible to predict whether the action willralitely be permitted to proceed as a class or i
a similar fashion or the size of any putative cladsewise, at this time, it is not possible toiestte the value of the claims asserted, and,
therefore, the Company cannot estimate the potentosure or range of potential loss. If the nrattere to proceed successfully as a class o
similar action or the Company is unsuccessfuldrdifense efforts as to the merits of the actiaeguld have a material adverse effect on the
Company's consolidated financial statements asadewh

On May 23, 2013, a lawsuit entitldaan Varela v. Dolgen California and Does 1 throlsfh{Case No. RIC 1306158) ("Varela") was fi
in the Superior Court of the State of Californiatiee County of Riverside in which the plaintiffedes that he and other "key carriers" were
provided with meal and rest periods in violatiorGalifornia law and seeks to recover alleged unpaides, injunctive relief, consequential
damages, pre-judgment interest, statutory penaltidsattorneys' fees and costs. Vaeelaplaintiff seeks to represent a putative class of
California "key carriers" as to these claims. Marelaplaintiff also asserts a claim for unfair businpsactices and seeks to proceed under
California's Private Attorney General Act ("PAGA").

The Company removed the action to the dr&ates District Court for the Central District@dilifornia (Case No. 5:13-cv-01172VAP-
SP) on July 1, 2013, and filed its Answer to thenptaint on July 1, 2013. On July 30, 2013, thergl#imoved to remand the action to state
court. The Company's response to that motion vied éin August 19, 2013.

On September 13, 2013, the court granteihiiff's motion and remanded the case. The Comfited/a Petition for Permission to Appeal
to the United States Court of Appeals for the Ni@tlcuit on September 23, 2013. The Petition fanigsion to Appeal is pending.

A status conference has been scheduledeb@uperior Court for July 23, 2014. The partiesetegreed to informally stay discovery
pending a decision by the Ninth Circuit on the ®atifor Permission to Appeal.
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Similarly, on June 6, 2013, a lawsuit éatilVictoria Lee Dinger Main v. Dolgen California, LL&hd Does 1 through 10@ase No. 34-
2013-00146129) ("Main") was filed in the Superiayutt of the State of California for the County @fctamento. Th#lain plaintiff alleges the
she and other "key carriers" were not provided witral and rest periods, accurate wage statemesht@pgmopriate pay upon termination in
violation of California wage and hour laws and setkrecover alleged unpaid wages, declaratorgfrekstitution, statutory penalties and
attorneys' fees and costs. THain plaintiff seeks to represent a putative class dif@aia "key carriers" as to these claims. THain plaintiff
also asserts a claim for unfair business practioglsseeks to proceed under the PAGA.

The Company removed this action to the éthBtates District Court for the Eastern Distric€alifornia (Case No. 2:13-cv-01637-MCE-
KJIN) on August 7, 2013, and filed its Answer to @@mplaint on August 6, 2013. On August 29, 2018, flaintiff moved to remand the
action to state court. The Company's responseatatiotion was filed on September 19, 2013. On Gut@B, 2013, the court granted plaintiff's
motion and remanded the case. The Company filegtiidd for Permission to Appeal to the United 8saCourt of Appeals for the Ninth
Circuit on November 7, 2013. The plaintiff filed ibpposition brief on November 15, 2013. The Retitemains pending.

On February 6, 2014, the Superior Coudrmrefl the matter to the Trial Setting Process addred the parties to confer and agree upon ¢
date for trial and a mandatory settlement confexembe parties are to advise the Court of the aigiteed upon for a trial and settlement
conference no later than January 30, 2015. If Hrégs are unable to agree upon a date by suchtti@&ourt will assign the next available
dates.

The Company believes that its policies prattices comply with California law and that WerelaandMain actions are not appropriate
for class or similar treatment. The Company intetadégorously defend these actions; however, iatttine, it is not possible to predict
whether thé/arelaor Main action ultimately will be permitted to proceed adass, and no assurances can be given that theagmvill be
successful in its defense of either action on tleetsior otherwise. Similarly, at this time the Qmamy cannot estimate either the size of any
potential class or the value of the claims assért¢deVarelaandMain actions. For these reasons, the Company is unalelgtitmate any
potential loss or range of loss in either mattewvéver, if the Company is not successful in iteedsé efforts, the resolution of either action
could have a material adverse effect on the Compamysolidated financial statements as a whole.

On May 31, 2013, a lawsuit entitldadith Wass v. Dolgen Corp, LL{Case No. 13PO-CC00039) ("Wass") was filed in tireu@x Court
of Polk County, Missouri. Th&/assplaintiff seeks to proceed collectively on behdlaationwide class of similarly situated nexempt stort
employees who allegedly were not properly paiccgntain breaks in violation of the FLSA. Tidéassplaintiff seeks back wages (including
overtime), injunctive and declaratory relief, ligated damages, pre- and post-judgment interestttomheys' fees and costs.

On July 11, 2013, the Company removedahbt®on to the United States District Court for Western District of Missouri (Case
No. 6:11:-cv-03267-JFM). The Company filed its Answer onyJL8, 2013. The plaintiff's motion for conditior@@rtification is due to be filed
on or before March 28, 2014. The Company's respisndge to be filed on or before April 25, 2014.

Similarly, on July 2, 2013, a lawsuit eletitRachel Buttry and Jennifer Peters v. Dollar GeneZalp.(Case no. 3:13-cv-00652)
("Buttry") was filed in the United States Districourt for the Middle
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District of Tennessee. Thguttry plaintiffs seek to proceed on a nationwide collextiasis under the FLSA and as a statewide clasrun
Tennessee law on behalf of non-exempt store emedoyo allegedly were not properly paid for certaieaks. Thd&uttry plaintiffs seek bac
wages (including overtime), injunctive and declaratrelief, liquidated damages, compensatory ameheic damages, "consequential” and
“"incidental" damages, pre-judgment and post-juddrirgarest, and attorneys' fees and costs.

The Company filed its Answer on August @12. The plaintiffs filed their motion for conditial certification of their FLSA on
December 5, 2013. The Company filed its responsiaiomotion on February 3, 2014. The court setaxihg on the plaintiffs' motion for
conditional certification of their FLSA claims orpél 2, 2014.

The plaintiffs' motion for certification dfieir statewide claims is due to be filed on diobe September 22, 2014. The court has set this
matter for trial on February 17, 2015.

The Company believes that its wage and policies and practices comply with both the FLSA atate law, including Tennessee law,
and that th&Vass and Buttrgctions are not appropriate for collective or ckasatment. The Company intends to vigorously defbese
actions; however, at this time, it is not posstol@redict whether thé&/ass or Buttryaction ultimately will be permitted to proceed ealively
or as a class, and no assurances can be givathéh@abmpany will be successful in its defense e§éhactions on the merits or otherwise.
Similarly, at this time the Company cannot estirmether the size of any potential class or the ealiithe claims asserted in théass and
Buttry actions. For these reasons, the Company is unalelstimate any potential loss or range of loshésé matters; however, if the
Company is not successful in its defense effahts résolution of one or more of these actions chalte a material adverse effect on the
Company's consolidated financial statements asadewh

On September 16, 2013, a lawsuit entitlisd Kocmich v. DolgenCorp, LL{Lase No. 2013CA005841AX) ("Kocmich") was filedtire
Circuit Court of Manatee County, Florida. THecmichplaintiff seeks to proceed on a nationwide colleztiasis under the FLSA on behalf of
all similarly situated non-exempt store employeé® allegedly were not paid for all hours workectidling overtime) as required by the
FLSA. TheKocmichplaintiff seeks back wages, liquidated damagesadiatineys' fees and costs.

The Company removed this matter to the é¢h@tates District Court for the Middle Districtlbrida (Case No. 8:13-cv-02705-RAL-
MAP) on October 21, 2013. The Company filed its wieson November 4, 2013.

The parties have reached an agreemensdtveetheKocmichmatter for an amount that is immaterial to the Canys consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

On May 20, 2011, a lawsuit entit®dnn-Dixie Stores, Inc., et al. v. Dolgencorp, LiW@s filed in the United States District Court fbet
Southern District of Florida (Case No. 9:11-cv-804DMM) ("Winn-Dixie") in which the plaintiffs alleg that the sale of food and other items
in approximately 55 of the Company's stores, edathich allegedly is or was at some time co-located shopping center with one of
plaintiffs’ stores, violates restrictive covenathist plaintiffs contend are binding on the occupanitthe shopping centers. Plaintiffs sought
damages and an injunction limiting the sale of faad other items in those stores. Although pldmtiid not make a demand for any specific
amount of damages, documents prepared and prothygaldintiffs during discovery suggested that piiffis

80




DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
8. Commitments and contingencies (Continued)

would seek as much as $47 million although thetdouited their ability to prove such damages. Tlase was consolidated with similar cases
against Big Lots and Dollar Tree. The court issaearder on August 10, 2012 in which it (i) disneidsll claims for damages, (ii) dismissed
claims for injunctive relief for all but four staeand (iii) directed the Company to report to¢bart on its compliance with restrictive
covenants at the four stores for which it did nistrdss the claims for injunctive relief. The Compdielieves that compliance with the August
2012 ruling will have no material adverse impactlo& Company or its consolidated financial stateimen

On August 28, 2012, plaintiffs filed a roatiof appeal with the United States Court of Appéat the Eleventh Circuit (Docket No. 12-
14527-B). Oral argument was conducted on Januarg2d®4, and the appellate court rendered its datisn March 5, 2014, affirming in part
and reversing in part the trial court's decisigme&fically, the appellate court affirmed the tréalurt's dismissal of plaintiffs' claim for monet
damages but reversed the trial court's decisiogidgnnjunctive relief as to thirteen additionabsts and remanded for further proceedings. A
this time, the Company is unable to predict whethertrial court will enter an injunction as to amfythe additional stores at issue; however
Company does not believe that such an injunctieen é entered as to each remaining additionakstaissue, would have a material adverse
effect on the Company or its consolidated finansiatements as a whole.

The Company also is unable to predict winethe plaintiffs will seek further appellate rewief the trial court's dismissal of plaintiff's
claim for damages. If plaintiffs were to obtainther appellate review, and the Company is unsufidéssts defense of such appeal, the
outcome could have a material adverse effect oi€timpany's consolidated financial statements asaew

From time to time, the Company is a pastydrious other legal actions involving claims demtal to the conduct of its business, inclut
actions by employees, consumers, suppliers, govarhagencies, or others through private actiomsschctions, administrative proceedings,
regulatory actions or other litigation, includingtiout limitation under federal and state employiiaws and wage and hour laws. The
Company believes, based upon information currentilable, that such other litigation and claimsthbindividually and in the aggregate, will
be resolved without a material adverse effect @xGbmpany's financial statements as a whole. Honyvétigation involves an element of
uncertainty. Future developments could cause taesens or claims to have a material adverse effe¢dhe Company's results of operations,
cash flows, or financial position. In addition, ta#n of these lawsuits, if decided adversely toGoenpany or settled by the Company, may
result in liability material to the Company's firiga position or may negatively affect operatingui¢s if changes to the Company's business
operation are required.

9. Benefit plans

The Dollar General Corporation 401(k) Sggimand Retirement Plan, which became effectiveaondry 1, 1998, is a safe harbor defined
contribution plan and is subject to the Employeé&rBement and Income Security Act ("ERISA").

A participant's right to claim a distribori of his or her account balance is dependent®plém, ERISA guidelines and Internal Revenue
Service regulations. All active participants arkyfuested in all contributions to the 401(k) pldduring 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company
expensed approximately $13.0 million, $11.9 milleomd $10.9 million, respectively, for matching adnitions.
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The Company also has a nonqualified suppfeat retirement plan ("SERP") and compensatioerdaifplan ("CDP"), known as the
Dollar General Corporation CDP/SERP Plan, for aggjroup of management and other key employeesCbBmpany incurred compensation
expense for these plans of approximately $1.2 onijl1.4 million and $1.7 million in 2013, 2012 a20{l1, respectively.

The CDP/SERP Plan assets are investectouats selected by the Company's Compensation Cibeenair its delegate. These
investments are classified as trading securitiglsth@ associated deferred compensation liabilitgfilected in the consolidated balance sheets
as further discussed in Note 6.

10. Share-based payments

The Company accounts for share-based pagnreaccordance with applicable accounting stadsjamder which the fair value of each
award is separately estimated and amortized intgpemsation expense over the service period. Thedaie of the Company's stock option
grants are estimated on the grant date using thekBbcholes-Merton valuation model. Forfeituresemtémated at the time of valuation and
reduce expense ratably over the vesting period.apipéication of this valuation model involves asgtions that are judgmental and highly
sensitive in the determination of compensation expe

On July 6, 2007, the Company's Board oéEtinrs adopted the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan for Rmployees, which plan was
subsequently amended (as so amended, the "Pldre)Plan allows the granting of stock options, stygfreciation rights, and other stock-
based awards or dividend equivalent rights to kapleyees, directors, consultants or other persamsig a service relationship with the
Company, its subsidiaries and certain of its a@ffids. The number of shares of Company common stgitiorized for grant under the Plan is
31,142,858. As of January 31, 2014, 19,871,333ici shares are available for future grants.

Through May 2011, a significant majoritytbé Company's share-based awards were stock sytiahvest solely upon the continued
employment of the recipient ("MSA Time Options")dapptions that vest upon the achievement of preaéted annual or cumulative
financialbased targets ("MSA Performance Options"). MSA Tand MSA Performance Options generally vest ratahlan annual basis oy
a period of approximately five years, with limitegceptions.

Both the MSA Time Options and the MSA Parfance Options are subject to various provisioh$osth in a management stockholder's
agreement ("MSA") entered into with each optiondenl The MSA contains certain put and call rightd ather provisions pertaining to both
the option holder and the Company which may, itadeiscenarios, affect the holder's ability to seliealize market value for these
instruments and any shares acquired thereunder.

Assuming specified financial targets aré,tiee MSA Performance Options vest as of the Camgdiscal year end, and as a result the
initial and final tranche of each MSA Performangation grant may be prorated based upon the dajeaot. In the event the performance
target is not achieved in any given annual performageriod, the MSA Performance Options for thaiopgemay still subsequently vest,
provided that a cumulative performance target Bea®d. The MSA Time Options and MSA Performancédgs have a contractual term of
10 years and an exercise price equal to the fhievaf the underlying common stock on the dateraht
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The Company has also issued share-basadsattat are not subject to an MSA. These awards ganerally been in the form of stock
options, restricted stock units and performanceeshaits. Stock options granted to employees amddomembers generally vest ratably on an
annual basis over a four-year and three-year peréspectively. Restricted stock units generallstvatably over a three-year period.
Performance share units generally vest ratably aikree-year period, provided that certain mininperformance criteria are met in the year
of grant. With limited exceptions, the performasbare unit and restricted stock unit awards arenaatically converted into shares of comr
stock on the vesting date.

The weighted average for key assumptiors urs determining the fair value of all stock opsiagranted in the years ended January 31,
2014, February 1, 2013, and February 3, 2012, amdremary of the methodology applied to develop esstumption, are as follows:

January 31, February 1, February 3,
2014 2013 2012
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
Expected stock price volatilit 26.2% 26.8% 38.7%
Weighted average risk-free interes
rate 1.2% 1.5% 2.2%
Expected term of options (yeal 6.3 6.3 6.€

Expected dividend yield—This is an estimaftéhe expected dividend yield on the CompanyslstAn increase in the dividend yield will
decrease compensation expense.

Expected stock price volatility—This is @asure of the amount by which the price of the Gomgjs common stock has fluctuated or is
expected to fluctuate. For awards issued undePldue through October 2011, the expected volaslitiere based upon the historical volatili
of a peer group of companies deemed to be commgar@ebinning in November 2011, the expected vdias! for awards are based on the
historical volatility of the Company's publicly tted common stock. An increase in the expectediliplatill increase compensation expense.

Weighted average risk-free interest rateis Ththe U.S. Treasury rate for the week of tlenghaving a term approximating the expecte
life of the option. An increase in the risk-fredgrest rate will increase compensation expense.

Expected term of options—This is the pedtime over which the options granted are expktdaemain outstanding. The Company ha:
estimated the expected term as the mid-point betweevesting date and the contractual term obiten. An increase in the expected term
will increase compensation expense.
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A summary of MSA Time Options activity dagithe year ended January 31, 2014 is as follows:

Remaining

Options Average Contractual Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Exercise Price Term in Years Value
Balance, February 1, 20: 1,350,64: $ 13.6¢
Granted — —
Exercisec (871,03) 11.11
Cancelec (15,047) 25.17
Balance, January 31, 20 464,56. $ 18.1¢ 56 $ 17,73(
Exercisable at January 31, 2C 292,80 $ 15.48 52 ¢ 11,97¢

The weighted average grant date fair vafldSA Time Options granted during 2011 was $13# intrinsic value of MSA Time
Options exercised during 2013, 2012 and 2011 wasA38illion, $117.3 million and $41.4 million, resgtively.

A summary of MSA Performance Options atyiduring the year ended January 31, 2014 is éawel

Remaining

Options Average Contractual Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Exercise Price Term in Years Value
Balance, February 1, 20: 1,264,821 $ 13.9¢
Granted — —
Exercisec (868,44 11.2¢
Cancelec (20,07¢) 22.6¢
Balance, January 31, 20 376,30¢ $ 19.6¢ 5.8 $ 13,79(
Exercisable at January 31, 2C 336,71t $ 18.5¢ 57 $ 12,71«

The weighted average grant date fair vafldSA Performance Options granted during 2011 $&%47. The intrinsic value of MSA
Performance Options exercised during 2013, 2012284d was $39.1 million, $106.4 million and $41.Blion, respectively.

A summary of the Company's other stockap#ctivity during the year ended January 31, 264 follows:

Remaining

Options Average Contractual Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Exercise Price Term in Years Value
Balance, February 1, 20: 1,211,77. $ 42.71
Granted 875,26¢ 48.8(
Exercisec (53,819 41.5]
Cancelec (192,685 46.6¢
Balance, January 31, 20 1,840,54. $ 45.2¢ 8. $ 20,35¢
Exercisable at January 31, 2C 369,42: $ 38.51] 74 $ 6,58(
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

10. Share-based payments (Continued)

The weighted average grant date fair vafugther options granted was $13.86, $13.54 andl#1@uring 2013, 2012 and 2011,

respectively. The intrinsic value of other opti@xercised during 2013, 2012, and 2011 was $0.8omjl$0.3 million and $1.6 million,
respectively.

The number of performance share unit awaadsed is based upon the Company's annual fingresiormance in the year of grant as
specified in the award agreement. A summary ofguardnce share unit award activity during the yeaee January 31, 2014 is as follows:

Units Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Value
Balance, February 1, 20: 162,68t
Granted 72,84¢
Converted to common stoi (54,977
Cancelec (21,147
Balance, January 31, 20 159,41¢ $ 8,97¢

The weighted average grant date fair vafygerformance share units granted was $48.11 46®2% during 2013 and 2012, respectively.
No performance share units were granted during z

A summary of restricted stock unit awartvétty during the year ended January 31, 2014 iolsws:

Units Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Value
Balance, February 1, 20: 288,92
Granted 509,44
Converted to common stoi (98,067)
Cancelec (83,777)
Balance, January 31, 20 616,52° $ 34,72!

The weighted average grant date fair vafuestricted stock units granted was $48.20, $1ar&] $33.16 during 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

In March 2012, the Company issued a peréorea-based award of 326,037 shares of restriatel &1 its Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer. This restricted stock award had a fairuneabn the grant date of $45.25 per share and netyirvéhe future if certain specified earnings
per share targets for fiscal years 2014 and 204 Benieved.

The Company currently believes that théquerance targets related to the unvested MSA Padace Options and restricted stock will
achieved. If such goals are not met, and no evasure which would result in the acceleration oftiesof these awards as specified in the
underlying agreements, future compensation coatingl to these unvested awards will not be recaghiz

At January 31, 2014, the total unrecognizetipensation cost related to nonvested sbaded awards was $53.5 million with an expe
weighted average expense recognition period oyédabs.

In October 2007, the Company's Board o&&tiors adopted an Equity Appreciation Rights Pharich plan was later amended and
restated (as amended and restated, the "Right¥) PTdre Rights
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
10. Share-based payments (Continued)

Plan provides for the granting of equity appreoiatiights to nonexecutive managerial employeesingu2011, 818,847 equity appreciation
rights were granted, 768,561 of such rights vesigtharily in conjunction with the Company's DeceanB011 stock offering and 50,286 of
such rights were cancelled. No such rights aretauting as of January 31, 2014.

The fair value method of accounting forrehlbased awards resulted in share-based compensapense (a component of SG&A
expenses) and a corresponding reduction in netrindzefore income taxes as follows:

Equi
Stock Performance Restricted Apprgltjzli;ytion
(In thousands) Options Share Units Stock Units Rights Total
Year ended January 31, 20
Pre-tax $ 763 % 344¢ $ 9.87¢ % — $ 20,96
Net of tax $ 464¢ % 2,10C $ 6,01¢ $ — $ 12,76t
Year ended February 1, 20
Pre-tax $ 14,07¢ $ 4,08: $ 350/ $ — $ 21,66/
Net of tax $ 857t $ 2,487 $ 2,13t % — $ 13,20(
Year ended February 3, 20
Pre-tax $ 15,127 $ — $ 12¢ $ 8,731 $ 23,98:
Net of tax $ 9,20¢ $ — $ 79 9 5317 $ 14,60

11. Related party transactions

From time to time the Company has condubtesiness with entities deemed to be related pantieler U.S. GAAP, including Kohlberg
Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P. or "KKR" and Goldman, 8a& Co. For purposes of this disclosure, referdndbese entities includes their
respective affiliates. In recent years, KKR anddawn Sachs & Co. owned a significant percentagkeo€ompany's common stock, and
collectively held three seats on the Company's @o&Directors. As of January 31, 2014, KKR anddBan, Sachs & Co. have liquidated
their investment in the Company's common stockramdne directly employed by either KKR or Goldm&8agchs & Co. remained on the
Company's Board of Directors.

KKR and Goldman, Sachs & Co. served inagicapacities related to the amendments and nefimg of the Company's debt discussed
in further detail in Note 5. In connection with fleeefforts in 2013 and 2012, the Company paid K&&sfof $0.7 million and $1.6 million,
respectively, and paid Goldman, Sachs & Co. fe€g2dt million and $1.7 million, respectively.

KKR and Goldman, Sachs & Co. served as mmaters in connection with multiple secondary oiifigys of the Company's common stock
held by certain existing shareholders that wereabtesl at various dates in 2013, 2012 and 2011 Cdmpany did not sell shares of common
stock, receive proceeds from such shareholdees séishares of common stock or pay any undengrfées in connection with any of the
secondary offerings. Certain members of the Compangnagement exercised registration rights in ection with such offerings.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

12. Segment reporting

The Company manages its business on the déasne reportable segment. See Note 1 for 4 theigcription of the Company's business.
As of January 31, 2014, all of the Company's opanatwere located within the United States withakeeption of a Hong Kong subsidiary,
and a liaison office in India, the collective assatd revenues of which are not material. Theiolig net sales data is presented in accordanc

with accounting standards related to disclosuresiebegments of an enterprise.

(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Classes of similar product
Consumable $ 13,161,82 $ 11,844,84 $ 10,833,73
Seasona 2,259,511 2,172,39 2,051,09!
Home product: 1,115,64 1,061,57. 1,005,21!
Apparel 967,17¢ 943,31( 917,13t
Net sales $ 17,504,16 $ 16,022,12 $ 14,807,18

13. Common stock transactions

On August 29, 2012, the Company's Boaricfctors authorized a common stock repurchasergnogwhich was increased on March
2013 and again on December 4, 2013. As of Janularg@®.4, a total of $2.0 billion had been authatimeder the program and $1.02 billion
remained available for repurchase. The repurchatt®azation has no expiration date and allows relpases from time to time in the open
market or in privately negotiated transactions. filmeng and number of shares purchased dependwariaty of factors, such as price, market
conditions, compliance with the covenants and ictigins under our debt agreements and other fadiagurchases under the program may b
funded from available cash or borrowings underGbenpany's credit facilities discussed in furthetadén Note 5.

During the years ended January 31, 201ruaey 1, 2013, and February 3, 2012, the Compepyrchased approximately 11.0 million
shares of its common stock at a total cost of $684llion, approximately 14.4 million shares a#al cost of $671.4 million, and
approximately 4.9 million shares of its common ktata total cost of $185.0 million, respectivgdyrsuant to its common stock repurchase

programs.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

14. Quarterly financial data (unaudited)

The following is selected unaudited qudyténancial data for the fiscal years ended Japidr, 2014 and February 1, 2013. Each
quarterly period listed below was a 13-week acdogrnperiod. The sum of the four quarters for anyegiyear may not equal annual totals due
to rounding.

First Second Third Fourth
(In thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2013:
Net sales $ 4,233,73. $ 4,394,65 $ 4,381,831 $ 4,493,94!
Gross profi 1,295,14 1,377,29 1,328,49. 1,434,81
Operating profil 395,00( 412,82. 390,24: 538,12:
Net income 220,08: 245 47" 237,38! 322,17:
Basic earnings per she 0.67 0.7¢ 0.7¢ 1.01
Diluted earnings per sha 0.67 0.7t 0.7 1.01
First Second Third Fourth
(In thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2012:
Net sales $ 3,901,20' $ 3,948,65 $ 3,964,64 $ 4,207,62.
Gross profit 1,228,25! 1,263,22. 1,226,12. 1,367,79
Operating profi 384,32: 387,21 361,38 522,34¢
Net income 213,41! 214,141 207,68! 317,42:
Basic earnings per she 0.6¢ 0.6¢ 0.6z 0.97
Diluted earnings per sha 0.6: 0.6¢ 0.6z 0.97

As discussed in Note 5, in the first quaote2013, the Company terminated its senior setaredit facilities, resulting in a pretax loss of
$18.9 million ($11.5 million net of tax, or $0.0émpdiluted share) which was recognized as Othen(ie) expense.

As discussed in Note 8, in the second guarft2013, the Company recorded expenses assbeidtean agreement to settle a legal me
resulting in a pretax loss of $8.5 million ($5.2lion net of tax, or $0.02 per diluted share) whieas recognized as Selling, general and
administrative expense.

As discussed in Note 5, in the second guaft2012, the Company redeemed its outstandinigissubordinated notes due 2017, resulting
in a pretax loss of $29.0 million ($17.7 milliontred tax, or $0.05 per diluted share) which waoggtzed as Other (income) expense.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(@) Disclosure Controls and ProceduresUnder the supervision and with the participaiid our management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officeve conducted an evaluation of our disclosure césyand procedures, as such term is defined
under Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) promulgated utideBecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendhed'Exchange Act"). Based on this
evaluation, our principal executive officer and puncipal financial officer concluded that our dissure controls and procedures were
effective as of the end of the period covered ligy itbport.

(b) Management's Annual Report on Irdéontrol Over Financial Reporting. Our management prepared and is responsibtador
consolidated financial statements and all relaiteahttial information contained in this report. Thesponsibility includes establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15dfLEader the Exchange Act. Our internal
control over financial reporting is designed tovpde reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilifynancial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with United States generally accepted acoaptinciples.

To comply with the requirements of Sect@d of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, managemesigded and implemented a structured
and comprehensive assessment process to evalaafdbtiveness of its internal control over fin@ahceporting. Such assessment was based
on criteria established imternal Control—Integrated Framewo(t992 Framework) issued by the Committee of Spangddrganizations of
the Treadway Commission. Because of its inheremtdtions, a system of internal control over finahceporting can provide only reasonable
assurance and may not prevent or detect misstatemdanagement regularly monitors our internal oardgver financial reporting, and actic
are taken to correct any deficiencies as theydmmetified. Based on its assessment, managemenbhahkided that our internal control over
financial reporting is effective as of January 2014.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registipublic accounting firm that audited our consatiéd financial statements, has issued an
attestation report on management's assessment oftetnal control over financial reporting. Sudteatation report is contained below.
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(c) Attestation Report of Independergi&ered Public Accounting Firm.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Dollar General Corporation

We have audited Dollar General Corpora#ind subsidiaries' internal control over financegarting as of January 31, 2014, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrakedmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirga@izations of the Treadway
Commission (1992 framework) (the COSO criteria)ll&xdGeneral Corporation and subsidiaries' managemeaesponsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reportjrand for its assessment of the effectivenesstefnal control over financial reporting included
in the accompanying Management's Annual Reporhterrial Control Over Financial Reporting. Our rasgibility is to express an opinion on
the company's internal control over financial réjpgrbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéfénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etastilg and evaluating the design and operatifegtfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide redderassurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteatfainauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Dollar General Corporat@amd subsidiaries maintained, in all material respexffective internal control over financial
reporting as of January 31, 2014, based on the CEDia.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Dollar General Gatjpm and subsidiaries as of January 31, 2014~ahduary 1, 2013, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehenso@ie, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for e&tie three years in the period ended
January 31, 2014, of Dollar General Corporation sulasidiaries and our report dated March 20, 26pdessed an unqualified opinion there

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
March 20, 201«
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(d) Changes in Internal Control Over &irtial Reporting. There have been no changes during the quartideJanuary 31, 2014 in
our internal control over financial reporting (afided in Exchange Act Rule 134&(f)) that have materially affected, or are readdy likely to
materially affect, our internal control over fingaareporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On March 18, 2014, each of Messrs. DrejlMasos, Tehle, Flanigan and Ravener entered mme&ndment to his existing employment
agreement (each, an "Amendment to Employment Ageeéinwith the Company to (1) eliminate the rightréceive a gross-up payment on
any excise tax imposed under Section 280G of tteerial Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; andd®)derfor capped payments (taking
into consideration all payments covered by Se@®0G of the Internal Revenue Code) of $1 less tharamount that would trigger the excise
tax under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Qmdless the relevant officer's after-tax benefitilddoe at least $50,000 more than it would
be without the payments being capped, in which,adasepayments will not be capped (with the officet the Company paying the excise t
Each officer, other than Mr. Dreiling, will only @ the right to such uncapped payments if sucleaf§igns a release of claims against the
Company in the form attached to his employmentemgent.

Except as described herein, all other tesfrmich officers' existing employment agreemerith the Company and other previously
disclosed compensatory arrangements remain irfidilde and effect.

The foregoing description of each AmendnterEmployment Agreement is not a complete sumroatkie terms of each such document,
and reference is made to the complete text of sach document attached hereto as Exhibits 10.282100.34, 10.39 and 10.45 and
incorporated by reference herein.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE

(&) Information Regarding Directors aBdecutive Officers. The information required by this Item 10 regagdour directors and
director nominees is contained under the capti¥visd'are the nominees this year," "What are the ¢paeids of this year's nominees," "Are
there any familial relationships between any ofibeninees," "How are directors identified and noawénl,” and "What particular experience,
qualifications, attributes or skills led the BoaftDirectors to conclude that each nominee shoaitdesas a director of Dollar General," all
under the heading "Proposal 1: Election of Dirextam our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed éur Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be
held on May 29, 2014 (the "2014 Proxy Statememthich information under such captions is incorpedaterein by reference. Information
required by this Item 10 regarding our executivicefs is contained in Part | of this Form 10-K enthe caption "Executive Officers of the
Registrant," which information under such capti®imicorporated herein by reference.

(b) Compliance with Section 16(a) of Ehechange Act. Information required by this Item 10 regardaampliance with Section 16(a)
of the Exchange Act is contained under the captBattion 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coampte” in the 2014 Proxy Statement,
which information under such caption is incorpodaterein by reference.

(c) Code of Business Conduct and Ethicg/e have adopted a Code of Business ConducEtrids that applies to all of our employe
officers and Board members. This Code is postetthemnnvestor Information section of our Internetosite at www.dollargeneral.com. If we
choose to no longer post such Code, we will progidfieee copy to any person upon written requeBtaitar General Corporation, c/o Investor
Relations Department, 100 Mission Ridge, GoodlditsviN 37072. We intend to provide any requirésictbsure of an amendment to or
waiver from the Code of Business Conduct and Ettiasapplies to our principal executive officerinpipal financial officer, principal
accounting officer or controller, or persons parforg similar functions, on our Internet websitedted at www.dollargeneral.com promptly
following the amendment or waiver. We may eledligtlose any such amendment or waiver in a repoRaym 8-K filed with the SEC either
in addition to or in lieu of the website disclosufée information contained on or connected toloternet website is not incorporated by
reference into this Form 10-K and should not besiered part of this or any other report that Meewiith or furnish to the SEC.

(d) Procedures for Shareholders to NaterDirectors. There have been no material changes to theguoes by which security
holders may recommend nominees to the registidntisd of Directors.

(e) Audit Committee Information.Information required by this Item 10 regardmg audit committee and our audit committee final
experts is contained under the captions "Corpdbateernance—Does the Board have standing Audit, @oisgtion and Nominating
Committees" and "—Does Dollar General have an aaditmittee financial expert serving on its Auditr@uaittee” in the 2014 Proxy
Statement, which information under such captionisderporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 1gaeding director and executive officer compensatiba Compensation Committee Report, the
risks arising from our compensation policies anacpces for employees, and compensation committeeldcks and insider participation is
contained under the captions "Director Compensatod "Executive Compensation” in the 2014 Proxat&3hent, which information under
such captions is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(a) Equity Compensation Plan InformationThe following table sets forth information absecurities authorized for issuance under
our compensation plans (including individual congagion arrangements) as of January 31, 2014:

Number of
securities remaining
available for future

Number of securities issuance under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected
warrants and rights warrants and rights in column (a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approv
by security holders(1 3,521,87. $ 36.9i 19,871,33
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde — — —
Total(1) 352187 $ 36.97 19,871,33

1) Column (a) consists of shares of common stock [#seugpon exercise of outstanding options and ustivg and
payment of share units under the Amended and Rels2807 Stock Incentive Plan. Share units aressefitlr shares of
common stock on a one-for-one basis and have noisgerice. Accordingly, those units have beerwsed for
purposes of computing the weighted-average exeptise in column (b). Column (c) consists of shamserved for
issuance pursuant to the Amended and RestatedS¥00K Incentive Plan, whether in the form of staelstricted stock,
share units, or other sh-based awards or upon the exercise of an optioiglot.

(b) Other Information. The information required by this Item 12 regagdsecurity ownership of certain beneficial ownansl our

management is contained under the caption "SedDxitgership” in the 2014 Proxy Statement, which rimfation under such caption is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 18aeding certain relationships and related transastis contained under the caption

"Transactions with Management and Others" in thBe42Rroxy Statement, which information under sugdtioa is incorporated herein by
reference.

The information required by this Item 18aeding director independence is contained undec#éption "Director Independence” in the
2014 Proxy Statement, which information under stagbtion is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 1gaeding fees we paid to our principal accountautthie pre-approval policies and procedures
established by the Audit Committee of our Boardokctors is contained under the caption "Fees Rafliditors" in the 2014 Proxy
Statement, which information under such captiandsrporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES
(a) Report of Independent Registered Public Accourféing

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Income

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) All schedules for which provision is made lie tapplicable accounting regulations of the SE(hateequired under the related
instructions, are inapplicable or the informatisnricluded in the Consolidated Financial Statemantk therefore, have been
omitted.

(c) Exhibits: See Exhibit Index immediately followiniget signature pages hereto, which Exhibit Inderdsiporated by reference
as if fully set forth herein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rbgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduty authorized.

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

Date: March 20, 2014 By: /s/ RICHARD W. DREILING

Richard W. Dreiling,
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

We, the undersigned directors and officdithe registrant, hereby severally constitute RidhW. Dreiling and David M. Tehle, and each
of them singly, our true and lawful attorneys wiithi power to them and each of them to sign forarg] in our names in the capacities indic
below, any and all amendments to this Annual Repofform 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchau@pmmission.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ies indicated.

Name Title Date

/sl RICHARD W. DREILING

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer March 20
RICHARD W. DREILING (Principal Executive Officer) 201¢
/s/ DAVID M. TEHLE Executive Vice President & Chief
X . - e - . March 20
Financial Officer (Principal Financial 2012
DAVID M. TEHLE and Accounting Officer

/sl WARREN F. BRYANT _ March 20
Director 2012

WARREN F. BRYANT
/s MICHAEL M. CALBERT _ March 20
Director 2012

MICHAEL M. CALBERT
/s SANDRA B. COCHRAN _ March 20
Director 2012

SANDRA B. COCHRAN
/s/ PATRICIA FILI-KRUSHEL _ March 20
Director 2012

PATRICIA FILI-KRUSHEL
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Name Title Date

/s/ WILLIAM C. RHODES, IlI

. March 20
Director 2012

WILLIAM C. RHODES, lll
/s/ DAVID B. RICKARD Sirector March 20
201<

DAVID B. RICKARD
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3.1

4.1

4.4

4.€

10.1

10.z

EXHIBIT INDEX

Amended and Restated Charter of Dollar General @atjpn (complete copy as ament
for SEC filing purposes only) (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 3.1 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fordgoarter ended May 3, 2013, filed
with the SEC on June 4, 2013 (file no. -11421))

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Dollar General Qatan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 to Dollar General Corporation's GuntrReport on Form 8-K dated
November 18, 2009, filed with the SEC on Novemt®&r2D09 (file no. 0C-11421))

Form of Stock Certificate for Common Stock (incaiqed by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm -1 (file no. 33:-161464))

Form of 4.125% Senior Notes due 2017 (includedxhilit 4.5)

Indenture, dated as of July 12, 2012, between D@neral Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee (incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 4.1 to Dollar Gene
Corporation's Form 8-K dated July 12, 2012, filethwhe SEC on July 17, 2012 (file
no. 00:-11421))

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July2022, among Dollar General
Corporation, the subsidiary guarantors named theagid U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee (incorporated by refereéadexhibit 4.2 to Dollar General
Corporation's Form 8-K dated July 12, 2012, filethwhe SEC on July 17, 2012 (file
no. 00:-11421))

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April2d13, between Dollar General
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Associationtrastee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to Dollar General Corporation's Curr&eport on Form 8-K dated April 8,
2013 and filed with the SEC on April 11, 2013 (file. 00-11421))

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April2DI.3, between Dollar General
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Associationtrastee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to Dollar General Corporation's Curr&sport on Form 8-K dated April 8,
2013 and filed with the SEC on April 11, 2013 (file. 00-11421))

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 11, 2013, ambDofar General Corporation, as
borrower, Citibank, N.A., as administrative agemtd the other credit parties and lenders
party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhii#itto Dollar General Corporation's
Current Report on Form B-dated April 8, 2013 and filed with the SEC on Agdn, 2013
(file no. 00:-11421))

Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive PlakdgrEmployees of Dollar General
Corporation and its affiliates (effective June @12) (incorporated by reference to
Appendix A to Dollar General Corporation's DefinéiProxy Statement filed with the
SEC on April 5, 2012 (file no. 0-11421))*

Form of Stock Option Agreement between Dollar Gah€orporation and certain office

of Dollar General Corporation granting stock opsigqursuant to the 2007 Stock Incentive
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Dadlar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-4 (file no. 33:-148320))*
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10.2

Form of Stock Option Agreement, adopted on May224.1, for Stock Option Grants to
Certain Newly Hired and Promoted Employees under®imended and Restated 2007
Stock Incentive Plan for Key Employees of Dollam@&gal Corporation and its Affiliates
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Form 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended April 29, 2011, filed witte SEC on June 1, 2011 (file no. 001-
11421)) *



10.4

10.5

10.€

10.7

10.¢

10.1(

10.11

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement in connattigth grants made to certain
employees of Dollar General Corporation pursuaniiéoAmended and Restated 2007
Stock Incentive Plan (approved March 20, 2012)qliporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Dollar General Corporation's CutrBeport on Form & dated March 2(
2012, filed with the SEC on March 26, 2012 (file 601-11421))*

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreemenbinn@ction with grants made to
certain employees of Dollar General Corporatiorspant to the Amended and Restated
2007 Stock Incentive Plan (approved March 20, 2@it@prporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Dollar General Corporation's CutrBeport on Form & dated March 2(
2012, filed with the SEC on March 26, 2012 (file 601-11421))*

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement imcection with grants made to
certain employees of Dollar General Corporatiorspant to the Amended and Restated
2007 Stock Incentive Plan (approved March 20, 2@it@prporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar General Corporation's CutrBeport on Form & dated March 2(
2012, filed with the SEC on March 26, 2012 (file 601-11421))*

Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated March PQ22 between Dollar General
Corporation and Richard Dreiling (incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-tedidlarch 20, 2012, filed with the
SEC on March 26, 2012 (file no. (-11421))*

Waiver of Certain Limitations Pertaining to OptidAseviously Granted under the
Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plaectefé August 26, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter enddd 3Q, 2010, filed with the SEC on
August 31, 2010 (file no. 0-11421))*

Waiver of Transfer Restrictions dated FebruaryQi,2(incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99 to Dollar General Corporation's CurrBetport on Form 8-K dated February 1,
2013, filed with the SEC on February 5, 2013 (fite 00-11421))*

Form of Management Stockholder's Agreement amori@bD@eneral Corporation, Buck
Holdings, L.P. and certain officers of Dollar Gesle€orporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dollar General Corpiords Registration Statement on
Form &4 (file no. 33:-148320))*

Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agreemenngrbmllar General Corporatio
Buck Holdings, L.P. and key employees of Dollar &= Corporation (July 2007 grant
group) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@.2Dbllar General Corporation's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaeteded October 30, 2009, filed with
the SEC on December 12, 2009 (file no.-11421))*
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10.12

10.1:

10.1¢4

10.1¢

Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agreemenngrbmllar General Corporatio
Buck Holdings, L.P. and key employees of Dollar &wh Corporation (post-July 2007

grant group) (incorporated by reference to ExHibit3 to Dollar General Corporation's

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaeteded October 30, 2009, filed with
the SEC on December 12, 2009 (file no.-11421))*

Second Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agrataneffective June 3, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to DotBeneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter endedl!/&®, 2010, filed with the SEC on
June 8, 2010 (file no. 0-11421))*

Form of Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agresmhin connection with restricted
stock unit grants made to outside directors podviy 24, 2011 pursuant to the
Company's Amended and Restated 2007 Stock IncePtare(incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.15 to Dollar General Corporation'ggi&ration Statement on Form S-1 (file
no. 33:-161464))

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, addpon May 24, 2011, for Grants to



10.1¢

10.15

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2¢

10.21

10.2:

Non-Employee Directors under the Amended and Res&8@ Stock Incentive Plan for
Key Employees of Dollar General Corporation andhitiliates (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar General Corpiords Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended April 29, 2011, filed with the SEC on Jun2d11 (file no. 00-11421))

Form of Director Stock Option Agreement in connactwith option grants made to
outside directors pursuant to the Company's AmeadedRestated 2007 Stock Incentive
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1&u8lar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (file no. 33:-161464))

Dollar General Corporation CDP/SERP Plan (as antadd restated effective
December 31, 2007) (incorporated by reference toli#x10.10 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-4 (file no. 33:-148320))*

First Amendment to the Dollar General CorporatiddRZSERP Plan (as amended and
restated effective December 31, 2007) (incorporbtectference to Exhibit 10.11 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm -4 (file no. 33-148320))*

Second Amendment to the Dollar General Corpordfib®/SERP Plan (as amended and
restated effective December 31, 2007), dated daraé 3, 2008 (incorporated by refere
to Exhibit 10.6 to Dollar General Corporation's @agy Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended August 1, 2008, filed with the SEGeptember 3, 2008 (file no. 001-
11421))*

Amended and Restated Dollar General CorporatioruAhimcentive Plan (effective
June 1, 2012) (incorporated by reference to AppeBdb the Dollar General
Corporation's Definitive Proxy Statement filed witte SEC on April 5, 2012 (file
no. 00-11421))*

Dollar General Corporation 2013 Teamshare Bonugram for Named Executive
Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@ Dollar General Corporation's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaeteded May 3, 2013, filed with the
SEC on June 4, 2013 (file no. (-11421))*

Summary of Dollar General Corporation Life Insurafrogram as Applicable to
Executive Officers (incorporated by reference tdibit 10.19 to Dollar General
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for ttexéil year ended February 2, 2007,
filed with the SEC on March 29, 2007) (file no. -11421))*
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10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.27

Dollar General Corporation Domestic Relocatiofidydor Officers (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Dollar General Cogtiom's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2011, filét the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file
no. 00-11421))*

Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation éffed-ebruary 1, 2014
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to Doleneral Corporation's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended Novenhe&013, filed with the SEC on
December 5, 2013 (file no. 0-11421))

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effeépra 23, 2010, by and between
Dollar General Corporation and Richard Dreilingcrporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.1 to Dollar General Corporation's CutrBeport on Form 8-K dated April 23,
2010, filed with the SEC on April 27, 2010 (file.f@)1-11421))*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective Mar8h2014, by and between Dol
General Corporation and Richard Dreilir

Limited Waiver of Certain Tax and Tax Gross-Up Rgéffective January 1, 2013 by
Richard Dreiling (incorporated by reference to Exhi0.26 to Dollar General
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for tteeéil year ended February 1, 2013,
filed with the SEC on March 25, 2013 (file no. +11421))*



10.2¢

10.2¢

10.3C

10.31

10.3:

10.3¢

10.3¢

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of January 218, 20&tween Dollar General
Corporation and Richard Dreiling (incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.29 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omFs-4 (file no. 33:-148320))*

Stock Option Agreement dated April 23, 2010, by batlveen Dollar General
Corporation and Richard Dreiling (incorporated bference to Exhibit 99.2 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-tedidpril 23, 2010, filed with the
SEC on April 27, 2010 (file no. 0-11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated as aBdga21, 2008, among Dollar
General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and Ridhareiling (incorporated by referer
to Exhibit 10.30 to Dollar General Corporation'ggi&ration Statement on Form S-4 (file
no. 33--148320))*

Employment Agreement effective April 1, 2012, byldetween Dollar General
Corporation and David M. Tehle (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 99.1 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-tedidpril 16, 2012, filed with the
SEC on April 19, 2012 (file no. 0-11421))*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective Ma8h2014, by and between Dol
General Corporation and David M. Teh

Employment Agreement, effective December 1, 20¥Jarx between Dollar General
Corporation and Todd J. Vasos (incorporated byreefee to Exhibit 10.2 to Dollar
General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 1f@iQhe fiscal quarter ended
October 28, 2011, filed with the SEC on Decemb&0d,1 (file no. 00-11421))*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective Mar8h2014, by and between Dol
General Corporation and Todd J. Vas
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10.3¢

10.3¢

10.3i

10.3¢

10.3¢

10.4(

10.41

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Decerhp2013 and effective as of
November 4, 2013, by and between Dollar Generap@uation and Todd J. Vas
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to DotBeneral Corporation's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated December 4, 2013, filed with@fC on December 6, 2013 (file

no. 00-11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated Decet#heX008, among Dollar General
Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P., and Todd Vasosdrporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.37 to Dollar General Corporation's AnhRaport on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 29, 2010, filed with the SE®arch 24, 2009 (file no. 0(-11421))*

Employment Agreement, effective November 1, 2033aihd between Dollar General
Corporation and David D'Arezzc

Employment Agreement, effective March 24, 2013ahyg between Dollar General
Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.2 to Dollar
General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 1foiQhe fiscal quarter ended May 3,
2013, filed with the SEC on June 4, 2013 (file ®01-11421))*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective Ma8h2014, by and between Dol
General Corporation and John W. Flanig.

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of August 28, 209&nd between Dollar General
Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.34 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kiffie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of May 28, 20§%ru between Dollar General
Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.35 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kiffie fiscal year ended January 28,



10.42

10.4:

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.4¢

2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 801-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of March 24, 2b6§@&nd between Dollar General
Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.36 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kiffie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 01-11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated as ofigti28, 2008, by and between
Dollar General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P.dalohn Flanigan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Dollar General Cogtian's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2011, filét the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file
no. 00:-11421))*

Employment Agreement, effective March 24, 2013ahyg between Dollar General
Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar
General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 1fo1Qhe fiscal quarter ended May 3,
2013, filed with the SEC on June 4, 2013 (file ®@1-11421))*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective Mar8h2014, by and between Dol
General Corporation and Robert D. Raver

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of August 28, 2B9&nd between Dollar General
Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.40 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kiffie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 601-11421))*

101

10.47

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.5(

10.51

12

21

23

24

31

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of Decembe20@3, by and between Dollar General
Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.41 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kiffie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 01-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of March 24, 2b6§@&nd between Dollar General
Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.42 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktiffe fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 01-11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement entered intd Asigust 28, 2008 among Dollar
General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P., and RoB&vener (incorporated by referel
to Exhibit 10.44 to Dollar General Corporation'srual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended January 28, 2011, filed withSB& on March 22, 2011 (file no. 001-
11421))*

Employment Agreement, effective April 1, 2012, mdadetween Dollar General
Corporation and Susan S. Lanigan (incorporatecefgrence to Exhibit 99.2 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-tedidpril 16, 2012, filed with the
SEC on April 19, 2012 (file no. 0-11421))*

Employment Agreement effective March 19, 2012, bg between Dollar General
Corporation and Greg Sparks (incorporated by rafardéo Exhibit 10.4 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forfieeal quarter ended May 4, 2012,
filed with the SEC on June 4, 2012 (file no. -11421))*

Calculation of Fixed Charge Rat

List of Subsidiaries of Dollar General Corporat

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
Powers of Attorney (included as part of the sigrepages heret

Certifications of CEO and CFO under Exchange AdeRi3e14(a)
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101.INS

101.SCt

101.CAL

101.LAB

101.PRE

101.DEF

Certifications of CEO and CFO under 18 U.S.C. 1

XBRL Instance Documet

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Docunr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurt

Management Contract or Compensatory |
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Exhibit 10.26
AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  (this “ Amendment), effective March 18, 201
is made and entered into by and betwP@1LLAR GENERAL CORPORATION (the “ Company) and RICHARD
DREILING (“ Executive”). Capitalized terms used in this Amendment and rfegratise defined herein shall have
meanings assigned to them in the Employment Agraetas defined below).

WITNESSETH :

WHEREAS , the Company and Executive have previously enterer an Employment Agreement by
between the Company and Executive, as amendedestatad on April 23, 2010, subject to a limited weaidate:
April 23, 2010 (the “Employment Agreement”); and

WHEREAS , the Company and Executive desire to amend theldymgnt Agreement to remove the grags-
payment for excise taxes, together with any inteaed penalties, applicable under Section 4998@irnternal Reveni
Code of 1986, as amended (the * Cdpéor “excess parachute paymentisithin the meaning of Section 280G of
Code and to add a limited cutback provision.

NOW, THEREFORE , for and in consideration of the premises, the ualutpromises, covenants ¢
agreements contained herein, and for other goodvahdble consideration, the receipt and sufficyeat which ar
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree to amendEmmgloyment Agreement, effective as of the dateediera:
follows:

1. Exhibit | to the Employment Agreemenhe&reby deleted in its entirety and replaced withfbllowing:

Exhibit |

The provisions in this Exhibit | shall apply in pegt of any 280G CiC that occurs while the Compengr
entity whose stock is readily tradable on an esthétl securities market (or otherwise).

Effect of 280G. Any payments and benefits due under Sectiora®dbnstitute “parachute payments
within the meaning of Section 280G of the Interidvenue Code (“Code Section 280Gpjus all othe
“parachute paymentsas defined under Code Section 280G that might wiker be due to the Execut
(collectively, with payments and benefits due unslection 9, “Total Payments™hall be limited to the Capp
Amount. The “Capped Amounshall be the amount otherwise payable, reducedich amount and to su
extent so that no amount of the Total Payments avoohstitute an “excess parachute paymentier Cod
Section 280G. Notwithstanding the preceding sexgtethe Executive’ Total Payments shall not be limitec
the Capped Amount if it is determined that Exeaitivould receive at least $50,000 in greater daéemproceec
if no such reduction is made. The calculation & @apped Amount and all other determinations rejativ the
applicability of Code Section 280G (and the ruled a




regulations promulgated thereunder) to the paymemsemplated by this Agreement shall be made bytdb
department of an independent public accounting, fomat Company discretion, by a compensation consu
firm, and such determinations shall be binding ufo®cutive and the Company. Unless Executive am
Company shall otherwise agree (provided such ageremioes not cause any payment or benefit here
which is deferred compensation covered by Sect@@Adof the Internal Revenue Code to be in womplianc
with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code)the event the Total Payments are to be reduce
Company shall reduce or eliminate the paymentseoefits to Executive by first reducing or elimimafithos:
payments or benefits which are not payable in eaghthen by reducing or eliminating cash paymentsact
case in reverse order beginning with payments petits which are to be paid the farthest in timarfrthe dat
of the 280G CiC. Any reduction pursuant to thecping sentence shall take precedence over théspmes o
any other plan, arrangement or agreement goverBxegutives rights and entitlements to any benefit
compensation.

2. In all other respects, the Employmente®gnent shall remain in full force and effect, sgbfo any othe
amendments that may be adopted from time to time.

3. This Amendment may be executed by eitifi¢he parties hereto in counterparts, each otkwkhall b
deemed to be an original Amendment, but all suemrparts shall together constitute one and threesastrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exel,ube caused their duly authorized representaty
execute this Amendment.

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

By: /s/ Robert D. Ravent
Its:  EVP, Chief People Office

Date: 3/18/14

“EXECUTIVE”

/s/ Richard W. Dreiling

Date: 3/18/14

Witnessed By  /s/ Rhonda Taylc

2




Exhibit 10.32
AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  (this “ Amendment), effective March 18, 201
is made and entered into by and betwb@1.LAR GENERAL CORPORATION (the “ Company) and DAVID M.
TEHLE (“ Employee”). Capitalized terms used in this Amendment and ne¢retise defined herein shall have
meanings assigned to them in the Employment Agraetas defined below).

WITNESSETH :

WHEREAS , the Company and Employee have previously enteredan Employment Agreement by
between the Company and Employee dated April 12 Z0te “Employment Agreement”); and

WHEREAS , the Company and Employee desire to amend the dymgint Agreement solely to remove
grossup payment for excise taxes, together with anyrésteand penalties, applicable under Section 498%9ednterne
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “ Cpfie “excess parachute paymentsithin the meaning of Section 28
of the Code.

NOW, THEREFORE , for and in consideration of the premises, the ualutpromises, covenants ¢
agreements contained herein, and for other goodvahdble consideration, the receipt and sufficyeat which ar
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree to amendEmmgloyment Agreement, effective as of the dateediera:
follows:

1. Section 12 of the Employment Agreemenitled “ Effect of 280G’ is hereby deleted in its entirety ¢
replaced with the following:

12. Effect of 280G. Any payments and benefits due under Section 11 dbastitute parachut
payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of Iernal Revenue Code (“Code Section 280@M)s al
other “parachute payments’s defined under Code Section 280G that might wikerbe due to the Employ
(collectively, with payments and benefits due un@exction 11, “Total Payments”shall be limited to tF
Capped Amount. The “Capped Amoustiall be the amount otherwise payable, reducedah amount and
such extent so that no amount of the Total Paymeotdd constitute an “excess parachute paymentie
Code Section 280G. Notwithstanding the precedimgesee but contingent upon Employgéimely executio
and the effectiveness of the Release attachedoharet made a part hereof as provided in Sectioritk
Employees Total Payments shall not be limited to the Capfewbunt if it is determined that Employee wc
receive at least $50,000 in greater afterproceeds if no such reduction is made. Theutation of the Cappe
Amount and all other determinations relating to #pplicability of Code Section 280G (and the ree
regulations promulgated thereunder) to the paymemtsemplated by this Agreement shall be made bytdb
department of an independent public accounting,fomat Companyg discretion, by a compensation consu
firm, and such determinations shall be binding upgmnployee and the Company. Unless Employee ar
Company shall otherwise agree (provided such aggaedoes not cause any




payment or benefit hereunder which is deferred @armsption covered by Section 409A of the InternaldRac
Code to be in nomompliance with Section 409A of the Internal Reve@ode), in the event the Total Paym
are to be reduced, the Company shall reduce oimgtemthe payments or benefits to Employee by feducing
or eliminating those payments or benefits whichrasepayable in cash and then by reducing or eltmig cas
payments, in each case in reverse order beginnitngpayments or benefits which are to be paid #réhést il
time from the date of the “change in ownership ontml” (within the meaning of Code Section 280G). .
reduction pursuant to the preceding sentence s$akd precedence over the provisions of any othan
arrangement or agreement governing Employee’ssightl entittements to any benefits or compensation.

2. In all other respects, the Employmente®gnent shall remain in full force and effect, sgbfo any othe
amendments that may be adopted from time to time.

3. This Amendment may be executed by eitli¢he parties hereto in counterparts, each otkwkhall b
deemed to be an original Amendment, but all suchntsrparts shall together constitute one and threesastrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exel;ube caused their duly authorized representaty
execute this Amendment.

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

By: /s/ Robert D. Ravent
Its: EVP, Chief People Office

Date: 3/18/14

“EMPLOYEF’

/s/ David M. Tehle

Date: 3/18/14

Witnessed By  /s/ Christine Connoll
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Exhibit 10.34

AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  (this * Amendment), effective March 18, 201
is made and entered into by and betwB€1LLAR GENERAL CORPORATION (the * Company’) and TODD J.
VASOS (“ Employee”). Capitalized terms used in this Amendment and nio¢retise defined herein shall have
meanings assigned to them in the Employment Agraetas defined below).

WITNESSETH :

WHEREAS , the Company and Employee have previously enteredan Employment Agreement by
between the Company and Employee dated Decemi#011,, as amended effective on November 4, 2013 “(th
Employment Agreemeri); and

WHEREAS , the Company and Employee desire to amend the dymgint Agreement solely to remove
grossup payment for excise taxes, together with anyrésteand penalties, applicable under Section 498%9ednterne
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “ Cpfie “excess parachute paymentsithin the meaning of Section 28
of the Code.

NOW, THEREFORE , for and in consideration of the premises, the ualutpromises, covenants ¢
agreements contained herein, and for other goodvahdble consideration, the receipt and sufficygeat which ar
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree to amendEmmgloyment Agreement, effective as of the dateediera:
follows:

1. Section 12 of the Employment Agreemenitled “ Effect of 280G’ is hereby deleted in its entirety ¢
replaced with the following:

12. Effect of 280G. Any payments and benefits due under Section 11 dbastitute parachut
payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of liernal Revenue Code (“Code Section 280@M)s al
other “parachute paymentss defined under Code Section 280G that might wikerbe due to the Employ
(collectively, with payments and benefits due un@exction 11, “Total Payments”shall be limited to tF
Capped Amount. The “Capped Amoustiall be the amount otherwise payable, reducedah amount and
such extent so that no amount of the Total Paymeotdd constitute an “excess parachute paymentie
Code Section 280G. Notwithstanding the precedimdesee but contingent upon Employgéimely executio
and the effectiveness of the Release attachedoharet made a part hereof as provided in Sectioritk
Employees Total Payments shall not be limited to the Cappewbunt if it is determined that Employee wc
receive at least $50,000 in greater afterproceeds if no such reduction is made. Theutation of the Cappe
Amount and all other determinations relating to Hpplicability of Code Section 280G (and the ruae
regulations promulgated thereunder) to the paymemtsemplated by this Agreement shall be made bytdb
department of an independent public accounting,fomat Companyg discretion, by a compensation consu
firm, and such determinations shall be binding upgmnployee and the Company. Unless Employee ar
Company shall otherwise agree (provided such ageaedoes not cause any




payment or benefit hereunder which is deferred @armsption covered by Section 409A of the InternaldRac
Code to be in nomompliance with Section 409A of the Internal Reve@ode), in the event the Total Paym
are to be reduced, the Company shall reduce oimgtemthe payments or benefits to Employee by feducing
or eliminating those payments or benefits whichrasepayable in cash and then by reducing or eltmig cas
payments, in each case in reverse order beginnitngpayments or benefits which are to be paid #réhést il
time from the date of the “change in ownership ontml” (within the meaning of Code Section 280G). .
reduction pursuant to the preceding sentence s$akd precedence over the provisions of any othan
arrangement or agreement governing Employee’ssightl entittements to any benefits or compensation.

2. In all other respects, the Employmente®gnent shall remain in full force and effect, sgbfo any othe
amendments that may be adopted from time to time.

3. This Amendment may be executed by eitli¢he parties hereto in counterparts, each otkwkhall b
deemed to be an original Amendment, but all suchntsrparts shall together constitute one and threesastrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exel;ube caused their duly authorized representaty
execute, this Amendment.

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

By: /s/ Robert D. Ravent
Its: EVP, Chief People Office

Date: 3/18/14

“EMPLOYEF’

/s/ Todd J. Vasa

Date: 3/18/14

Witnessed By  /s/ Christine Connoll
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Exhibit 10.37
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), effectivélovember 1, 2013 (“Effective Date”)s made and entered into
and betwee®OLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION (the “Company”), and David W. D’Arezzo (“Employee”)

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS , Company desires to employ Employee upon the temdssubject to the conditions hereinafter sehfahd Employe
desires to accept such employment;

NOW, THEREFORE , for and in consideration of the premises, theualupromises, covenants and agreements contaimeihhant
for other good and valuable consideration, theipt@and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowletighe parties agree as follows:

1. Employment . Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agrest, the Company agrees to employ Employe
Executive Vice President, Chief Merchandising CGffiof the Company.

2. Term . The term of this Agreement shall end March 31,220 Term”), unless otherwise terminated pursuant to Sectic
8, 9, 10 or 11 hereof. The Term shall be automiifiextended from month to month, for up to six (8dnths, unless the Company gi
written notice to Employee at least one month piaathe expiration of the original or any extendemtm that no extension or further extens
as applicable, will occur or unless the Companyaegs this Agreement with a new agreement or, itingr extends or renews the Term of
Agreement for a period that is longer than six rherfrom the expiration of the original Term. Unlegberwise noted, all references to
“Term” shall be deemed to refer to the originalmeand any extension or renewal thereof.

3. Position, Duties and Administrative Support.

a. Position. Employee shall perform the duties of the positimted in Section 1 above and shall perform subbi
duties and responsibilities as Employee’s supengsthe Company’s CEO may reasonably direct.

b. Full-Time Efforts. Employee shall perform and discharge faithfalhd diligently such duties and responsibil
and shall devote Employee’s fiitne efforts to the business and affairs of CompaBgnployee agrees to promote the best intere
the Company and to take no action that is likel\démmage the public image or reputation of the Caompés subsidiaries or
affiliates.




C. Administrative Support Employee shall be provided with office space addhinistrative support.

d. No Interference With Duties Employee shall not devote time to other actgitivhich would inhibit or otherwi
interfere with the proper performance of Emplogeglties and shall not be directly or indirectihncerned or interested in any ot
business occupation, activity or interest othenthg reason of holding a naontrolling interest as a shareholder, securit@ddr o
debenture holder in a corporation quoted on a nalip recognized exchange (subject to any limitadiin the Companyg’ Code ¢
Business Conduct and Ethics). Employee may noesas a member of a board of directors of apfofit company, other than t
Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliatesthaut the express approval of the CEO and the d@dar an authorized Bog
committee). Under no circumstances may Employeessam more than one other board of a for-profit pany.

4, Work Standard . Employee agrees to comply with all terms and davws set forth in this Agreement, as well as
applicable Company work policies, procedures amesruEmployee also agrees to comply with all faljestate and local statutes, regulat
and public ordinances governing Employee’s perforceahereunder.

5. Compensation.

a. Base Salary Subject to the terms and conditions set fortthis Agreement, the Company shall pay Employed
Employee shall accept, an annual base salary (“Bat®y”)of no less than Six Hundred and Fifty Thousand &sl($650,000). Tl
Base Salary shall be paid in accordance with Corigamormal payroll practices (but no less frequettign monthly) and may
increased from time to time at the sole discretibthe Company.

b. Incentive Bonus Employees incentive compensation for the Term of this Agreat shall be determined under
Company’s annual bonus program for officers at Exyppés grade level, as it may be amended from timente.ti The actual bon
paid pursuant to this Section 5(b), if any, shalldased on criteria established by the Board, émg&nsation Committee and/or
CEO, as applicable, in accordance with the terntscamditions of the annual bonus program for of§cé\ny bonus payments c
hereunder shall be payable to the Employee notlager 2 1/2 months after the end of the Compmtgxable year or the calendar y
whichever is later, in which Employee is first vagbin




such bonus payments for purposes of Section 409Aeolinternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedi(iteznal Revenue Code”).

C. Vacation. Employee shall be entitled to four weeks paidati@n time within the first year of employment.té
five years of employment, Employee shall be emtitle five weeks paid vacation. Vacation time isnged on the anniversary
Employee’s hire date each year. Any available mutsed vacation as of the annual anniversary of @mptnt date or at Employee’
termination date shall be forfeited.

d. Business ExpensesEmployee shall be reimbursed for all reasonbbiness expenses incurred in carrying ot
work hereunder. Employee shall adhere to the Cagipaxpense reimbursement policies and procedures bBvent will any suc
reimbursement be made later than the last day gfl&me’s taxable year following Employsetaxable year in which Employ
incurs the reimbursable expense.

e. Perquisites Employee shall be entitled to receive such othercutive perquisites, fringe and other benefitsauz
provided to officers at the same grade level uagrof the Company’s plans and/or programs in effeen time to time.

6. Benefits . During the Term, Employee (and, where applicalilmployee$ eligible dependents) shall be eligible
participate in those various Company welfare béndfins, practices and policies in place during Tleem (including, without limitatiol
medical, pharmacy, dental, vision, disability, eayge life, accidental death and travel accidenirgrsce plans and other programs, if an
the extent allowed under and in accordance withahas of those plans. In addition, Employee sbalkligible to participate, pursuant to tl
terms, in any other benefit plans offered by thenfany to similarlysituated officers or other employees from timeiteetduring the Ter
(excluding plans applicable solely to certain @fie of the Company in accordance with the experssst of such plans). Collectively the pl
and arrangements described in this Section 6,esrttay be amended or modified in accordance witlr terms, are hereinafter referred ti
the “Benefits Plans."Notwithstanding the above, Employee understandsagkdowledges that Employee is not eligible foréd#s under an
other severance plan, program, or policy maintainethe Company, if any exists, and that the oelyesance benefits Employee is entitle
are set forth in this Agreement.

7. Termination for Cause . This Agreement is not intended to change theiththature of Employees employment wit
Company, and it may be terminated at any time Hyeeiparty, with or without cause. If this Agreerhamd Employees employment a
terminated by Company




for “Cause” (Termination for Cause) as that terrdaéined below, it will be without any liability ang to Employee or Employegdependen
and beneficiaries under this Agreement, (recoggizimowever, that benefits covered by or owed umahgr other plan or agreement cove
Employee shall be governed by the terms of such plaagreement). Any one of the following condisoor Employee conduct shall consti
“Cause”

a. Any act involving fraud or dishonesty, or any matkact of misconduct relating to Employsgierformance of h
or her duties hereunder;

b. Any material breach of any SEC or other law or fagion or any Company policy governing trading ealing witt
stocks, securities, public debt instruments, bondsnvestments and the like or with inappropridigclosure or “tipping'relating tc
any stock, security, public debt instrument, bontheestment;

C. Any material violation of the Compars/Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (or the atpnv code in place at t
time);

d. Other than as required by law, the carrying outany activity or the making of any public statementtich
prejudices or reduces the good name and standir@pofpany or any of its affiliates or would bringyaone of these into pub
contempt or ridicule;

e. Attendance at work in a state of intoxication omigefound with any drug or substance possessionhi¢h woulc
amount to a criminal offense;

f. Assault or other act of violence;

g. Conviction of or plea of guilty or nolo contendeany felony whatsoever or any misdemeanor thatdvoreclud:
employment under the Company’s hiring policy; or

h. Willful or repeated refusal or failure substangiaid perform Employes’ material obligations and duties hereu
or those reasonably directed by Employee’s suparvise CEO and/or the Board (except in conneatiith a Disability).

A termination for Cause shall be effective when @wmpany has given Employee written notice ofrtemtion to termina
for Cause, describing those acts or omissionsatteabelieved to constitute Cause, and has giveridyeg ten days to respond.

8. Termination upon Death . Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrahis Agreement shall terminate immedia
upon Employee’s death, and the Company shall haviurher liability to Employee or Employeedependents and beneficiaries under
Agreement,




except for those benefits owed under any other plaagreement covering Employee which shall be gwa by the terms of such plan
agreement.

9. Disability . If a Disability (as defined below) of Employeecacs during the Term, unless otherwise prohibitedalw, the
Company may notify Employee of the Company’s intanto terminate Employeg’employment. In that event, employment shall ieate
effective on the termination date provided in suactice of termination (the “Disability Effective Be), and this Agreement shall termin
without further liability to Employee, Employee’dependents and beneficiaries, except for thosefit® owed under any other plan
agreement covering Employee which shall be govebydtie terms of such plan or agreement. In tlgjgeAment, “Disability” means:

a. A long-term disability, as defined in the Compangpplicable long-term disability plan as then ifeef, if any; or

b. Employee’s inability to perform the duties undeistAgreement in accordance with the Compangkpectatior
because of a medically determinable physical ortate@mpairment that (i) can reasonably be expedttecesult in death or (ii) h
lasted or can reasonably be expected to last lotiger ninety (90) consecutive days. Under thistiGe®(b), unless otherwi
required by law, the existence of a Disability sbhal determined by the Company, only upon recdipt written medical opinion fro
a qualified physician selected by or acceptablkaéoCompany. In this circumstance, to the extenmitted by law, Employee shall
reasonably requested by the Company, submit toyaigdi examination by that qualified physician. hMag in this Section 9(b)
intended to nor shall it be deemed to broaden atifpthe definition of “disability” in the Compang’long-term disability plan.

10. Employe€s Termination of Employment.

a. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, #oyee may terminate employment and this Agreeragin
time, for no reason, with thirty (30) days writteatice to Company (and in the event that Emploggardviding notice of terminatic
for Good Reason, Employee must provide such netitein 30 days after the event purported to giveerio Employee claim fo
Good Reason first occurs). In such event, Emplsfedl not be entitled to those payments and benlkdied in Section 11 belc
unless Employee terminates employment for Good &teas defined below, or unless Section 11(agpplies.
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b. Upon any termination of employment, Employee shallentitled to any earned but unpaid Base Salaoutjin the
date of termination and such other vested benefitker any other plan or agreement covering Empleyigeh shall be governed
the terms of such plan or agreement. Notwithstapdinything to the contrary herein, such unpaid Baakry shall be paid
Employee as soon as practicable after the effectate of termination in accordance with the Compamgual payroll practices (1
less frequently than monthly); provided, howevérattif payment at such time would result in a phbited acceleration unc
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code, thet sumount shall be paid at the time the amount wotihérwise have been p
absent such prohibited acceleration.

C. Good Reasoshall mean any of the following actions taken by @ompany:
0] A reduction by the Company in Employee’s Base §adattarget bonus level,

(i) The Company shall fail to continue in effect angngiicant Companysponsored compensation plar
benefit (without replacing it with a similar plam with a compensation equivalent), unless sucloads in connection wi
across-thésoard plan changes or terminations similarly affectt least 95 percent of all officers of the Camyp or 10
percent of officers at the same grade level,

(iii) The Company’s principal executive offices shalhhbeved to a location outside the middlennessee area,
Employee is required (absent mutual agreement® toalsed anywhere other than the Company’s prinejedutive offices;

(iv) Without Employees written consent, the assignment to Employee bByGbmpany of duties inconsist
with, or the significant reduction of the title, yers and functions associated with, Emplogegosition, title or office ¢
described in Section 3 above, unless such actitireisesult of a restructuring or realignment ofiekiand responsibilities
the Company, for business reasons, that leavesdyewhat the same rate of Base Salary, annual taogets opportunity, ai
officer level (i.e., Executive Vice President, gt#nd with a similar level of responsibility, orlass such action is the resul
Employee’s failure to meet pre-established andativje performance criteria;

(v) Any material breach by the Company of this Agreetmen
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(vi) The failure of any successor (whether direct oired, by purchase, merger, assignment, consabidati
otherwise) to all or substantially all of the biess and/or assets of the Company to assume expaesshgree to perform tl
Agreement in the same manner and to the same dRktrthe Company would be required to performiitoi such successi
had taken place.

Good Reason shall not include Employee’s deathahillisy or Termination for Cause or Employee’s taration for any
reason other than Good Reason as defined above.

d. Prior to Employee being entitled to the paymentbemefits described in Section 11 below, the Comstnall hav
the opportunity to cure any claimed event of Goaeh$dn within thirty (30) days after receiving veittnotice from Employe
specifying the same.

11. Termination without Cause or by Employee for Good Rason.

a. The continuation of Base Salary and other paymandsbenefits described in Section 11(b) shall iggeredonly
upon one or more of the following circumstances:

0] The Company terminates Employee (as it may do mtteme) without Cause; it being understood
termination by death or Disability does not congéittermination without Cause;

(i) Employee terminates for Good Reason;

(iii) The Company fails to offer to renew, extend or aeplthis Agreement before, at, or within six (6)ntine
after, the end of its original thrgeear Term (or any term provided for in a writtenewal or extension of the original Ter
and Employee resigns from employment with the Campaithin sixty (60) days after such failure, urdesuch failure
accompanied by a mutually agreeable severance gament between the Company and Employee or is dheltro
Employee’s retirement or other termination from @empany other than for Good Reason notwithstantiiegCompanye
offer to renew, extend or replace this Agreement.

b. In the event of one of the triggers referencedenti®ns 11(a)(i) through (iii) above, then, on Hiieth (60th) da
after Employees termination of employment, but contingent upoa éixecution and effectiveness of the Release attialohreto ar
made a part hereof, and subject to Section 22(opwh&mployee shall be entitled to the following:
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() Continuation of Employee’ Base Salary as of the date immediately precettiagermination (or, if t
termination of employment is for Good Reason duthéreduction of Employeg’Base Salary, then such rate of Base S
as in effect immediately prior to such reductioo) 24 months, payable in accordance with the Coryiganormal payro
cycle and procedures (but not less frequently threomthly) with a lump sum payment on the sixtietl®tt§ day afte
Employees termination of employment of the amounts Employweald otherwise have received during the sixty) (6Qy:
after Employee’s termination had the payments begumediately after Employeg’ termination of employme
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thisrAgment, the amount of any payment or entitlemergayment of th
aforesaid Base Salary continuation shall be faréeitr, if paid, subject to recovery by the Companyhe event and to t
extent of any base salary earned by the Employea &ssult of subsequent employment during the 24thso afte
Employees termination of employment. In no event shall toype be obligated to seek other employment or #aleothe
action by way of mitigation of such amounts payabléamployee and, except as provided in the pregedentence, su
amounts shall not be reduced whether or not thel@rap obtains other employment.

(i) A lump sum payment of two times the amount of therage percentage of target bonus paid or to lbtg
employees at the same job grade level of Emploifesny) under the annual bonus programs for officer respect of tt
Company’s two fiscal years immediately precedirgfibcal year in which the termination date occurs.

(iii) A lump sum payment in an amount equal to two tithesannual contribution that would have been ma
the Company in respect of the plan year in whiathsermination of employment occurs for Employeparticipation in th
Company’s medical, pharmacy, dental and vision fisngrograms.

(iv) Reasonable outplacement services, as determinegraniled by the Company, for one year or untilet
employment is secured, whichever comes first.

All payments and benefits otherwise provided to Exyge pursuant to this Section 11 shall be forteifea copy of the Relea
attached hereto executed by Employee is not prdvidehe Company within twenty-one (21) days afierployees termination da
(unless




otherwise required by law) or if the Release iok®d; and no payment or benefit hereunder shalkbeided to Employee prior to t
Companys receipt of the Release and the expiration ofpiméod of revocation provided in the Release. lherdvoidance of doul
this Section 11(b) shall not permit the Companydesay the provision of any payments or benefitsoneythe 60" day afte
Employee’s termination date, and consistent witpliapble law, the only deferral thereof may be maulgsuant to Section 22
(n) below in a manner that is compliant with apglite law.

C. In the event that there is a material breach by IByge of any continuing obligations under this Agreent or th
Release after termination of employment, any unpambunts under this Section 11 shall be forfeited @ompany shall retain a
other rights available to it under law or equitjny payments or reimbursements under this SectlosHall not be deemed -
continuation of Employee’s employment for any pago Except as specifically enumerated in the Relelie Compang’ paymer
obligations under this Section 11 will not negatereduce (i) any amounts otherwise due but notpatl to Employee by tl
Company, or (i) any other amounts payable to Epgdooutside this Agreement, or (iii) those benedited under any other plan
agreement covering Employee which shall be govehyetthe terms of such plan or agreement. The Cosnpay, at any time and
its sole discretion, make a lungpim payment of any or all amounts, or any or ataiming amounts, due to Employee under
Section 11 if, or to the extent, the payment isquifject to Section 409A of the Internal RevenudeCo

12. Effect of 280G. Any payments and benefits due under Section atldbnstitute “parachute paymentsgithin the meanin
of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code (“C®detion 280G”), plus all other “parachute paymeatsdefined under Code Section 2!
that might otherwise be due to the Employee (ctillely, with payments and benefits due under Sectib, “Total Payments”shall be limite
to the Capped Amount. The “Capped Amousttall be the amount otherwise payable, reducedicgh amount and to such extent so the
amount of the payments and benefits under Secfipmplis all other “parachute paymen&s defined under Code Section 280G that r
otherwise be due to the Employee (collectively ‘dd®ayments”), would constitute an “excess para&payment'under Code Section 280
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence but contingpon Employe’s timely execution and the effectiveness of theeRs# attached her
and made a part hereof as provided in Section tdofethe Employea’ Total Payments shall not be limited to the Capfetbunt if it is
determined that Employee would receive at leastOEEDin greater after-tax proceeds if no such rédnds made. The calculation of the
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Capped Amount and all other determinations relatmghe applicability of Code Section 280G (and thkes and regulations promulga
thereunder) to the payments contemplated by thieémgent shall be made by the tax department afidependent public accounting firm,
at Companys discretion, by a compensation consulting firmgd aoch determinations shall be binding upon Emmogied the Compan
Unless Employee and the Company shall otherwiseeaprovided such agreement does not cause anyepaymbenefit hereunder whict
deferred compensation covered by Section 409A efltiternal Revenue Code to be in rmompliance with Section 409A of the Inter
Revenue Code), in the event the Payments are tedueed, the Company shall reduce or eliminatgp#yments or benefits to Employee
first reducing or eliminating those payments ordfga which are not payable in cash and then byawd) or eliminating cash payments
each case in reverse order beginning with paymentsenefits which are to be paid the farthest metifrom the date of thechange i
ownership or control” (within the meaning of Codec8on 280G) (a “Change in Control”Any reduction pursuant to the preceding sent
shall take precedence over the provisions of ahgroplan, arrangement or agreement governing Emepleyights and entitlements to ¢
benefits or compensation.

13. Publicity; No Disparaging Statement. Except as otherwise provided in Section 14 hereafployee and the Compe
covenant and agree that they shall not engageyircammunications to persons outside the Companygltwhhall disparage one anothe
interfere with their existing or prospective busiseelationships.

14. Confidentiality and Legal Process. Employee agrees to keep the proprietary term#hisfAgreement confidential and
refrain from disclosing any information concernitigs Agreement to anyone other than Employasimediate family and personal agent
advisors. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothindhis Agreement is intended to prohibit Employe¢he Company from performing any d
or obligation that shall arise as a matter of l&®pecifically, Employee and the Company shall cargito be under a duty to truthfully resp
to any legal and valid subpoena or other legal ggec This Agreement is not intended in any wagrtscribe Employee’s or the Compasy’
right and ability to provide information to any f=dl, state or local agency in response or adheremthe lawful exercise of such agerscy’
authority.

15. Business Protection Provision Definitions

a. Preamble As a material inducement to the Company to @nterthis Agreement, and in recognition of theuzdile
experience, knowledge and proprietary
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information Employee has gained or will gain whilmployed, Employee agrees to abide by and adhetteetbusiness protecti
provisions in Sections 15, 16, 17, 18 and 19 herein

b. Definitions. For purposes of Sections 15, 16, 17, 18, 1%ankerein:

0] “Competitive Position"shall mean any employment, consulting, advisorsealorship, agency, promotiol
or independent contractor arrangement between Bmpland (x) any person or Entity engaged whollinanaterial part i
the business in which the Company is engaged (he.discount consumable basic or general merchamétail busines:
including but not limited to such other similar messes as Wal-Mart, Sam’s, Target, CostcaViatt, Big Lots, BJ
Wholesale, Walgreen'’s, Rite-Aid, CVS, Family Doltores, Fred'’s, the 99 Cents Stores, Casgneral Stores, Inc., Cir
K, 7-11 Stores, Pantry, Inc. and Dollar Tree Stores(ypany person or Entity then attempting or plagnio enter th
discount consumable basics retail business, whetelpyloyee is required to perform services on betfatfr for the benefit «
such person or Entity which are substantially samilo the services Employee provided or directechrat time whils
employed by the Company or any of its affiliates.

(i) “Confidential Information” shall mean the proprietary or confidential datdprimation, documents
materials (whether oral, written, electronic or esthise) belonging to or pertaining to the Compaother than Trade
Secrets” s defined below), which is of tangible or intarigibbalue to the Company and the details of whighret generall
known to the competitors of the Company. Configdribformation shall also include any items mark€@DNFIDENTIAL”
or some similar designation or which are othenideatified as being confidential.

(iii) “Entity” or “Entities” shall mean any business, individual, partnershiimt jventure, agency, governmel
agency, body or subdivision, association, firmpooation, limited liability company or other entit§ any kind.

(iv)  “Restricted Period” shall mean two (2) years follogrEmployee’s termination date.

(v) “Territory” shall include individually and as a total area thas$ates in the United States in which
Company maintains stores at Employe@rmination date or those states in which the fizom has specific and demonstr:
plans to open stores within six months of Emplogeetmination date.

11




(vi) “Trade Secrets’shall mean information or data of or about the Camyp including, but not limited t
technical or nortechnical data, formulas, patterns, compilatiomegmms, devices, methods, techniques, drawingsepse:
financial data, financial plans, product plansistsl of actual or potential customers or suppltaet: (A) derives econormr
value, actual or potential, from not being gengratiown to, and not being readily ascertainablgtyper means by, ott
persons who can obtain economic value from itslaksce or use; (B) is the subject of efforts that @asonable under -
circumstances to maintain its secrecy; and (C)ahgr information which is defined as a “trade s€cunder applicable law.

(vii)  “Work Product” shall mean all tangible work produptoperty, data, documentation, “know-howgncept
or plans, inventions, improvements, techniques pratesses relating to the Company that were coedgidiscovere:
created, written, revised or developed by Emplaybiée employed by the Company.

16. Nondisclosure: Ownership of Proprietary Property.

a. In recognition of the Company’'need to protect its legitimate business interé&stgployee hereby covenants
agrees that, for the Term and thereafter (as destrbelow), Employee shall regard and treat Tradere®ss and Confident
Information as strictly confidential and wholbywned by the Company and shall not, for any reasoany fashion, either directly
indirectly, use, sell, lend, lease, distributeefise, give, transfer, assign, show, disclose, mligsge, reproduce, copy, misappropr
or otherwise communicate any Trade Secrets or @enfial Information to any person or Entity for apyrpose other than
accordance with Employee’duties under this Agreement or as required byicgipe law. This provision shall apply to eachm
constituting a Trade Secret at all times it remairigade secretlinder applicable law and shall apply to any Confidé Information
during employment and for the Restricted Periodethfter.

b. Employee shall exercise best efforts to ensurectintinued confidentiality of all Trade Secrets @ainfidentia
Information and shall immediately notify the Compasf any unauthorized disclosure or use of any &r&eacrets or Confident
Information of which Employee becomes aware. Emygdoshall assist the Company, to the extent reédgpmaquested, in ti
protection or procurement of any intellectual pmtp@rotection or other rights in any of the Trelecrets or Confidential Informatic
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C. All Work Product shall be owned exclusively by tBempany. To the greatest extent possible, any VWookluc
shall be deemed to be “work made for hires defined in the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C.A. § Hllseq., as amended), and Empl
hereby unconditionally and irrevocably transferd assigns to the Company all right, title and ies¢fEmployee currently has or n
have by operation of law or otherwise in or to grk Product, including, without limitation, all fents, copyrights, trademarks (i
the goodwill associated therewith), trade secimsyice marks (and the goodwill associated thergveind other intellectual prope
rights. Employee agrees to execute and delivéngadCompany any transfers, assignments, documemwmther instruments which t
Company may deem necessary or appropriate, from tartime, to protect the rights granted hereirtoowest complete title al
ownership of any and all Work Product, and all agged intellectual property and other rights tirgrexclusively in the Company.

17. Non-Interference with Employees. Through employment and thereafter through thdriRésd Period, Employee will n
either directly or indirectly, alone or in conjuimt with any other person or Entity: actively naitr solicit, attempt to solicit, induce or atter
to induce any person who is an exempt employebeoCompany or any of its subsidiaries or affiligt@shas been within the last 6 months
leave or cease such employment for any reason adas

18. Non-Interference with Business Relationships

a. Employee acknowledges that, in the course of enmpémt, Employee will learn about Compasiybusines
services, materials, programs and products andndmer in which they are developed, marketed, sedvand provided. Employ
knows and acknowledges that the Company has irvestesiderable time and money in developing itslpeb sales and real esi
development programs and relationships, vendoradiner service provider relationships and agreemestdse layouts and fixture
and marketing techniques and that those thingsr@gie and original. Employee further acknowledipes the Company has a stri
business reason to keep secret information relair@ompanys business concepts, ideas, programs, plans andgses, so as not
aid Companys competitors. Accordingly, Employee acknowledged agrees that the protection outlined in (b)\Wwel necessa
and reasonable.

b. During the Restricted Period, Employee will not, Bmployees own behalf or on behalf of any other persa
Entity, solicit, contact, call upon, or communicatéh any person or entity or any representativeuoy person or entity who ha
business
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relationship with Company and with whom Employed ltantact while employed, if such contact or comization would likely
interfere with Company’s business relationshipsesult in an unfair competitive advantage over Canyp

19. Adgreement Not to Work in Competitive Position. Employee covenants and agrees not to acceptinotatavork in ¢
Competitive Position for a company or entity thpemtes anywhere within the Territory for the Rettd Period.

20. Acknowledgements Regarding Sections 15- 19.

a. Employee and Company expressly covenant and algagéhe scope, territorial, time and other restis containe
in Sections 15 through 19 of this Agreement com&ithe most reasonable and equitable restricossible to protect the busin
interests of the Company given: (i) the businesthefCompany; (ii) the competitive nature of then@anys industry; and (iii) thi
Employee’s skills are such that Employee couldlgdisid alternative, commensurate employment orsttng work in Employee’
field which would not violate any of the provisiookthis Agreement.

b. Employee acknowledges that the compensation anefileedescribed in Sections 5 and 11 are also msideratiol
of his/her covenants and agreements contained étioBe 15 through 19 hereof and that a breach bpl&me of the obligatior
contained in Sections 15 through 19 hereof shdifioEmployee’s right to such compensation andeffie

C. Employee acknowledges and agrees that a breacimpjoltee of the obligations set forth in Sectiongtrough 1!
will likely cause Company irreparable injury andthin such event, the Company shall be entitlethjtmnctive relief in addition {
such other and further relief as may be proper.

d. The parties agree that if, at any time, a court@mhpetent jurisdiction determines that any of thevisions o
Section 15 through 19 are unreasonable under Teaadaw as to time or area or both, the Company Iskantitled to enforce tr
Agreement for such period of time or within suchaaas may be determined reasonable by such court.

21. Return of Materials . Upon Employees termination, Employee shall return to the Compalhwritten, electronic, record
or graphic materials of any kind belonging or rielgto
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the Company or its affiliates, including any origii, copies and abstracts in Employee’s possessioontrol.

22. General Provisions.
a. Amendment This Agreement may be amended or modified oglg lvriting signed by both of the parties hereto.
b. Binding Agreement This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of &edbinding upon Employee, his/her heirs

personal representatives, and the Company anddtgssors and assigns.

C. Waiver Of Breach; Specific PerformanceThe waiver of a breach of any provision of thigreement shall n
operate or be construed as a waiver of any otheachr Each of the parties to this Agreement wéll dnmtitled to enforce tt
Agreement, specifically, to recover damages byaead any breach of this Agreement, and to exerailsether rights existing in th
party’s favor. The parties hereto agree and acknowl#itifemoney damages may not be an adequate remedyydrreach of tt
provisions of this Agreement and that any party ragply to any court of law or equity of competeutigdiction for specifi
performance or injunctive relief to enforce or preivany violations of the provisions of this Agresth

d. Unsecured General CreditorThe Company shall neither reserve nor specificat aside funds for the paymen
its obligations under this Agreement, and suchgalions shall be paid solely from the general assthe Company.

e. No Effect On Other Arrangementslt is expressly understood and agreed that #yenents made in accorda
with this Agreement are in addition to any othendfés or compensation to which Employee may béledtor for which Employe
may be eligible.

f. Tax Withholding. There shall be deducted from each payment uhieeAgreement the amount of any tax reqt
by any governmental authority to be withheld andl paver by the Company to such governmental authddr the account «
Employee.

g. Notices.

0] All notices and all other communications provided fierein shall be in writing and delivered perdigne

the other designated party, or mailed by certifiedegistered mail, return receipt requested, diveled by a recogniz¢
national overnight courier service, or sent by iiade, as follows:
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If to Company to Dollar General Corporatic
Attn: General Counst
100 Mission Ridge
Goodlettsville, TN 3707-2171
Facsimile: (615) 85-5517

If to Employee to: (Last address of Employee known to Company unl¢berwise directed
writing by Employee

(i) All notices sent under this Agreement shall be dsgbgiven twentyfour (24) hours after sent by facsimile
courier, seventy-two (72) hours after sent by iettior registered mail and when delivered if bysoaal delivery.

(iii) Either party hereto may change the address to wintice is to be sent hereunder by written noticéht
other party in accordance with the provisions & Section.

h. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and condtmeaccordance with the laws of the Stat
Tennessee (without giving effect to conflict of Bw

i. Entire Agreement This Agreement contains the full and completdanstanding of the parties hereto with res
to the subject matter contained herein and, urdessifically provided herein, this Agreement supdes and replaces any p
agreement, either oral or written, which Employesyrhave with Company that relates generally tcsdmae subject matter.

j- Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by Emploged,any attempted assignment shall be nul
void and of no force or effect.

k. Severability. If any one or more of the terms, provisions, exants or restrictions of this Agreement sha
determined by a court of competent jurisdictionb® invalid, void or unenforceable, then the remainadf the terms, provisior
covenants and restrictions of this Agreement gleafiain in full force and effect, and to that end gnovisions hereof shall be deer
severable.

l. Section Heading. The Section headings set forth herein are fowvenience of reference only and shall not a




the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement isbaver.

m. Voluntary Agreement Employee and Company represent and agree tlht less reviewed all aspects of
Agreement, has carefully read and fully understaailds
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provisions of this Agreement, and is voluntariljtexing into this Agreement. Each party represants agrees that such party has
the opportunity to review any and all aspects a$ thgreement with legal, tax or other adviser(ssath partys choice befol
executing this Agreement.

n. Deferred Compensation Omnibus Provisiott is intended that any payment or benefit whiglprovided pursua
to or in connection with this Agreement which isnsimered to be deferred compensation subject ttidBef09A of the Intern:
Revenue Code (“Code Section 409A4hall be paid and provided in a manner, and at Sowh including without limitation payme
and provision of benefits only in connection witie toccurrence of a permissible payment event awedain Code Section 409A (e
death, disability, separation from service from @ampany and its affiliates as defined for purpose€ode Section 409A), and
such form, as complies with the applicable requaets of Code Section 409A to avoid the unfavorableconsequences provic
therein for non-compliance. In connection witheetfng such compliance with Code Section 409A faflewing shall apply:

0] Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreeighe Company is authorized to amend this Agrex)
to void or amend any election made by Employee utitde Agreement and/or to delay the payment of monies and/c
provision of any benefits in such manner as magétermined by it to be necessary or appropriatotoply, or to evidenc
or further evidence required compliance, with C8eetion 409A (including any transition or grandéthtules thereunder).

(i) Neither Employee nor the Company shall take anipadb accelerate or delay the payment of any ng
and/or provision of any benefits in any manner Wwhiguld not be in compliance with Code Section 4q@%luding an'
transition or grandfather rules thereunder).

(iii) If Employee is a specified employee for purposesCofdle Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i), any paymen
provision of benefits in connection with a sepanatifrom service payment event (as determined fapgres of Coc
Section 409A) shall not be made until six monttisraEmployee’s separation from service (the “409&fddral Period”).In
the event such payments are otherwise due to be maithstallments or periodically during the 4094fBrral Period, tF
payments which would otherwise have been madecid@9A Deferral Period shall be
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accumulated and paid in a lump sum as soon al0%& Beferral Period ends, and the balance of tlyengats shall be ma
as otherwise scheduled. In the event benefitseayaired to be deferred, any such benefit may beiged during the 409
Deferral Period at Employeg’expense, with Employee having a right to reimément from the Company once the 4
Deferral Period ends, and the balance of the bisrafall be provided as otherwise scheduled.

(iv) If a Change in Control occurs but the Change intf@brloes not constitute a change in control ewvétitin
the meaning of Code Section 409A (a “409A Chang€antrol”), then payment of any amount or provision of any kit
under this Agreement which is considered to berdafecompensation subject to Code Section 409A bleatleferred unt
another permissible payment event contained in CReletion 409A occurs (e.g., death, disability, safian from servic
from the Company and its affiliated companies afindd for purposes of Code Section 409A), includary deferral ¢
payment or provision of benefits for the 409A Ded¢Period as provided above.

(v) For purposes of this Agreement, all rights to paytsend benefits hereunder shall be treated assrig
receive a series of separate payments and benefitee fullest extent allowed by Code Section 409#\.under thi:
Agreement, an amount is to be paid in two or mostaillments, for purposes of Code Section 409Ah @astallment shall t
treated as a separate payment. In the event ampgua. payable upon termination of employment wdugdexempt frot
Code Section 409A under Treas. Reg. § 1.4Q9#8¢9)(iii) but for the amount of such paymente thetermination of tt
payments to Employee that are exempt under suahispyo shall be made by applying the exemptionagrpents based
chronological order beginning with the paymentdmddsest in time on or after such terminationrapoyment.

(vi)  For purposes of determining time of (but not emiitent to) payment or provision of deferred compgos
under this Agreement under Code Section 409Ain eotion with a termination of employment, terminatiof employmer
will be read to mean a “separation from servieghin the meaning of Code Section 409Awhere iteigasonably anticipat
that no further services would be performed aftat tate or that the level of bona fide serviceplegee would perform aft
that date (whether as an employee or independairiaaor) would permanently decrease
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to less than 50% of the average level of bona digkwices performed over the immediately precedmigytsix (36) montl
period.

(vii) For purposes of this Agreement, a key employeepfoposes of Code Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) shal
determined on the basis of the applicable h2snrth period ending on the specified employee ifieation date designated
the Company consistently for purposes of this Agrexet and similar agreements or, if no such desigmas made, based
the default rules and regulations under Code Sedi®A(a)(2)(B)(i).

(viii)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreemehe Company shall not be liable to Employeani
payment or benefit which is to be provided pursuarnhis Agreement and which is considered defecadpensation subje
to Code Section 409A otherwise fails to comply widhbe exempt from, the requirements of Code SectD9A.

(ix)  With regard to any provision herein that provides reimbursement of expenses orkind benefits that a
subject to Code Section 409A, except as permitye@dle Section 409A, (x) the right to reimbursermamninkind benefits i
not subject to liquidation or exchange for anotbenefit, and (y) the amount of expenses eligibteréimbursement, or in-
kind benefits, provided during any taxable yeaEaiployee shall not affect the expenses eligiblerédémbursement, or in-
kind benefits to be provided, in any other taxgldar of Employee, provided that the foregoing aafyd shall not be violatt
with regard to expenses reimbursed under any aeraagt covered by Code Section 105(b) solely becswse expenses
subject to a limit related to the period the areangnt is in effect. All reimbursements shall bentmirsed in accordance w
the Company’s reimbursement policies but in no elater than Employee’s taxable year following Eaygle’s taxable yei
in which the related expense is incurred.

x) When, if ever, a payment under this Agreement $ipscd payment period with reference to a numbetayf
(e.g., “payment shall be made within ten (10) diajfl®wing the date of termination”the actual date of payment within
specified period shall be within the sole discretid the Company.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exetuiecaused their duly authorized representativexecute this Agreement
be effective as of the Effective Date.

Date: 12/20/13 DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

By: /s/ Robert D. Ravent

Name: Robert D. Ravene

Title:  Executive Vice President, Chief People Offi

“EMPLOYEFE"

/s/ David W. [’ Arezzo
David W. C’' Arezzo

Date: 12/20/13

Witnessed By

/s/ lvan Reeve
Ivan Reeve:!
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Addendum to Employment Agreement with David W. D’Arezzo
RELEASE AGREEMENT

THIS RELEASE (“Release”) is made and entered int@abd between David W. D’Arezzo (“Employee”) aDOLLAR GENERAL
CORPORATION , and its successor or assigns (“Company”).

WHEREAS, Employee and Company have agreed that @&mes employment with Dollar General Corporation shetiminate o

WHEREAS, Employee and the Company have previousifered into that certain Employment Agreement, ctiifie
(“Agreement”), in which the form of this Releasérnsorporated by reference;

WHEREAS, Employee and Company desire to delindwegie tespective rights, duties and obligationsrattent to such termination &
desire to reach an accord and satisfaction oflailins arising from Employes’employment, and termination of employment, witprapriats
releases, in accordance with the Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Company desires to compensate Employeecordance with the Agreement for service Elygdohas provide
and/or will provide for the Company;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premised tre agreements of the parties set forth in tlele&se, and other good
valuable consideration the receipt and sufficieatwhich are hereby acknowledged, the parties beretending to be legally bound, her
covenant and agree as follows:

1. Claims Released Under This Agreement

In exchange for receiving the payments and bendétsribed in Section 11 of the Agreement, Employeeby voluntarily ar
irrevocably waives, releases, dismisses with piegjcand withdraws all claims, complaints, suitslemands of any kind whatsoever (whe
known or unknown) which Employee ever had, may havenow has against Company and other currendrondr subsidiaries or affiliates
the Company and their past, present and futureesffj directors, employees, agents, insurers @nchays (collectively, the “Releasegs”
arising from or relating to (directly or indirecilfEmployee$ employment or the termination of employment dreotevents that have occur
as of the date of execution of this Agreementudiclg but not limited to:







a. claims for violations of Title VII of the Civil Rigts Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination in Employmhéct, the
Fair Labor Standards Act, the Civil Rights Act &9, the Americans With Disabilities Act, the Eq@aly Act, the Family and Medic
Leave Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1981, the Sarbanes OxleyoA2002, the National Labor Relations Act, the dahManagement Relations A
the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, tbaiformed Services Employment and Reemployment Ridtet, Executive Ord
11246, Executive Order 11141, the Rehabilitatioh &c1973, or the Employee Retirement Income Séegcérit;

b. claims for violations of any other federal or ststtatute or regulation or local ordinance;

C. claims for lost or unpaid wages, compensation, emneffits, defamation, intentional or negligent ictibn of
emotional distress, assault, battery, wrongful @nstructive discharge, negligent hiring, retention supervision, frau
misrepresentation, conversion, tortious interfeeemeceach of contract, or breach of fiduciary duty;

d. claims to benefits under any bonus, severance, fammek reduction, early retirement, outplacementany othe
similar type plan sponsored by the Company (exéapthose benefits owed under any other plan oe@gent covering Employ
which shall be governed by the terms of such plaagoeement); or

e. any other claims under state law arising in tortantract.

2. Claims Not Released Under This Agreement

In signing this Release, Employee is not releasimg claims that may arise under the terms of tlele&se or which may arise ou
events occurring after the date Employee exechtsRelease.

Employee also is not releasing claims to benefitd Employee is already entitled to receive undwer ather plan or agreem
covering Employee which shall be governed by tlms$eof such plan or agreement. However, Employekrstands and acknowledges
nothing herein is intended to or shall be constrteedequire the Company to institute or continueeffect any particular plan or ben
sponsored by the Company, and the Company heredgyvies the right to amend or terminate any of é@sefit programs at any time
accordance with the procedures set forth in suahsplEmployee further understands and acknowlettigésny continuing obligation unde
Company incentive-based plan, program or arrangeorguursuant to any Company policy




or provision regarding recoupment of compensatoomat altered by this Release and nothing hereinténded to nor shall be constn
otherwise.

Nothing in this Release shall prohibit Employeenfr@ngaging in activities required or protected unagplicable law or froi
communicating, either voluntarily or otherwise, lwény governmental agency concerning any potevitiédtion of the law.

3. No Assignment of Claim. Employee represents that Employee has not assigm&ansferred, or purported to assig
transfer, any claims or any portion thereof oriies therein to any party prior to the date of Rédease.

4, Compensation. In accordance with the Agreement, the Compangexgto pay Employee or, if Employee becomes eé
for payments and benefits under Section 11 but dedsre receipt thereof, Employsespouse or estate, as the case may be, the al
provided in Section 11 of the Agreement.

5. Publicity; No Disparaging Statement. Except as otherwise provided in Section 14 of Algeeement, Section 2 of tl
Release, and as privileged by law, Employee andCtwapany covenant and agree that they shall noagen@n any communications w
persons outside the Company which shall disparageaaother or interfere with their existing or grestive business relationships.

6. No Admission Of Liability . This Release shall not in any way be construeghaadmission by the Company or Emplc
of any improper actions or liability whatsoevertasne another, and each specifically disclaimsletojlity to or improper actions against
other or any other person.

7. Voluntary Execution . Employee warrants, represents and agrees thatofegphas been encouraged in writing to
advice regarding this Release from an attorney tardadvisor prior to signing it; that this Releas@resents written notice to do so;
Employee has been given the opportunity and sefiidime to seek such advice; and that Employdy dumiderstands the meaning and cont
of this Release. Employee further represents andams that Employee was not coerced, threatenedherwise forced to sign this Rele:
and that Employee’ signature appearing hereinafter is voluntary geduine. EMPLOYEE UNDERSTANDS THAT EMPLOYI
MAY TAKE UP TO TWENTY-ONE (21) DAYS (OR,IN THE CASE OF AN EXIT INCENTIVEOR OTHER EMPLOYMEN’
TERMINATION PROGRAM OFFERED TO A GROUP OR CLASS GMPLOYEES, UP TO FORTY-IVE (45) DAYS) TO CONSIDEI
WHETHER TO ENTER INTO THIS RELEASE.




8. Ability to Revoke Agreement. EMPLOYEE UNDERSTANDS THAT THIS RELEASE MAY BE RE VOKED BY
EMPLOYEE BY NOTIFYING THE COMPANY IN WRITING OF SUC H REVOCATION WITHIN SEVEN (7) DAYS OF
EMPLOYEE' S EXECUTION OF THIS RELEASE AND THAT THIS RELEASE | S NOT EFFECTIVE UNTIL THE EXPIRATION
OF SUCH SEVEN (7) DAY PERIOD. EMPLOYEE UNDERSTANDS THAT UPON THE EXPIRATION OF SUCH SEVEN (7) DAY
PERIOD THIS RELEASE WILL BE BINDING UPON EMPLOYEE A ND EMPLOYEE'S HEIRS, ADMINISTRATORS,
REPRESENTATIVES, EXECUTORS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGN&ND WILL BE IRREVOCABLE.

Acknowledged and Agreed To:
“COMPANY”
DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

By:

Its:

| UNDERSTAND THAT BY SIGNING THIS RELEASE, | AM GIV ING UP RIGHTS | MAY HAVE. | UNDERSTAND THAT | DO
NOT HAVE TO SIGN THIS RELEASE.

“EMPLOYEE”

Date

WITNESSED BY:

Date




Exhibit 10.39
AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  (this * Amendment), effective March 18, 201
is made and entered into by and betwB@1LLAR GENERAL CORPORATION (the “ Company) and JOHN W.
FLANIGAN (“ Employee”). Capitalized terms used in this Amendment and noéretise defined herein shall hi
the meanings assigned to them in the Employmerneégent (as defined below).

WITNESSETH :

WHEREAS , the Company and Employee have previously enteredan Employment Agreement by
between the Company and Employee dated March 248 @Be “Employment Agreement”); and

WHEREAS , the Company and Employee desire to amend the dymgint Agreement solely to remove
grossup payment for excise taxes, together with anyrésteand penalties, applicable under Section 498%9ednterne
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “ Cpfie “excess parachute paymentsithin the meaning of Section 28
of the Code.

NOW, THEREFORE , for and in consideration of the premises, the ualutpromises, covenants ¢
agreements contained herein, and for other goodvahdble consideration, the receipt and sufficyeat which ar
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree to amendEmmgloyment Agreement, effective as of the dateediera:
follows:

1. Section 12 of the Employment Agreemenitled “ Effect of 280G’ is hereby deleted in its entirety ¢
replaced with the following:

12. Effect of 280G. Any payments and benefits due under Section 11 dbastitute parachut
payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of Iernal Revenue Code (“Code Section 280@M)s al
other “parachute payments’s defined under Code Section 280G that might wikerbe due to the Employ
(collectively, with payments and benefits due un@exction 11, “Total Payments”shall be limited to tF
Capped Amount. The “Capped Amoustiall be the amount otherwise payable, reducedah amount and
such extent so that no amount of the Total Paymeotdd constitute an “excess parachute paymentie
Code Section 280G. Notwithstanding the precedimgesee but contingent upon Employgéimely executio
and the effectiveness of the Release attachedoharet made a part hereof as provided in Sectioritk
Employees Total Payments shall not be limited to the Capfewbunt if it is determined that Employee wc
receive at least $50,000 in greater afterproceeds if no such reduction is made. Theutation of the Cappe
Amount and all other determinations relating to #pplicability of Code Section 280G (and the ree
regulations promulgated thereunder) to the paymemtsemplated by this Agreement shall be made bytdb
department of an independent public accounting,fomat Companyg discretion, by a compensation consu
firm, and such determinations shall be binding upgmnployee and the Company. Unless Employee ar
Company shall otherwise agree (provided such aggaedoes not cause any




payment or benefit hereunder which is deferred @armsption covered by Section 409A of the InternaldRac
Code to be in nomompliance with Section 409A of the Internal Reve@ode), in the event the Total Paym
are to be reduced, the Company shall reduce oimgtemthe payments or benefits to Employee by feducing
or eliminating those payments or benefits whichrasepayable in cash and then by reducing or eltmig cas
payments, in each case in reverse order beginnitngpayments or benefits which are to be paid #réhést il
time from the date of the “change in ownership @ntool” (within the meaning of Code Section 280G). .
reduction pursuant to the preceding sentence s$akd precedence over the provisions of any othan
arrangement or agreement governing Employee’ssightl entittements to any benefits or compensation.

2. In all other respects, the Employmente®gnent shall remain in full force and effect, sgbfo any othe
amendments that may be adopted from time to time.

3. This Amendment may be executed by eitli¢he parties hereto in counterparts, each otkwkhall b
deemed to be an original Amendment, but all suchntsrparts shall together constitute one and threesastrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exel;ube caused their duly authorized representaty
execute this Amendment.

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

By: /s/ Robert D. Ravent
Its: EVP, Chief People Office

Date: 3/18/14

“EMPLOYEF’

/s/ John W. Flaniga

Date: 3/18/14

Witnessed By  /s/ Christine Connoll
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Exhibit 10.45
AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  (this * Amendment), effective March 18, 201
is made and entered into by and betwP€&1LLAR GENERAL CORPORATION (the “ Company) and ROBERT
D. RAVENER (“ Employee”). Capitalized terms used in this Amendment and reeretise defined herein shall hi
the meanings assigned to them in the Employmerneégent (as defined below).

WITNESSETH :

WHEREAS , the Company and Employee have previously enteredan Employment Agreement by
between the Company and Employee dated March 248 @Be “Employment Agreement”); and

WHEREAS , the Company and Employee desire to amend the dymgint Agreement solely to remove
grossup payment for excise taxes, together with anyrésteand penalties, applicable under Section 498%9ednterne
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “ Cpfie “excess parachute paymentsithin the meaning of Section 28
of the Code.

NOW, THEREFORE , for and in consideration of the premises, the ualutpromises, covenants ¢
agreements contained herein, and for other goodvahdble consideration, the receipt and sufficyeat which ar
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree to amendEmmgloyment Agreement, effective as of the dateediera:
follows:

1. Section 12 of the Employment Agreemenitled “ Effect of 280G’ is hereby deleted in its entirety ¢
replaced with the following:

12. Effect of 280G. Any payments and benefits due under Section 11 dbastitute parachut
payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of Iernal Revenue Code (“Code Section 280@M)s al
other “parachute payments’s defined under Code Section 280G that might wikerbe due to the Employ
(collectively, with payments and benefits due un@exction 11, “Total Payments”shall be limited to tF
Capped Amount. The “Capped Amoustiall be the amount otherwise payable, reducedah amount and
such extent so that no amount of the Total Paymeotdd constitute an “excess parachute paymentie
Code Section 280G. Notwithstanding the precedimgesee but contingent upon Employgéimely executio
and the effectiveness of the Release attachedoharet made a part hereof as provided in Sectioritk
Employees Total Payments shall not be limited to the Capfewbunt if it is determined that Employee wc
receive at least $50,000 in greater afterproceeds if no such reduction is made. Theutation of the Cappe
Amount and all other determinations relating to #pplicability of Code Section 280G (and the ree
regulations promulgated thereunder) to the paymemtsemplated by this Agreement shall be made bytdb
department of an independent public accounting,fomat Companyg discretion, by a compensation consu
firm, and such determinations shall be binding upgmnployee and the Company. Unless Employee ar
Company shall otherwise agree (provided such aggaedoes not cause any




payment or benefit hereunder which is deferred @armsption covered by Section 409A of the InternaldRac
Code to be in nomompliance with Section 409A of the Internal Reve@ode), in the event the Total Paym
are to be reduced, the Company shall reduce oimgtemthe payments or benefits to Employee by feducing
or eliminating those payments or benefits whichrasepayable in cash and then by reducing or eltmig cas
payments, in each case in reverse order beginnitngpayments or benefits which are to be paid #réhést il
time from the date of the “change in ownership @ntool” (within the meaning of Code Section 280G). .
reduction pursuant to the preceding sentence s$akd precedence over the provisions of any othan
arrangement or agreement governing Employee’ssightl entittements to any benefits or compensation.

2. In all other respects, the Employmente®gnent shall remain in full force and effect, sgbfo any othe
amendments that may be adopted from time to time.

3. This Amendment may be executed by eitli¢he parties hereto in counterparts, each otkwkhall b
deemed to be an original Amendment, but all suchntsrparts shall together constitute one and threesastrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exel;ube caused their duly authorized representaty
execute this Amendment.

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

By: /s/ Rhonda Taylo
Its:  SVP and General Couns

Date: 3/18/14

“EMPLOYEF’

/s/Robert D. Ravent

Date: 3/18/14

Witnessed By  /s/ Christine Connoll
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Dollar General Corporation
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges, Combined Figbdrges and Preferred Stock Dividends(1)

Fiscal Year Ended

Exhibit 12

January 31, February 1, February 3, January 28, January 29,
2014 2013 2012(2) 2011 2010
Earnings(3)
Income before income tax $ 1,628.. $ 1,497 $ 1,225 $ 985.C $ 552.1
Fixed Charges, exclusive of capitalized inte 436.¢ 409.1 437. 471. 505.7
$ 2,065. $ 1,906 $ 1,663.C $ 1,456 $ 1,057.¢
Fixed Charges(3
Interest charged to exper $ 89.C % 127¢ % 205.C % 274 % 345.7
Interest factor on rental expense 347.¢ 281.2 232.1 197.2 160.(
436.¢ 409.1 437.7 471.F 505.7
Interest capitalize 1.2 0.€ i3 — —
$ 438.C $ 409.7 $ 439.2 $ 4718 $ 505.7
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 4.7x 4.7x 3.8x 3.1x 2.1x

(1) During the periods indicated, we had no outstandhmyes of preferred stock. Accordingly, our histgrratio of earnings to fixed
charges, combined fixed charges and preferred stivadends is the same as our ratio of earnindixéal charges in all periods.

(2) The fiscal year ended February 3, 2012 was conpn§&3 weeks.

(3) For purposes of computing the ratio of earningxd charges, (a) earnings consist of income Jlbefore income taxes, plus fixed
charges less capitalized expenses related to iedieb$s (amortization expense for capitalized iatésenot significant) and (b) fixed
charges consist of interest expense (whether eggesrscapitalized), the amortization of debt issgarosts and discounts related to

indebtedness, and the interest portion of rent rsge

(4) The portion of rent expense representative of é&steis based on the present value of the futuselpayments discounted at 10%.




SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
(as of March 20, 2014)

Name of Entity

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation/Organization

Exhibit 21

DC Financial, LLC
Dolgencorp, LLC (f/k/a Dolgencorp, Inc

DG Louisiana, LLC(10
Dolgencorp of New York, Inc
Dolgencorp of Texas, Inc.(:
Dolgen I, Inc.
Dolgen Il, Inc.
Dolgen lll, Inc.
Dolgen California, LLC (f/k/a DG Strategic IV, LL(C
Dolgen Midwest, LLC (f/k/a DG Strategic Ill, LLC)J:
DG eCommerce, LLC (f/k/a Strategic V, LL!
DG Strategic I, LLC
DG Strategic I, LLC
DG Strategic VI, LLC
DG Strategic VII, LLC
DG Distribution of Texas, LLC f/k/a DG Strategic VIII, LLC)
DG Transportation, Inc

DG Logistics, LLC(3)
South Boston Holdings, In:

Sur-Dollar, L.P.(4)
South Boston FF&E, LLC(E

DG Promotions, Inc. (f/k/a Nations Title Companyg.)

DG Retail, LLC(6)

Dollar General Partners('
Ashley River Insurance Company, h
DGC Holdings, LLC
Dollar General Global Sourcing Limited(
Dollar General Literacy Foundation(
Retail Property Investments, LL
Retail Risk Solutions, LL(

(1) A corporation in which the sole shareholder is Di@at@gic I, LLC.
(2) A limited liability company in which DG Strategi¢ILLC is the sole member.
(3) A limited liability company in which DG Transportan, Inc. is the sole member.

Tennesse
Kentucky
Tennesse
Kentucky
Kentucky
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Delaware
California
Delaware
Tennesse
Tennesse
Kentucky
South Carolin:
Delaware
Hong Kong
Tennesse
Delaware
Tennesse

(4) A limited partnership in which the general partiseBouth Boston Holdings, Inc. and the limited partis Dollar General Corporation.

(5) A limited liability company in which Sun-Dollar, B. is the sole member.
(6) A limited liability company in which DG PromotionBjc. is the sole member.
(7) Held 99.9% by Dollar General Corporation and 0.3#®i6C Holdings, LLC.

(8) A nonprofit, public benefit membership corporatiarwhich Dollar General Corporation is the sole nbem
(9) A general partnership in which the general partaeesDG Strategic VI, LLC and DG Promotions, Inc.

(10) A limited liability company in which Dolgencorp, I is the sole member.




Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference irfdtHewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 38F493) pertaining to the Shelf Registration Stateimof Dollar Gener.
Corporation and its Affiliates,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 3&3200) pertaining to the Amended and Restated 30dk Incentive Plan f
Key Employees of Dollar General Corporation andhifiates,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 3%3:655) pertaining to the 2007 Stock Incentive HAtanKey Employees ¢
Dollar General Corporation and its Affiliates,

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-15)@4é¢taining to the Dollar General Corporation CBIPRP Plan, and

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 3%3:047) pertaining to the Dollar General Corpora807 Stock Incentive Pl
for Key Employees of Dollar General Corporation #sdAffiliates

of our reports dated March 20, 2014, with respecthe consolidated financial statements of Doll@n&al Corporation al

subsidiaries and the effectiveness of internal robrdver financial reporting of Dollar General Corption and subsidiari
included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Dall@eneral Corporation for the year ended Januar2@14.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
March 20, 201«




Exhibit 31
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Richard W. Dreiling, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KOoflar General Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cormmajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#téde a material fact necessat
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adiner financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitdeestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdsetemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtitas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princijples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémthis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contmal$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsainternal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registramstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controkofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancia
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significast in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 20, 2014 /s/ RICHARD W. DREILING
Richard W. Dreilinc
Chief Executive Office




I, David M. Tehle, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Koflar General Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omittie a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in ligihteofircumstances under which such statements made, not misleadit
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ctiner financial information included in this repdairly present in a
material respects the financial condition, resoltoperations and cash flows of the registrant fasand for, the perioc
presented in this report;

4, The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstranc
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hnd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repogtitas
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)15¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmédion relating to the registrant, including itsnsolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withgse entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report |
being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahegorting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registanlisclosure controls and procedures and presémttds report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered b
this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsainternal control over financial reporting thatowmed durin
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (thgisteant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrarg’ internal control over financ
reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobove
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditonsdathe audit committee of the registranboard of directors (or perst
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesée the design or operation of internal controkofinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffect the registrard’ ability to record, process, summarize
report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdatn the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 20, 2014 /s/ DAVID M. TEHLE

David M. Tehle
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATIONS
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies that sokhbwledge the Annual Report on FormK@er the fiscal year ended January 31, 201
Dollar General Corporation (the “Companyfled with the Securities and Exchange Commissiarttee date hereof fully complies with
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéearExchange Act of 1934 and that the informationtained in such report fairly prese
in all material respects, the financial conditiodaesults of operations of the Company.

/s/ RICHARD W. DREILING
Name: Richard W. Dreiling
Title: Chief Executive Office
Date: March 20, 201«

/s/ DAVID M. TEHLE

Name: David M. Tehle

Title: Chief Financial Office
Date: March 20, 201«




